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I (2005) (the “Series I Bonds”) are issued only as fully registered bonds without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as Bondowner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York.  DTC will act 
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The Series I Bonds will be issued initially as auction rate securities (“ARS”) in a 7-day Auction Period in denominations of 
$25,000 or any multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof.  While the Series I Bonds are ARS, the interest rates (the “ARS Rate”) will be 
initially determined for generally successive 7-day Auction Periods.  Each ARS Rate will be equal to the annual interest rate that 
results from the implementation of the Auction Procedures described in Appendix D hereto.  This Official Statement describes the 
provisions of the Series I Bonds only when such Series I Bonds are ARS.  At the election of the Institution, the Auction Period for the 
ARS may be adjusted to a 28-day Auction Period, a 35-day Auction Period, a different 7-day Auction Period or the Series I Bonds may 
be converted from ARS to another Interest Rate Determination Method.  The Series I Bonds will be subject to mandatory tender 
for purchase upon a conversion of the Series I Bonds to another Interest Rate Determination Method. The Purchase Price of such 
tendered Series I Bonds is payable solely from the proceeds of the remarketing of such Series I Bonds upon such conversion.  While 
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REGARDING USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 
 IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVER ALLOT OR EFFECT 
TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF THE SERIES I BONDS AT LEVELS 
ABOVE THOSE WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET.  SUCH STABILIZING, IF 
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 
 
 No broker, dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any 
representation, other than those contained in this Official Statement including its Appendices in connection with the offering 
described herein and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been 
authorized by the Authority, the Institution, the Underwriter or the Insurer.  The information and expressions of opinion 
herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale hereunder shall, 
under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Authority, the Insurer or the 
Institution since the date hereof.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to 
buy any of the Series I Bonds in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized, or in which the person 
making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so, or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or 
solicitation.  Certain information contained herein has been obtained from the Authority, the Institution, the Insurer, The 
Depository Trust Company and other sources believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness 
and is not to be construed as a representation of the Underwriter or, as to information from sources other than the Authority, 
of the Authority.   
 
 OTHER THAN WITH RESPECT TO INFORMATION CONCERNING XL CAPITAL ASSURANCE INC. 
(THE “INSURER”) CONTAINED UNDER THE CAPTION “THE FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE 
POLICY AND THE INSURER” HEREIN AND IN APPENDIX E HERETO, NONE OF THE INFORMATION IN 
THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT HAS BEEN SUPPLIED OR VERIFIED BY THE INSURER, AND THE INSURER 
MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO: (i) THE ACCURACY OR 
COMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION; (ii) THE VALIDITY OF THE SERIES I BONDS; OR (iii) THE 
TAX STATUS OF THE INTEREST ON THE SERIES I BONDS. 
 
 IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF 
THE AUTHORITY, THE INSTITUTION, THE INSURER, AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE 
MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED.  THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL 
OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY.   
 
 UPON ISSUANCE, THE SERIES I BONDS WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 
1933, AS AMENDED, OR UNDER ANY STATE SECURITIES LAW AND THE AGREEMENT HAS NOT BEEN 
QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON THE 
EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS.  THE SERIES I BONDS WILL NOT BE LISTED ON ANY STOCK OR 
OTHER SECURITIES EXCHANGE AND NEITHER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION NOR ANY OTHER FEDERAL, STATE, OR GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY OR AGENCY WILL HAVE 
PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY HEREOF.  ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A 
CRIMINAL OFFENSE.  
 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this official statement.  The underwriter has 
reviewed the information in this official statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to investors under the 
federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the underwriter does not guarantee the 
accuracy or completeness of such information. 
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VARIABLE RATE REVENUE BONDS 
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(Auction Rate Securities) 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 Purpose of this Official Statement.  The purpose of this Official Statement is to set forth certain information 
concerning the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”), Stonehill College, Inc. (the 
“Institution”) and the $28,865,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Revenue 
Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series I (2005) (Auction Rate Securities) (the “Series I Bonds”) issued under a Loan and 
Trust Agreement dated as of March 12, 1992, as amended and supplemented by a First Supplemental Agreement dated as 
of August 13, 1996, a Second Supplemental Agreement dated as of March 10, 1998, a Third Supplemental Agreement 
dated as of August 15, 2003, and a Fourth Supplemental Agreement dated as of September 13, 2005 (as the same may be 
further amended and supplemented, the “Agreement”), by and among the Authority, the Institution and U.S. Bank 
National Association, as successor to Shawmut Bank, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”).  The Series I Bonds are issued in 
accordance with Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1968, as amended from time to time (the “Act”), and the 
Agreement.  The information contained in this Official Statement is provided for use in connection with the initial sale of 
the Series I Bonds.  The definition of certain terms used and defined herein are contained in APPENDIX C-1 – 
DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS. 
 
 Use of Proceeds.  The proceeds from the sale of the Series I Bonds will be used to: (A) advance refund the 
outstanding amount of the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series F (the “Series F Bonds”); 
(B) refinance a loan (the “Pool D Loan”) made from the Authority’s Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Capital Asset 
Program Issue, Series D; (C) advance refund a portion of the outstanding amount of the Authority’s Revenue 
Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series G (the “Series G Bonds”); and (D) pay certain costs associated with the 
issuance of the Series I Bonds.  (See “THE PROJECT”, “PLAN OF REFINANCING” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES 
AND USES” herein). 
 

SECURITY FOR THE SERIES I BONDS 
 

The Authority, the Institution, and the Trustee have executed the Agreement, which provides that, to the 
extent permitted by law, the Agreement is a general obligation of the Institution and that the full faith and credit of 
the Institution are pledged to its performance. 

The Agreement provides, among other things, that the Institution shall make payments to the Trustee equal 
to principal and interest on the Bonds (as defined below) and certain other payments required by the Agreement. 
The Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the Bonds and the interest thereon have been 
fully paid or until adequate provision for such payments has been made. 
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The Agreement provides, among other things, that on or before December 15 and June 15 in each year, the 
Institution shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Fund (whether from tuition or otherwise) an 
amount equal to the interest coming due on the Bonds on the next January 1 or July 1, as the case may be. On or 
before June 15 in each year, the Institution shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Fund (whether 
from tuition or otherwise) an amount equal to the principal (including any sinking fund installment) coming due on 
the Bonds on the next July 1. 

As additional security for its obligations to make payments to the Debt Service Fund and Rebate Fund, the 
Institution has granted to the Authority a lien upon all of its Tuition Receipts which are available after satisfaction of 
prior liens (if any) on Tuition Receipts, whether in the form of proceeds of accounts receivable or contract rights or 
otherwise, and in any rights to receive the same. The lien on Tuition Receipts is on a parity with the lien granted by 
the Institution to secure the Authority’s outstanding Series G Bonds (the “Outstanding Series G Bonds”) and the 
Authority’s $12,170,000 Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series H (the “Series H Bonds” and together with 
the Outstanding Series G Bonds and the Series I Bonds, collectively, the “Bonds”). For this purpose Tuition Receipts 
shall include receipts from any source which are applied or to be applied to tuition or financial aid for tuition. If any 
required payment is not made when due, any receipts with respect to which this security interest remains perfected 
pursuant to law (including the Act) shall be transferred or paid over immediately to the Trustee without being 
commingled with other funds (unless already commingled) and any such receipts thereafter received shall upon 
receipt be transferred immediately to the Trustee in the form received to the extent necessary to cure the deficiency. 
The Institution represents and warrants that the lien so granted is and at all times will be a first lien, subject only to 
(i) liens permitted by the Agreement (other than those stated therein to be subject to this lien) and (ii) non-consensual 
liens arising by operation of law. The Institution further represents and warrants that the liens mentioned in clause 
(ii) are and will at all times be of an aggregate amount which is not material to the security for the Bonds and 
Alternative Indebtedness, if any. The enforcement of the lien on Tuition Receipts in favor of the Bondowners is 
subject to the exercise of equitable discretion by a court which, under certain circumstances, may have power to 
direct the use of such Tuition Receipts to meet the expenses of the Institution before paying debt service. 

The Institution has covenanted not to encumber certain of its existing buildings and other real property to 
secure future indebtedness unless the Institution also shall grant to the Authority a mortgage or security interest 
which places the Authority in a parity position in every respect. See “CERTAIN FINANCIAL COVENANTS AND 
NEGATIVE PLEDGE.” 

The Bonds are special obligations of the Authority, equally and ratably secured by and payable from a 
pledge of and lien on, to the extent provided by the Agreement, the moneys received by the Trustee for the account 
of the Authority pursuant to the Agreement. 

THE SERIES I BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT, LIABILITY OR SO-
CALLED MORAL OBLIGATION OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION THEREOF, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES DERIVED BY THE 
AUTHORITY UNDER THE AGREEMENT. THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE TAXING POWER. 

Additional parity indebtedness and other long-term debt may be issued provided that the maximum Total 
Principal and Interest Requirements due on the proposed and outstanding debt in any future year (excluding internal 
loans due from one Institution fund to another Institution fund) does not exceed 13% of the unrestricted operating 
revenues as shown on the Institution’s most recent audited financial statements. See “ADDITIONAL DEBT AND 
PARITY INDEBTEDNESS.” 

 Payment of the principal of and interest on the Series I Bonds will be insured by a financial guaranty insurance 
policy to be issued by XL Capital Assurance Inc. simultaneously with the delivery of the Series I Bonds. 
 

THE AUTHORITY 
 
 The Authority is a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of The Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”) organized and existing under and by virtue of the Act.  The purpose of the 
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Authority, as stated in the Act, is essentially to provide assistance for public and private nonprofit institutions for higher 
education, private nonprofit schools for the handicapped, nonprofit hospitals and their nonprofit affiliates, nonprofit 
nursing homes and nonprofit cultural institutions in the construction, financing and refinancing of projects to be 
undertaken in relation to programs for such institutions. 
 
Authority Membership and Organization 
 
 The Act provides that the Authority shall consist of nine members who shall be appointed by the Governor 
and shall be residents of the Commonwealth.  At least two members shall be associated with institutions for higher 
education, at least two shall be associated with hospitals, at least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of state and 
municipal finance (by virtue of business or other association), and at least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of 
building construction.  All Authority members serve without compensation, but are entitled to reimbursement for 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as members of the Authority.  The Authority shall 
elect annually one of its members to serve as Chairman and one to serve as Vice Chairman.   
 
 The members of the Authority are as follows: 
 
 David T. Hannan, Chairman; term as Member expires July 1, 2006. 
 
 Mr. Hannan, a resident of Hingham, is Chief Executive Officer Emeritus and Senior Consultant to South 
Shore Health and Educational Corporation and South Shore Hospital of South Weymouth, Massachusetts.  South 
Shore Health and Educational Corporation is a not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization and the parent of South Shore 
Hospital.  Mr. Hannan is a member of the American College of Healthcare Executives and the American Hospital 
Association. 
 
 Marvin A. Gordon, Secretary; term as Member expires July 1, 2010.   
 
 Mr. Gordon, a resident of Milton, is Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer of Gordon Logistics, 
L.L.C. in Norwood, Massachusetts.  From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Gordon served on the Board of Directors to Techniek 
Development Co. of San Diego, California.  He also served as Chairman of the Board of US Trust Norfolk (Milton 
Bank and Trust) from 1974 to 1976 and as Vice President and Member of the Executive Committee from 1971 to 1974.  
Mr. Gordon has been actively engaged in non-profit, charitable and civic activities.  His affiliations include Treasurer 
and Chairman of the Finance Committee of Milton Hospital Corporation, President, Milton Fuller Housing Corporation, 
and Corporator of Curry College.  Mr. Gordon has been elected to and appointed to a number of public boards and 
belongs to several civic associations.  Mr. Gordon holds a degree from Harvard College and Harvard Business School. 
 
 John E. Kavanagh, III; term as Member expires July 1, 2011. 
 
 Mr. Kavanagh, a resident of Ipswich, is President and Chairman of William A. Berry & Son, Inc., one of the 
oldest construction companies in the country.  During his 19 years as President, he has redirected the company’s focus 
from restoration specialties to a full-service building and construction management organization, with emphasis on 
meeting the full range of customer needs: planning, design, construction, operation and maintenance services.  
Mr. Kavanagh is a Trustee and the former Chairman of the Board of the North Shore Music Theater, Corporator of 
Brigham and Women’s Hospital and Partners Healthcare System, Trustee and member of the Board of Directors of 
Massachusetts Eye and Ear Infirmary, Corporator of Danvers Savings Bank and a former member of Tufts University 
Board of Overseers. 
 
 Allen R. Larson, Esq.; term as Member expires July 1, 2007. 
 
 Allen R. Larson, a resident of Yarmouth Port, is the founding principal of a law firm and a separate consulting 
firm, the Enterprise Management Group, that advise business and non-profit clients on matters of government regulation, 
business competition, market entry and economic development.  Prior to establishing his law firm in 1984, Mr. Larson 
worked as an antitrust attorney for the Federal Trade Commission in Washington, D.C.  Currently, he is a Trustee of 
Cape Cod Community College, President of the Cape Cod Center for Sustainability, a Director of the YMCA-Cape Cod, 
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and a Member of the Yarmouth Town Finance Committee.  Mr. Larson graduated from Dartmouth College and earned a 
J.D. from Albany Law School and an M.B.A. from the University of Minnesota. 
 
 Gayl A. Mileszko, term as Member expires July 1, 2012. 
 

Ms. Mileszko, a native of Amherst and current resident of Boston, is the Chief of Staff at the Massachusetts 
Department of Labor.  She was associated with the investment banking firm Tucker Anthony Incorporated in Boston 
and New York from 1990 to 2002, serving as a Vice President in public finance and later as a Senior Vice President 
in the fixed income capital markets division.  For the past two years, Ms. Mileszko served in the Office of the 
Massachusetts Governor as the Chief of Staff for Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations, and as the Director of 
External Relations.  She was a member of the staff of the Committee on Appropriations for the U.S. House of 
Representatives from 1983 to 1988, and previously served as a staff assistant to Massachusetts Congressman Silvio 
O. Conte.  Ms. Mileszko holds a B.A. from Yale College. 
 
 Timothy O’Connor; term as Member expires July 1, 2009. 
 
 Mr. O’Connor, a resident of Salem, is Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of 
Lahey Clinic Foundation, Inc.; Lahey Clinic Hospital, Inc.; Lahey Clinic, Inc.; Lahey Clinic Affiliated Services, Inc. and 
Lahey Clinic Canadian Foundation.  In addition, Mr. O’Connor is also President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 
of Lahey Clinic Insurance Company Limited.  His memberships and affiliations include the American Medical Group 
Association, the Healthcare Financial Management Association, the Healthcare Information and Management Systems 
Society and the Massachusetts Hospital Association’s Committee on Finance. 
 
 Robert M. Platt; term as Member expires July 1, 2009. 
 
 Mr. Platt, a resident of Newton, is President of National Consulting Inc., a business development and 
marketing strategy organization which assists clients in achieving their true market potential.  Mr. Platt works in 
conjunction with both state and federal government to facilitate the exchange of ideas and opportunities for clients.  His 
board memberships include Past President of the Newton Athletic Association, Past Board of Director of the Newton 
Youth Soccer for Boys and Girls, and Past Board Member of Youth Commission for the City of Newton.  Mr. Platt’s 
current board memberships include Commissioner of Parks and Recreation of his ward in Newton, Advisory Board 
Member for Second Step, which aids women who have suffered domestic violence and abuse, and Member of the Board 
of Trustees for Curry College.  Mr. Platt holds a B.A. from Curry College. 
 
 Christine C. Schuster, R.N., M.B.A.; term as Member expires July 1, 2006. 
 
 Ms. Schuster, a resident of Sudbury, is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Emerson Hospital Health 
System located in Concord.  Ms. Schuster formerly held the position of President and Chief Executive Officer of Quincy 
Medical Center.  She is a Member of the Board of Trustees of the South Shore Chamber of Commerce, where she serves 
as Vice Chairman of Government Affairs; and is a Member of the Board of Trustees of the Massachusetts Hospital 
Association (“MHA”), where she serves as the MHA Chair of the Clinical Issues Advisory Council which provides 
advice and counsel to the MHA on key medical, clinical and public policy issues.  She also serves on the American 
Hospital Association Regional Policy Board.  Ms. Schuster was recognized by Modern Healthcare magazine and Witt 
Kieffer Associates as one of the Year 2000 “Up and Comers Award” recipients.  She is a frequent speaker both locally 
and nationally on a wide variety of healthcare topics.  Ms. Schuster received an M.B.A. with Honors from the University 
of Chicago Graduate School of Business and a B.S. in Nursing from Boston University. 
 
 There are nine Board Members of the Authority.  Currently, there is one vacancy and a successor has not 
been appointed. 
 
Staff and Advisors 
 
 Benson T. Caswell, a resident of North Andover, was appointed Executive Director of the Authority on April 
9, 2002, and is responsible for the management of the Authority’s affairs.  From 1992 through 2002, Mr. Caswell 
worked for Ponder & Co. in Chicago where he was a Senior Vice President.  From 1987 through 1992, he was Vice 
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President of Ziegler Securities, Chicago, Illinois.  From 1983 through 1986, he was an attorney with Gardner, Carton & 
Douglas.  Mr. Caswell holds a Juris Doctor from the University of Chicago, an MBA from Lehigh University and a BS 
from the University of Maine. 
 
 Palmer & Dodge LLP, attorneys of Boston, Massachusetts, are serving as General Counsel and Bond Counsel 
to the Authority and will submit their approving opinion with regard to the legality of the Series I Bonds as provided by 
the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as APPENDIX F. 
 
 Public Financial Management, Inc. is serving as financial consultant to the Authority with respect to this 
financing.  The financial consultant advises the Authority in connection with the issuance of its obligations and certain 
other financial matters. 
 
 The Act provides that the Authority may employ such other counsel, engineers, architects, accountants, 
construction and financial experts, or others as the Authority deems necessary. 
  
Powers of the Authority 
 
 Under the Act, the Authority is authorized and empowered, among other things, directly or by and through a 
participating institution for higher education, a participating school for the handicapped, a participating hospital or 
hospital affiliate, a participating nursing home or participating cultural institution as its agent, to acquire real and 
personal property and to take title thereto in its own name or in the name of one or more participants as its agent; to 
construct, reconstruct, remodel, maintain, manage, enlarge, alter, add to, repair, operate, lease, as lessee or lessor, and 
regulate any project; to enter into contracts for any or all of such purposes, or for the management and operation of a 
project; to issue bonds, bond anticipation notes and other obligations, and to fund or refund the same; to fix and revise 
from time to time and charge and collect rates, rents, fees and charges for the use of and for the services furnished or to 
be furnished by a project or any portion thereof and to enter into contracts in respect thereof; to establish rules and 
regulations for the use of a project or any portion thereof; to receive and accept from any public agency loans or grants 
for or in the aid of the construction of a project or any portion thereof; to mortgage any project and the site thereof for 
the benefit of the holders of revenue bonds issued to finance such projects; to make loans to any participant for the cost 
of a project or to refund outstanding obligations, mortgages or advances issued, made or given by such participant for 
the cost of a project; to charge participants its administrative costs and expenses incurred; to acquire any federally 
guaranteed security and to pledge or use such security to secure or provide for the repayment of its bonds; and to do all 
things necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of the Act.  Additionally, the Authority may undertake a joint 
project or projects for two or more participants.   
 
Indebtedness of the Authority 
 
 The Authority has heretofore authorized and issued certain series of its revenue bonds for nonprofit private and 
public colleges and universities and nonprofit private hospitals and their affiliates, nonprofit community providers, 
nonprofit cultural institutions, nonprofit schools for the handicapped and nonprofit nursing homes in the 
Commonwealth.  Each series of revenue bonds has been a special obligation of the Authority. 
 
 The Authority expects to enter into separate agreements with eligible institutions in the Commonwealth for the 
purpose of financing projects for such institutions.  Each series of bonds issued by the Authority constitutes a separate 
obligation of the borrowing institutions for such series, and the general funds of the Authority are not pledged to any 
bonds or notes. 
 

THE SERIES I BONDS 

General 

The Series I Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amount indicated on the cover page of this 
Official Statement.  The Series I Bonds will be dated their date of issuance and will mature on July 1, 2028. 
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Pursuant to the Agreement, the Series I Bonds shall bear interest at Daily Rates, Weekly Rates, Commercial 
Paper Rates (each, a “Variable Rate”), at ARS Rates or at a Fixed Rate, based on the Interest Rate Determination 
Method specified from time to time by the Institution.  The maximum rate of interest any of the Series I Bonds may 
bear while in an ARS Period is 12% per annum.  The Series I Bonds will initially bear interest at ARS Rates, 
determined pursuant to the Auction Procedures as described herein.  The Series I Bonds will initially be issued in 
authorized denominations of $25,000 or any multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof.  This Official Statement 
describes the provisions of the Series I Bonds only when the Series I Bonds are ARS.  There are significant 
changes in the terms of the Series I Bonds not described in this Official Statement when the Series I Bonds are 
not ARS. 

The Series I Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and held in DTC’s 
book-entry system.  So long as the Series I Bonds are held in the book-entry system, DTC or its nominee will be the 
registered owner of the Series I Bonds for all purposes of the Agreement and the Series I Bonds.  For purposes of 
this Official Statement, DTC or its nominee, and its successors and assigns, are referred to as the “Securities 
Depository.” So long as the Series I Bonds are held in book-entry form through DTC, all payments with respect to 
principal and Purchase Price of, premium, if any, and interest on each Series I Bond will be made pursuant to DTC’s 
rules and procedures.  See “BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM” herein. 

U.S. Bank National Association is the Trustee, Tender Agent, Registrar and Paying Agent for the Series I 
Bonds.  Banc of America Securities LLC has been appointed under the Agreement and Broker-Dealer Agreement to 
serve as Broker-Dealer for the Series I Bonds.  The Broker-Dealer may resign or be removed and a successor 
Broker-Dealer may be appointed, all in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and Broker-Dealer Agreement. 

Auction Rate Securities 
 

General.  Initially, the Auction Rate for the Series I Bonds will be determined for generally successive 
7-day Auction Periods through the implementation of the Auction Procedures summarized in APPENDIX D – 
SUMMARY OF PROCEDURES RELATING TO AUCTION RATE SECURITIES.  Interest on the Series I Bonds 
will be payable on October 27, 2005 and thereafter, for so long as the Series I Bonds remain in a 7-day Auction 
Period, on the Business Day immediately following each Auction Period therefor (generally, every Thursday).  The 
Auction Period for the Series I Bonds may be changed to a different 7-day Auction Period, a 28-day Auction Period 
or a 35-day Auction Period.  The Series I Bonds may also be converted to interest rate modes other than ARS Rates, 
at the Institution’s election.   

While the ARS are book-entry bonds, as described below, payment of the principal or Purchase Price of, or 
premium, if any, and interest on any ARS will be made by wire transfer by the Trustee to DTC, to the account of 
Cede & Co.  Interest on the ARS will be payable on the business day immediately following each Auction Period for 
the Series I Bonds (an “ARS Interest Payment Date”).  In the event the ARS are no longer book-entry bonds, 
principal or Purchase Price of, or premium, if any, with respect to the ARS will be payable at the principal office of 
the Trustee, and interest payments on the ARS will be paid by check mailed by the Trustee to the registered owners 
of such ARS as of the ARS Record Date; provided, however, that if an Owner of $1,000,000 or more aggregate 
outstanding principal amount of the ARS gives the Trustee written notice of such holding accompanied by sufficient 
wire transfer instructions, the payments of interest with respect to the ARS will be payable by wire transfer of 
immediately available funds.  The Record Date with respect to the ARS will be the business day next preceding each 
ARS Interest Payment Date. 

Transfer and Exchange.  In the event the ARS are no longer book-entry bonds, the following provisions 
will apply.  The ARS will be transferable by the registered Owner thereof or such Owner’s attorney duly authorized 
in writing, upon presentation thereof accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer, in form and 
with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the registered Owner or by such Owner’s 
duly authorized attorney.  Any ARS may be exchanged at the principal office of the Trustee for a like aggregate 
principal amount of ARS of the same maturity date of other authorized denominations.  The Trustee may charge a 
fee covering taxes, fees or other governmental charges required to be paid in connection with any exchange or 
transfer of any ARS, except in the case of execution and delivery of an ARS, for the unredeemed portion of an ARS 
surrendered for redemption.  The Trustee will not be required to register the transfer or exchange of any ARS (i) 
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after notice calling such ARS or portion thereof for redemption has been mailed or (ii) during the 15-day period next 
preceding the mailing of a notice of redemption of ARS of the same maturity.  For a description of the transfer 
procedures while the ARS are registered in the name of the Securities Depository, see “BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY 
SYSTEM” herein. 

Applicable ARS Rate.  So long as the Series I Bonds are ARS, such Series I Bonds will bear interest at rates 
(the “Applicable ARS Rate”) established pursuant to the Auction Procedures described in APPENDIX D – 
SUMMARY OF PROCEDURES RELATING TO AUCTION RATE SECURITIES.  An “ARS Interest Period” 
begins on and includes an ARS Interest Payment Date and ends on and includes the day immediately preceding the 
next succeeding ARS Interest Payment Date but excludes the next succeeding ARS Interest Payment Date.  The first 
ARS Interest Period commences on the date of original delivery of the ARS.  The Applicable ARS Rate will not 
exceed the ARS Maximum Rate.  Interest with respect to ARS will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year for 
the actual number of days elapsed during the applicable ARS Interest Period.  In certain circumstances, however, the 
Auction Procedure may be canceled or suspended.  If Wilmington Trust Company (the “Auction Agent”), the 
Institution, the Broker-Dealer or the Trustee fails to receive a Notice of Percentage Change or an opinion of Bond 
Counsel authorizing an adjustment in the percentages used to determine certain rates relevant to, among others, the 
Applicable ARS Rate, the Auction Agent will cancel the succeeding Auction and determine the applicable ARS 
Maximum Rate in accordance with the applicable Auction Agent Agreement.  The Auction Agent will also suspend 
the Auction Procedures upon occurrence of any default in the payment of the principal of and interest with respect to 
the applicable ARS.  If an ARS Payment Default shall have occurred, the Applicable ARS Rate for the ARS Interest 
Period commencing on or immediately after such ARS Payment Default and for each ARS Interest Period thereafter, 
to and including the ARS Interest Period, if any, during which, or commencing less than two Business Days after, 
such ARS Payment Default is cured in accordance with the Agreement, shall equal the lesser of (i) 265% of the 
Index on such date, as such percentage may be adjusted pursuant to the Agreement, or (ii) 12% per annum; provided, 
that in no event shall such amount be more than the Maximum Rate; and provided further, that if an Auction 
occurred on the Business Day immediately preceding any such ARS Interest Period, the Non Payment Rate for such 
ARS Interest Period shall apply.  If the ARS are no longer book-entry bonds, the Applicable ARS Rate for any ARS 
Interest Period commencing after the delivery of bonds representing the ARS shall equal the ARS Maximum Rate.  
See APPENDIX D – SUMMARY OF PROCEDURES RELATING TO AUCTION RATE SECURITIES. 

Converting Interest Rate Modes and Mandatory Tender for Purchase.  The Institution may elect to 
convert the Series I Bonds to another Interest Rate Determination Method.  Upon such Conversion, the Series I 
Bonds may accrue interest based on a Daily Rate Period, Weekly Rate Period, Commercial Paper Rate Period or 
Fixed Rate Period.  In order to effect such Conversion, the Institution shall provide a written direction to the Trustee, 
the Auction Agent and the Broker-Dealer of the Institution’s election to convert the Series I Bonds to another 
Interest Rate Determination Method.  As long as the Series I Bonds are ARS, such Series I Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase only on the first day of any Conversion to another Interest Rate Determination 
Method; provided, however, that if a Conversion does not occur, ARS will not be subject to mandatory purchase as 
provided in the Agreement.  The Purchase Price shall be equal to the principal amount thereof tendered for purchase, 
without premium, plus accrued interest from and including the immediately preceding Interest Payment Date. 

Redemption of Series I Bonds 
 
While an ARS Period is in effect, the Series I Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, 

as described below: 

Optional Redemption.  The Series I Bonds will be subject to redemption at the option of the Institution, in 
whole, or in part by lot in Authorized Denominations, prior to their stated maturity date, on any ARS Interest Rate 
Payment Date at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Series I Bonds called for redemption, 
without premium. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.  The Bonds are subject to redemption from mandatory sinking 
fund payments, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, without premium, 
in the amounts and on the dates set forth below: 
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Payment Date 
(July 1) Principal Amount 

Payment Date 
(July 1) Principal Amount 

    
2006 $560,000 2018 $1,310,000 
2007 670,000 2019 1,380,000 
2008 695,000 2020 1,440,000 
2009 725,000 2021 1,770,000 
2010 785,000 2022 1,860,000 
2011 825,000 2023 1,945,000 
2012 865,000 2024 2,040,000 
2013 910,000 2025 2,130,000 
2014 955,000 2026 2,230,000 
2015 995,000 2027 1,745,000 
2016 1,040,000 2028* 895,000 
2017 1,095,000   

  
*Maturity 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if July 1 is not an ARS Interest Payment Date, the redemption shall occur on the ARS 
Interest Payment Date immediately preceding such July 1. 

In the event any Series I Bonds are redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions set forth above, 
the remaining mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts with respect to the Series I Bonds so redeemed shall be 
reduced, in an aggregate amount equal to the principal amount of the Series I Bonds so redeemed, as directed in writing 
by the Institution, and in the absence of such direction, as proportionally as possible in integral multiples of Authorized 
Denominations. 

Notice of Redemption.  The Trustee will give notice of any redemption of Series I Bonds by first-class 
mail, postage prepaid, to the Holders of all Series I Bonds to be redeemed, at the addresses appearing in the 
registration books kept for such purpose, not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date 
fixed for redemption.  Each notice of redemption of Series I Bonds will identify the Series I Bonds to be redeemed 
and will state, among other things, the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price and the place of redemption.  
So long as DTC or its nominee is the sole registered owner of the Series I Bonds under the book-entry system, 
redemption notices will be sent to Cede & Co.  Notice of redemption will also be sent to the Authority, the Auction 
Agent, certain information services that disseminate redemption notices, and to certain nationally recognized 
municipal securities information repositories. 

With respect to any notice of optional redemption as described above, unless upon the giving of such notice 
the Series I Bonds to be redeemed are deemed to have been paid, such notice must state that such redemption is 
conditional upon the receipt by the Trustee on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption of moneys sufficient to 
pay the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the Series I Bonds to be redeemed, and that if such moneys 
are not received, such notice will be of no force and effect and the Authority will not be required to redeem such 
Series I Bonds.  If such redemption is not effectuated, the Trustee will, within a reasonable time thereafter, give 
notice that such moneys were not so received. 

Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been given and moneys for the payment of the 
redemption price being held by the Trustee, the Series I Bonds so called for redemption will on the date fixed for 
redemption designated in such notice, become due and payable at the redemption price specified in such notice, 
interest on the Series I Bonds to be redeemed will cease to accrue, said Series I Bonds shall cease to be entitled to 
any lien, benefit or security under the Agreement and the Holders thereof will have no rights except to receive 
payment of the redemption price of and interest, if any, accrued to the date fixed for redemption on the Series I 
Bonds. 

Selection of Series I Bonds to be Redeemed.  If less than all the outstanding Series I Bonds are called for 
redemption, the Trustee will select the Series I Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed from the outstanding Series 
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I Bonds or such portion thereof not previously called for redemption, by lot. If less than all the outstanding Series I 
Bonds are to be redeemed and so long as DTC or its nominee is the sole registered owner of the Series I Bonds 
under the book-entry system, selection of Series I Bonds for redemption will be in accordance with DTC’s customary 
practices.  If less than all the Series I Bonds are to be redeemed, the Series I Bonds that remain outstanding must be 
in Authorized Denominations. 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

 
 The following table sets forth, for each respective year, the amounts required to be made available in such year 
for payment of the principal of, sinking fund installment, interest and total debt service on the Series I Bonds, the total 
debt service on outstanding debt, and total debt service on the Series I Bonds and other outstanding debt as of October 
20, 2005.  For further details on outstanding debt, please refer to APPENDIX A. 

Year SERIES I BONDS Total Debt Service(2) Total Debt Service 
Ending 
July 1, 

 
Principal 

 
Interest(1) 

 
Total Debt Service 

on other 
outstanding debt 

on the Series I Bonds & 
other outstanding debt 

      
2006 $  560,000  $678,022  $1,238,022  $1,609,758  $2,847,780 
2007  670,000 953,595 1,623,595 1,609,508 3,233,103 
2008  695,000 931,023 1,626,023 1,618,658 3,244,681 
2009  725,000 907,609  1,632,609 1,616,908 3,249,516 
2010  785,000 883,183  1,668,183 1,545,833 3,214,016 
2011  825,000 856,737  1,681,737 1,544,133 3,225,869 
2012  865,000 828,942  1,693,942 1,544,750 3,238,692 
2013  910,000 799,801  1,709,801 1,544,100 3,253,901 
2014 955,000 769,143  1,724,143 1,541,281 3,265,424 
2015 995,000 736,969  1,731,969 1,541,269 3,273,237 
2016 1,040,000 703,447  1,743,447 1,543,738 3,287,185 
2017 1,095,000 668,410  1,763,410 1,543,413 3,306,822 
2018 1,310,000 631,519  1,941,519 1,379,088 3,320,607 
2019 1,380,000 587,385  1,967,385 1,374,788 3,342,173 
2020 1,440,000 540,893  1,980,893 1,376,675 3,357,568 
2021 1,770,000 492,379  2,262,379 1,246,263 3,508,642 
2022 1,860,000 432,748  2,292,748 1,244,000 3,536,748 
2023 1,945,000 370,085  2,315,085 1,244,638 3,559,722 
2024 2,040,000 304,558  2,344,558 1,242,913 3,587,470 
2025 2,130,000 235,830  2,365,830 1,243,825 3,609,655 
2026 2,230,000 164,070  2,394,070 1,247,113 3,641,183 
2027 1,745,000 88,942  1,833,942 1,567,513 3,401,454 
2028  895,000 30,153  925,153 1,568,225 2,493,378 

      
 Totals   $  28,865,000  $  13,595,443   $ 42,460,443  $33,538,383 $75,998,825 

 
(1) Estimated debt service, assumes an interest rate of 3.369% for the Swap.  See “INTEREST RATE HEDGE 

AGREEMENT” herein. 
(2) Includes debt service on the Outstanding Series G Bonds and the Series H Bonds, excludes the United States 

Department of Education loan dated April 1, 1990, and excludes debt service on the Pool D Loan, the Series F 
Bonds and the portion of the Series G Bonds to be refunded by the Series I Bonds. 
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BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

The information under this heading has been furnished by DTC, New York, New York.  None of the Authority, 
the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent makes any representations as to the completeness or the accuracy of such 
information or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information subsequent to the date hereof. 
 
DTC 

 
DTC will act as securities depository for the Series I Bonds.  The Series I Bonds will be issued as fully-

registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’ s partnership nominee) or such other name as may 
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered bond certificate will be issued for the 
Series I Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of the Series I Bonds, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York 
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal 
Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a 
“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over two million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, 
corporate and municipal debt issues, money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC’s participants 
(“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants 
of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry 
transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of 
securities certificates.  Direct Participants includes both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, 
trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The 
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC, in turn is owned by a number of Direct Participants of 
DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, 
MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, and EMCC, 
also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, LLC, and 
the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as 
both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear 
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect 
Participants”).  DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating:  AAA.  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are 
on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of the Series I Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Series I Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser 
of each Series I Bond (a “Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ 
records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners 
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic 
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into 
the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interest in the Series I Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the 
books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive 
certificates representing their ownership interests in Series I Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry 
system for the Series I Bonds is discontinued. 

Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not 
receive certificates representing their ownership interest in the Series I Bonds except in the event that use of the 
book-entry system for the Series I Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series I Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Series I Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of 
Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge 
of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series I Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct 
Participants to whose accounts such Series I Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  
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The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 
customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Series 
I Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns 
Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series I Bonds are 
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Series I Bonds will be made to Cede & 
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit 
Direct Participants’ accounts, upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detailed information from the 
Authority or Trustee on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as 
is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will 
be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee or the Authority, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend 
payments to Cede & Co., (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the 
responsibility of the Authority or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the 
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of 
Direct and Indirect Participants. 

No Responsibility of Authority, Institution, Insurer, Trustee or Underwriter  

None of the Authority, the Institution, the Insurer, the Trustee or the Underwriter will have any 
responsibility or obligations to Direct Participants or the persons for whom they act as nominees with respect to the 
payments to or the providing of notice for direct participants, indirect participants, or beneficial owners. 

So long as Cede & Co. is the Registered Owner of the Series I Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references 
herein to the Bondowners or Registered Owners of the Series I Bonds will mean Cede & Co. and will not mean the 
Beneficial Owners of the Series I Bonds. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry only system has been obtained from 
sources that the Authority believes to be reliable, but neither the Authority nor the Underwriters takes responsibility 
for the accuracy thereof. 

DISCONTINUANCE OF BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 
 

Certificated Series I Bonds   

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Series I Bonds at 
any time by giving reasonable notice to the Authority or the Trustee.  In addition, the Authority may determine that 
continuation of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository) is not in the 
best interests of the Beneficial Owners of the Series I Bonds.  If for either reason the Book-Entry Only System is 
discontinued, Series I Bond certificates will be delivered as described in the Agreement and the Beneficial Owner, 
upon registration of certificates held in the Beneficial Owner’s name, will become the Bondowner.  Thereafter, the 
Series I Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of the Series I Bonds in other authorized 
denominations and of the same maturity, upon surrender thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee.  
The transfer of any Series I Bond may be registered on the books maintained by the Trustee for such purpose only 
upon assignment in form satisfactory to the Trustee.  For every exchange or registration of transfer of the Series I 
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Bonds, the Authority and the Trustee may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other 
governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or registration of transfer, but no other charge 
may be made to the Bondowner for any exchange or registration of transfer of the Series I Bonds.  The Trustee will 
not be required to transfer or exchange any Series I Bond during the notice period preceding any redemption if such 
Series I Bond (or any part thereof) is eligible to be selected or has been selected for redemption. 

Transfer and Exchange 

In the event that the Book-Entry Only System is discontinued, the following provisions would apply:  The 
Series I Bonds are transferable by the Registered Owner, in person or by its attorney duly authorized in writing, at 
the office of the Trustee, upon surrender of the Series I Bond to the Trustee for cancellation.  Upon the transfer, a 
new Series I Bond or Series I Bonds in authorized denominations of the same aggregate principal amount will be 
issued to the transferee at the same office.  No transfer will be effective unless represented by such surrender and 
reissue.  The Series I Bonds may also be exchanged at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee for a new 
Series I Bond or Series I Bonds in authorized denominations of the same aggregate principal amount without transfer 
to a new registered owner.  Exchanges and transfers will be without expense to the owner except for applicable taxes 
or other governmental charges, if any.  The Trustee will not be required to make an exchange or transfer of the Series 
I Bonds (except in connection with any optional or mandatory tender of the Series I Bonds) (i) if the Series I Bonds 
(or any portion thereof) have been selected for redemption or (ii) during the fifteen (15) days preceding any date 
fixed for selection for redemption if the Series I Bonds (or any portion thereof) are eligible to be selected for 
redemption. 

Neither the Authority nor the Trustee will be required (a) to register, transfer or exchange Series I Bonds for 
a period of fifteen (15) days next preceding an interest payment on the Series I Bonds or next preceding any 
selection of Series I Bonds to be redeemed or thereafter until the mailing of any notice of redemption or (b) to 
register, transfer or exchange any Series I Bonds called for redemption. 

Payment of Principal and Interest on Certificated Series I Bonds 

While the Series I Bonds bear interest at the ARS Rate, interest on the Series I Bonds will be payable in 
immediately available funds by wire or bank transfer within the continental United States from the Trustee to the 
Registered Owners, determined as of the close of business on the applicable record date, at their addresses as shown 
on the registration books maintained by the Trustee. 

 
Principal of any Series I Bond bearing interest at the ARS Rate will be payable by wire or bank transfer in 

immediately available funds within the continental United States from the Trustee to the Registered Owner only upon 
presentation and surrender of such Series I Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, or such other 
address specified in writing by the Trustee to the Bondowner. 

 

THE PROJECT 

The proceeds from the sale of the Series I Bonds will be used to: (A) refinance the Series F Bonds which 
financed (i) the design and construction of an approximately 35,000 square foot, two-story dormitory 
accommodating approximately 120 students; (ii) the renovation and repair of approximately 40 housing units by 
upgrading the electrical and heating systems, installing new data transmission equipment, installing new lighting and 
plumbing fixtures, adding lounge areas, repairing walls and floors, painting exterior and interior surfaces, and 
installing new landscaping; and (iii) repairs and renovations on the Cushing Martin Building; (B) refinance the Pool 
D Loan made from the Series D Bonds which financed and refinanced (i) the construction and equipping of an 
approximately 36,000 square foot dormitory accommodating approximately 133 students; (ii) construction of an 
approximately 62,000 square foot library; and (iii) renovations to the Institution’s buildings and acquisition of 
equipment on the Campus; (C) refinance a portion of the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series 
G which financed (i) the renovation and repair of the Commonwealth Court Town Houses; (ii) repairs and 
renovations on the Cushing Library; (iii) renovation and repair of the Student Union Building; (iv) various routine 
capital expenditures of the Institution; and (v) the refunding of a portion of the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Stonehill 
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College Issue, Series E which financed or refinanced the Duffy Academic Center, townhouse residences, a sports and 
student activity center, sewerage system additions, additions and renovations to the Science and Building and 
Grounds Buildings, a parking lot and various other facilities on the Institution’s Campus; and (D) pay certain costs 
associated with the issuance of the Series I Bonds. 

PLAN OF REFINANCING 

A portion of the proceeds of the Series I Bonds will be applied to advance refund all of the outstanding Series 
F Bonds and a portion of the outstanding Series G Bonds.  A portion of the proceeds of the Series I Bonds will be 
applied to the prepayment of the Pool D Loan.  The principal balance of the Pool D Loan to be refinanced is 
approximately $15,063,068.05 and a portion of the Series I Bond proceeds will be deposited into an account to pay all 
amounts due under the Pool D Loan (the “Pool D Payoff Account”).  The principal balance of the Series F Bonds to be 
refunded is estimated at $6,180,000.00 and a portion of the Series I Bond proceeds will be deposited into refunding trust 
fund for the Series F Bonds (the “Series F Bonds Refunding Trust Fund”).  The principal balance of the Series G Bonds 
to be refunded is estimated at $6,150,000.00 and a portion of the Series I Bond proceeds will be deposited into 
refunding trust fund for the Series G Bonds (the “Series G Bonds Refunding Trust Fund”).  The Series F Refunding 
Trust Fund and the Series G Refunding Trust Fund will be established pursuant to separate refunding trust agreements 
among the Institution, the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as Refunding Trustee (collectively, the 
“Refunding Trust Agreements”).  The money on deposit in the Series F Refunding Trust Fund and the Series G 
Refunding Trust Fund will be used to purchase certain direct obligations of the United States of America (the 
“Defeasance Obligations”).   

 
The Defeasance Obligations will be in a principal amount sufficient to pay the principal of, the premium and 

interest on (a) all of the outstanding Series F Bonds through July 1,2006, and to redeem on July 1, 2006 all outstanding 
Series F Bonds at a redemption price of 101% of the principal amount thereof; and (b) a portion of the outstanding 
Series G Bonds through July 1, 2008, and to redeem on July 1, 2008 a portion of the outstanding Series G Bonds at a 
redemption price of 101% of the principal amount thereof. 
 

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL CALCULATIONS 

 Chris D. Berens, CPA, P.A., an independent certified public accountant (“Berens”), will verify: (a) the 
arithmetical accuracy of certain mathematical computations of the adequacy of the cash and the maturing principal of 
and interest on, the investment securities to pay, when due, the maturing principal of, interest on and related call 
premium requirements of the Series F Bonds and the Series G Bonds to be refunded; and (b) the mathematical 
computations supporting the conclusion of Bond Counsel that the Bonds are not “arbitrage bonds” under the Code 
and the regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 
 The verification performed by Berens will be solely based upon data, information and documents provided to 
them by the Underwriter, and will be restricted to verifying the arithmetical accuracy of certain computations at the 
direction of the Underwriter.  Berens has not made, and will not make, a study or evaluation of the assumptions and 
information upon which the computations are based and, accordingly, will not express an opinion or any other level of 
assurance on the data used, the reasonableness of the assumptions, or the ability to achieve the forecasted outcome. 
 

INTEREST RATE HEDGE AGREEMENT 
 

The Institution has entered into an interest rate hedge agreement (the “Swap” or the “Swap Agreement”) 
with the Bank (in such capacity, the “Counterparty”), in the notional amount of $28,865,000.  The Swap Agreement 
has an effective date of October 20, 2005.  The Swap Agreement terminates on July 1, 2028.  The notional amount 
of the Swap equals the approximate outstanding principal balance of the Pool D Loan, the Series F Bonds and a 
portion of the Series G Bonds.  Pursuant to the Swap Agreement, the Institution has agreed to pay a fixed rate to the 
Counterparty in exchange for the Counterparty’s agreement to pay the Institution a variable rate. 
 

The Swap may be subject to periodic “mark-to-market” valuations and may have a negative impact on the 
financial operations of the Institution.  In addition, the Counterparty may be able to terminate the Swap upon certain 
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events of default under the Swap Agreement.  Under certain market conditions, the Institution could be required to 
make a material termination payment to the Counterparty of a terminated Swap.  In addition, the Institution may be 
exposed to basis risk, and the amounts received from the Counterparty under the Swap Agreement may be less than 
the Institution’s total interest cost on the indebtedness that corresponds to the notional amount of the Swap.   
 

ADDITIONAL DEBT AND PARITY INDEBTEDNESS 
 
Additional Bonds 
 
 In addition to the Bonds, the Agreement authorizes the Authority at its option to issue additional bonds on a 
parity with the Bonds (the “Additional Bonds”), to refund bonds previously issued (including the Series I Bonds), or 
to finance or refinance other projects of the Institution permitted by the Act, if certain conditions are met.  These 
include delivery of the following: 

(i) a certificate of an architect acceptable to the Authority setting forth the estimated cost of the 
project being financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Additional Bonds, the estimated 
amounts which will be required from month to month for paying such cost, and the estimated date 
of completion of such project; and 

(ii) a certificate acceptable to the Authority of an officer of the Institution stating that the maximum 
Total Principal and Interest Requirements in any future fiscal year for the Bonds, and the 
proposed Additional Bonds, Alternative Indebtedness and other long-term indebtedness will not 
exceed thirteen percent (13%) of the unrestricted operating revenues as shown on the most recent 
audited financial statements of the Institution.  See APPENDIX C-2 – SUMMARY OF THE 
AGREEMENT – Additional Bonds. 

Alternative Indebtedness 
 
 The Institution may incur Alternative Indebtedness secured equally and ratably with the Bonds and any 
Additional Bonds as to the lien on the Institution’s Tuition Receipts to finance or refinance any capital project or 
projects of the Institution or guarantee the indebtedness of others on a parity with the Bonds, Additional Bonds and 
Alternative Indebtedness (provided that the indebtedness guaranteed, if issued directly by the Institution, could be 
issued as Alternative Indebtedness under the Agreement) but in each case only with the written consent of the 
Authority, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Such consent may be given if the Institution is able to 
meet certain conditions which include delivery of: 
 

(i) an opinion of a nationally recognized bond counsel satisfactory to the Authority that the 
agreement between the Institution and the Alternative Indebtedness lender (the “Alternative 
Lender”), and any supplement to the Agreement, and that the creation of security interests in the 
Tuition Receipts of the Institution for the benefit of the holders of Alternative Indebtedness are 
permitted by law and will not materially adversely affect the rights of the Bondowners to realize 
upon their share of the security interests in the Tuition Receipts of the Institution; 

(ii) except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, a certificate of an architect setting forth the 
estimated Cost of the project or projects to be financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the 
Alternative Indebtedness, the estimated amounts which will be required from month to month for 
paying such cost, the estimated date of completion of such project or projects and a statement by 
the architect that, in his or her opinion, the proceeds of such Alternative Indebtedness, together 
with other available moneys, are not less than the total cost of such project; and 

(iii) a certificate acceptable to the Authority of an officer of the Institution stating that the maximum 
Total Principal and Interest Requirements in any future fiscal year for the Bonds, Additional 
Bonds, Alternative Indebtedness (including such proposed Alternative Indebtedness) and other 
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long-term indebtedness will not exceed thirteen percent (13%) of the unrestricted operating 
revenues as shown on the most recent audited financial statements of the Institution. 

 Consent of the Authority to the incurring of Alternative Indebtedness is also conditioned on its approval of 
a written agreement between the Institution and the Alternative Lender.  Unless waived by the Authority, such 
agreement shall contain, among other things, provisions stating that: (i) any lien on any property of the Institution to 
secure Alternative Indebtedness shall also be extended to equally and ratably secure the Bonds and Additional 
Bonds; and (ii) the remedies exercisable by the Authority and the Trustee under the Agreement shall be the sole and 
exclusive remedies of the Alternative Lender and the trustee for the Alternative Lender, if any; provided, however, 
that additional remedies may be permitted by the Authority.  The agreement securing Alternative Indebtedness shall 
also contain specific terms of allocation between the Bonds, Additional Bonds and the Alternative Indebtedness 
(based on the levels of outstanding indebtedness of Bonds, Additional Bonds and Alternative Indebtedness from time 
to time, which may include interest to the extent permitted by such agreement) of any net proceeds derived from the 
exercise of the rights and remedies of secured parties under the Agreement and/or any agreement securing 
Alternative Indebtedness.  See APPENDIX C-2 – SUMMARY OF THE AGREEMENT – Alternative Indebtedness. 
 

CERTAIN FINANCAL COVENANTS AND NEGATIVE PLEDGE 
 
 The Institution has covenanted to maintain the ratio of Unrestricted Net Assets to Bonds and Notes Payable 
(with a maturity of greater than one year) at not less than .25 to 1.0 (with “Unrestricted Net Assets” and “Bonds and 
Notes Payable” referring to corresponding items in the Institution’s audited financial statements).  In the event of a 
Major Capital Investment, such ratio need not be maintained upon the consent of the Authority, whose consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld.  For the purposes of the Agreement, a “Major Capital Investment” is defined as an 
investment of unrestricted funds to:  (i) acquire or merge with another school, college, university or other entity; (ii) 
purchase or otherwise acquire land or buildings for future development of the Institution; or (iii) purchase other 
substantial properties or rights, the purpose of which is to provide increased opportunity for the Institution to 
compete for students or otherwise enhance net revenues.  In years subsequent to the acquisition, the amount of non-
donor restricted funds utilized for such Major Capital Investment will be added back to the sum of Unrestricted Net 
Assets for the purpose of calculating this ratio. 
 
 If the ratio of Unrestricted Net Assets to Bonds and Notes Payable (with a maturity of greater than one year) 
for the preceding fiscal year is less than .5 to 1.0, then the Institution must fund, over a period of eighteen months in 
equal semiannual installments, or with an acceptable letter of credit or insurance policy, the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund in an amount equal to the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement.  In the event that the ratio of Unrestricted 
Net Assets to Bonds and Notes Payable (with a maturity of greater than one year)  is equal to or greater than .75 to 
1.0 for two successive fiscal years, the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be transferred to 
the Institution free of the lien of the Agreement.  See APPENDIX C-2 – SUMMARY OF THE AGREEMENT. 
 
 The Institution may not incur short-term indebtedness for borrowed money outstanding at any one time 
exceeding fifteen percent (15%) of revenues from student tuition and fees as shown in its most recent audited 
financial statements and shall have no short-term indebtedness outstanding for a period of at least thirty (30) 
consecutive days in each of its fiscal years. 
 
 Prior to the issuance of any new long-term debt other than Additional Bonds and Alternative Indebtedness, 
the Institution shall provide the Authority and the Trustee a certificate acceptable to the Authority of an Authorized 
Officer of the Institution stating that according to audited financial statements for the prior fiscal year, maximum 
Total Principal and Interest Requirements in any future year on all Outstanding debt (excluding internal loans due to 
one Institution fund from another) and the proposed new debt does not exceed thirteen percent (13%) of the 
unrestricted operating revenues as shown on the most recent audited financial statements of the Institution. 
 
 The Institution has covenanted not to grant a mortgage or otherwise grant a security interest in any of the 
currently existing buildings (excepting only the student union building), including the real property appurtenant 
thereto, or fixtures located on the Institution’s campus (the “Existing Buildings”) to secure indebtedness, unless the 
Institution shall grant to the Authority a mortgage or security interest in the portion of the Existing Buildings to be 
used to secure such indebtedness, concurrently with the granting of a mortgage or security interest to any other 
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mortgagee or secured party, which places the Authority in a parity position in every respect with such mortgagee or 
secured party.  The Institution has covenanted not to sell, transfer, lease, convey or grant or otherwise dispose of any 
of the Existing Buildings, or permit others to occupy the same except to carry out the purposes of the Institution, 
without the Authority’s written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The Authority may 
waive any of the above restrictions with regard to encumbrance or disposition of up to fifteen percent (15%) of the 
aggregate value of the Existing Buildings at any time and the Authority’s waiver of such restrictions at any given 
time shall not be construed as a waiver or a relinquishment in the future of such requirements.  One of the 
Institution’s Existing Buildings is subject to prior mortgage liens, as more fully described in APPENDIX A under 
“Outstanding Indebtedness.” 
 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES 

 The estimated sources and uses of funds in connection with the Series I Bonds are as follows: 

Estimated Sources of Funds  
Principal Amount of the Series I Bonds 
 

$28,865,000.00 

 Total Sources of Funds $28,865,000.00 
Estimated Uses of Funds  

Series F Bonds Refunding Trust Fund $ 6,434,612.64 
Series G Bonds Refunding Trust Fund 6,573,909.17 
Pool D Loan Payoff Account 15,150,971.38 
Costs of Issuance (including Authority fees, underwriter’s discount,                   

bond insurance premium and remarketing fee) 
 

 
      705,506.81 

 Total Uses of Funds $28,865,000.00 

BONDOWNERS’ RISKS 

 Purchase of the Series I Bonds involves a degree of risk. In order to identify risk factors and make an informed 
investment decision, potential investors should be thoroughly familiar with this entire Official Statement (including the 
Appendices hereto) in order to make a judgment as to whether the Series I Bonds are an appropriate investment.  Certain 
of the risks associated with the purchase of the Series I Bonds are described below.  The following list of possible 
factors, while not setting forth all the factors which must be considered, contains some of the factors which should be 
considered prior to purchasing the Series I Bonds.  This discussion of risk factors is not, and is not intended to be, 
comprehensive or exhaustive.  Prospective purchasers of the Series I Bonds should give careful consideration to the 
matters referred to in the following summary.  Such summary should not be considered exhaustive, but rather 
informational only. 
 
Adequacy of Revenues 
 
 No representation or assurance can be given that the Institution will generate sufficient revenue to pay the 
Series I Bonds and to make other payments required by the Agreement.  The ability of the Institution to make payments 
under the Agreement depends, among other things, upon the capabilities of management of the Institution, economic 
conditions including the demand for private educational services, the ability of the Institution to provide services 
required by students, successful completion of the Project, confidence in the Institution, competition from other schools 
(public and private) in the Institution’s geographic area, future legislation and regulatory actions regarding educational 
mandates and the cost of compliance therewith, and the ability of the Institution to realize an adequate return on its 
investments and other factors.  No assurances can be given that the revenues available to the Institution from its 
operations will be available in amounts sufficient to make the required payments under the Agreement.  For a discussion 
of the financial condition of the Institution, see APPENDIX A – INFORMATION RELATING TO STONEHILL 
COLLEGE, INC. and APPENDIX B – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF STONEHILL COLLEGE, INC. which 
includes the audited financial statements of the Institution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. 
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Default by the Insurer 
 
 In the event that the Insurer is unable to make payments of principal of and interest on the Series I Bonds as 
such payments become due, the Series I Bonds are payable solely from moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to the 
Agreement and from certain funds held by the Trustee pursuant to the Agreement.  In such event, the remedies available 
to the Trustee may be limited by, among other things, certain risks related to bankruptcy proceedings and may also have 
been altered prior to a default by the Insurer, which has the right acting with the Authority and the Institution, without 
Bondowner consent, to amend the provisions of the Agreement governing defaults and remedies. 
 
Auction Rate Securities Market 
 

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) is conducting an inquiry relating to auction rate 
securities transactions.  As part of the inquiry, a number of participants in the auction rate securities market have 
received a letter from the SEC requesting the recipient to conduct a voluntary internal investigation of the firm's 
practices and procedures relating to auction rate securities.  Banc of America Securities LLC, the underwriter and 
broker-dealer for the Series I Bonds, has advised the Authority that it received such a letter and has responded to the 
SEC inquiry.  What action, if any, the SEC will take at the conclusion of its inquiry cannot be predicted.  It is 
possible that the inquiry could lead to changes in practices relating to auctions which, among other things, might 
adversely affect the market for, and liquidity of, auction rate securities such as the Series I Bonds.   

Possible Redemption 
 
 The Series I Bonds are subject to redemption upon the occurrence of certain events more particularly 
described under “THE SERIES I BONDS - Redemption of Series I Bonds.”  Rights of redemption include, prior to 
conversion of the interest rate on the Series I Bonds to the Fixed Rate, the right of optional redemption in whole or in 
part by the Institution without premium.  Owners of the Series I Bonds are subject to these rights of redemption and 
Bondowners will be unable to continue to hold their Series I Bonds in the event of redemption. 
 
Financial Status of the Institution and the Project 
 

Only limited information with respect to the Institution and the Project is included herein  See APPENDIX 
A – INFORMATION RELATING TO STONEHILL COLLEGE, INC. and APPENDIX B - FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF STONEHILL COLLEGE, INC.  The information was not obtained from an independent third 
party.  The financial success of the Institution, and/or the Project may affect the risk of an acceleration of the Series I 
Bonds prior to maturity. 
 
 If the Institution were to file a petition for relief under Title 11 of the United States Code (the “Federal 
Bankruptcy Code”), such filing would constitute an “Event of Default” under the Agreement permitting, under the 
terms set forth in the Agreement, the acceleration of the Series I Bonds.  At least one bankruptcy court, however, has 
temporarily prohibited an indenture trustee from declaring a default based solely upon the commencement of a 
Chapter 11 reorganization case provided that the Institution has timely made all debt service payments both before 
and after the case and no other events of default exist. 
 
Default by the Institution or the Authority 
 
 No representations or assurances can be given that the Institution or the Authority will not default in 
performing their obligations under the Agreement or any of the other financing documents.  If an Event of Default 
occurs under the Agreement, the Trustee may accelerate the maturity of the Series I Bonds and interest will cease to 
accrue on the date of acceleration, notwithstanding the fact that the Bondowners may not receive notice of such 
acceleration until after such date.  In addition, no premium will be received upon an acceleration of the Series I 
Bonds due to a default. 
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Economic Factors Beyond the Institution’s Control 
 
 Apart from competition and other business risks facing the Institution, the financial performance of the 
Institution will depend upon factors beyond the control of their management, including general national and local 
economic conditions (e.g., inflation, unemployment, population growth and distribution trends) and federal, state and 
local taxation and laws and regulations affecting the Institution. 
 
Enforceability of Remedies 
 
 The remedies available to the Trustee, the Authority and the Bondowners upon an event of default under the 
Agreement are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are, in turn, often subject to discretion and delay.  
Under existing constitutional and statutory laws and judicial decisions, including specifically the Federal Bankruptcy 
Code, a particular remedy specified by the Agreement may not be readily available or, if available, may be limited or 
subject to substantial delay.  The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the issuance and delivery of 
the Series I Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by 
principles of equity and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium and similar laws affecting the rights of 
creditors generally. 
 
Enforceability of Lien on Tuition Receipts   
 
 The Agreement provides that the Institution shall make payments to the Authority sufficient to pay the 
Series I Bonds and the interest thereon as the same become due.  The obligation of the Institution to make such 
payments is secured in part by a lien granted to the Authority by the Institution, pursuant to the Agreement, on the 
Tuition Receipts.  Such lien is subject to a parity lien on Tuition Receipts securing all other Bonds. 
 
 In the event of bankruptcy of the Institution, transfers of property by the Institution, including the payment 
of debt or the transfer of any collateral, including Tuition Receipts on or after the date which is 90 days prior to the 
commencement of the case in bankruptcy court may be subject to avoidance or recoupment as preferential transfers.  
Under certain circumstances a court may have the power to direct the use of Tuition Receipts to meet expenses of the 
Institution before paying debt service on the Bonds. 
 
 Pursuant to the Massachusetts Uniform Commercial Code, a security interest in the proceeds of Tuition 
Receipts may not continue to be perfected if such proceeds are not paid over to the Trustee by the Institution within 
nine days of their receipt.  In the event of a failure to make a payment under the Agreement, the Institution is 
obligated to pay over such proceeds within five days of receipt of written notice to do so.  If any required payment is 
not made when due, the Institution must transfer or pay over immediately to the Trustee any Tuition Receipts with 
respect to which the security interest remains perfected pursuant to law without being commingled with other funds 
(unless already so commingled).  Any Tuition Receipts thereafter received shall upon receipt by the Institution be 
transferred to the Trustee without such Tuition Receipts being commingled with other funds, in the form received 
(with necessary endorsements) up to an amount equal to the amount of the missed payment.  All amounts received 
will be distributed to Bondholders pro rata with the amounts due holders of any other Bonds. 
 
Event of Taxability 
 
 If the Institution does not comply with certain covenants of the Institution in the Agreement or if certain 
representations made by the Institution in the Agreement or certain certificates of the Institution are false or misleading, 
the interest payable on the Series I Bonds may become subject to federal income taxation retroactive to the date of 
issuance of the Series I Bonds, regardless of the date on which noncompliance or misrepresentation is ascertained.  In 
the event that interest on the Series I Bonds should become subject to federal income taxation, the Agreement does not 
provide for the redemption of the Series I Bonds, the acceleration of the payment of debt service on the Series I Bonds, 
or an increase in interest paid on the Series I Bonds. 
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Market Factors 
 
 The financial condition of the Institution as well as the market for the Series I Bonds could be affected by a 
variety of factors, some of which are beyond the Institution’s control.  There can be no assurance that an adverse event 
will not occur which might affect the market price of and the market for the Series I Bonds.  If a significant event should 
occur in the affairs of the Institution, the market for and market value of the Series I Bonds could be adversely affected. 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
 The Institution may be impacted by the cost and the limited availability and sufficiency of insurance for risks 
such as property damage and general liability.  The occurrence of natural disasters, including earthquakes, may damage 
the facilities of the Institution, interrupt utility service to the facilities, or otherwise impair the operations of the 
Institution and the generation of revenues from the facilities 
 

THE SERIES I BONDS ARE BEING OFFERED SOLELY ON THE BASIS OF THE FINANCIAL 
STRENGTH OF THE INSURER AND NOT ON THE FINANCIAL STRENGTH OF THE INSTITUTION 
OR ANY OTHER SECURITY NOTWITHSTANDING THE INFORMATION RELATING TO THE 
INSTITUTION INCLUDED HEREIN.  THE HOLDERS OF THE SERIES I BONDS WILL NOT BE ABLE 
TO ASSESS THE LIKELIHOOD THAT PAYMENT OF THE SERIES I BONDS WILL BE 
ACCELERATED BEFORE THE STATED MATURITY THEREOF BECAUSE OF AN EVENT OF 
DEFAULT UNDER THE AGREEMENT, UPON WHICH ACCELERATION THE SERIES I BONDS 
WOULD CEASE TO ACCRUE INTEREST AND WOULD BE PAYABLE AT PAR.  SEE “BOND 
INSURANCE” HEREIN. 

 

BOND INSURANCE 

 The following information has been supplied by XL Capital Assurance Inc. (the “Insurer” or “XLCA”) for 
inclusion in this Official Statement.  Reference is made to APPENDIX E for a specimen of XLCA’s policy (the 
“Policy”).  No representation is made by the Authority, the Institution, the Trustee or the Underwriter as to the accuracy 
or completeness of the information. 

The Insurer accepts no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement or any 
other information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect to the accuracy of the 
information regarding the Insurer and its affiliates set forth under this heading.  In addition, the Insurer makes no 
representation regarding the Series I Bonds or the advisability of investing in the Series I Bonds. 

General 

 The Insurer is a monoline financial guaranty insurance company incorporated under the laws of the State of 
New York.  The Insurer is currently licensed to do insurance business in, and is subject to the insurance regulation and 
supervision by, all 50 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands and Singapore.   
 

The Insurer is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of XL Capital Ltd, a Cayman Islands exempted company 
(“XL Capital Ltd”).  Through its subsidiaries, XL Capital Ltd is a leading provider of insurance and reinsurance 
coverages and financial products and services to industrial, commercial and professional service firms, insurance 
companies and other enterprises on a worldwide basis.  The ordinary shares of XL Capital Ltd are publicly traded in the 
United States and listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: XL).  XL Capital Ltd is not obligated to pay the 
debts of or claims against the Insurer. 
 

The Insurer was formerly known as The London Assurance of America Inc. (“London”), which was 
incorporated on July 25, 1991 under the laws of the State of New York.  On February 22, 2001, XL Reinsurance 
America Inc. (“XL Re”) acquired 100% of the stock of London.  XL Re merged its former financial guaranty subsidiary, 
known as XL Capital Assurance Inc. (formed September 13, 1999) with and into London, with London as the surviving 
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entity.  London immediately changed its name to XL Capital Assurance Inc.  All previous business of London was 100% 
reinsured to Royal Indemnity Company, the previous owner at the time of acquisition. 
 
Reinsurance 

The Insurer has entered into a facultative quota share reinsurance agreement with XL Financial Assurance 
Ltd. (“XLFA”), an insurance company organized under the laws of Bermuda, and an affiliate of the Insurer.  
Pursuant to this reinsurance agreement, the Insurer expects to cede up to 90% of its business to XLFA.  The Insurer 
may also cede reinsurance to third parties on a transaction-specific basis, which cessions may be any or a 
combination of quota share, first loss or excess of loss.  Such reinsurance is used by the Insurer as a risk 
management device and to comply with statutory and rating agency requirements and does not alter or limit the 
Insurer’s obligations under any financial guaranty insurance policy.  With respect to any transaction insured by 
XLCA, the percentage of risk ceded to XLFA may be less than 90% depending on certain factors including, without 
limitation, whether XLCA has obtained third party reinsurance covering the risk.  As a result, there can be no 
assurance as to the percentage reinsured by XLFA of any given financial guaranty insurance policy issued by 
XLCA, including the Policy. 
 
 Based on the audited financials of XLFA, as of December 31, 2004, XLFA had total assets, liabilities, 
redeemable preferred shares and shareholders’ equity of $1,173,450,000, $558,655,000, $39,000,000 and $575,795,000, 
respectively, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“US GAAP”). 
XLFA’s insurance financial strength is rated “Aaa” by Moody’s and “AAA” by S&P and Fitch Inc. In addition, XLFA 
has obtained a financial enhancement rating of “AAA” from S&P.   

 
The obligations of XLFA to the Insurer under the reinsurance agreement described above are 

unconditionally guaranteed by XL Insurance (Bermuda) Ltd ("XLI"), a Bermuda exempted company and one of the 
world's leading excess commercial insurers.  XLI is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of XL Capital Ltd.  In 
addition to A.M. Best’s financial strength rating of “A+” and issuer credit rating of “aa-”, XLI’s insurance financial 
strength rating is “Aa2” (as of September 13, 2005, XLI is on review for downgrade) by Moody’s, “AA-” by 
Standard & Poor’s (On September 20, 2005, Standard & Poor’s placed XLI on CreditWatch with negative 
implications) and “AA” (Ratings Watch Negative) by Fitch.  Moody’s also placed the “A2” senior debt rating of XL 
Capital Ltd and the other insurance financial strength ratings of various insurance operating subsidiaries of XL 
Capital Ltd (other than XLCA and XLFA) on review for possible downgrade on September 13, 2005.  Standard & 
Poor’s also placed the “A” senior debt rating of XL Capital Ltd and the other financial strength ratings of various 
insurance operating subsidiaries of XL Capital Ltd (other than XLCA and XLFA) on CreditWatch with negative 
implications on September 20, 2005.  On September 15, 2005, A.M. Best placed each of XL Capital Group’s 
(which does not include XLCA or XLFA) and XLI’s respective financial strength ratings of “A+” and their issuer 
credit ratings of “aa-” under review with negative implications. The ratings of XLFA, XLI or any other member of 
the XL Capital Ltd group of companies are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities, including the Bonds 
and are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s or Fitch. 
 

Notwithstanding the capital support provided to the Insurer described in this section, the Bondowners will have 
direct recourse against the Insurer only, and neither XLFA nor XLI will be directly liable to the Bondowners.  
 
Financial Strength and Financial Enhancement Ratings of XLCA 

The Insurer’s insurance financial strength is rated “Aaa” by Moody’s and “AAA” by Standard & Poor’s and 
Fitch, Inc. (“Fitch”).  In addition, XLCA has obtained a financial enhancement rating of “AAA” from Standard & Poor’s.  
These ratings reflect Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s and Fitch’s current assessment of the Insurer’s creditworthiness and 
claims-paying ability as well as the reinsurance arrangement with XLFA described under “Reinsurance” above.  

The above ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities, including the Series I Bonds and are 
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s or Fitch.  Any downward revision or 
withdrawal of these ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series I Bonds.  The Insurer does not 
guaranty the market price of the Series I Bonds nor does it guaranty that the ratings on the Series I Bonds will not be 
revised or withdrawn. 
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Capitalization of the Insurer 

 Based on the audited financials of XLCA, as of December 31, 2004, XLCA had total assets, liabilities, and 
shareholder’s equity of $827,815,000, $593,849,000, and $233,966,000, respectively, determined in accordance with 
U.S. GAAP. 
 

Based on the audited statutory financial statements for XLCA as of December 31, 2004 filed with the State 
of New York Insurance Department, XLCA has total admitted assets of $341,937,000, total liabilities of 
$143,494,000 and total capital and surplus of $198,443,000 determined in accordance with statutory accounting 
practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory authorities (“SAP”).   
 
Incorporation by Reference of Financials  

For further information concerning XLCA and XLFA, see the financial statements of XLCA and XLFA, 
and the notes thereto, incorporated by reference in this Official Statement.  The financial statements of XLCA and 
XLFA are included as exhibits to the periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
“Commission”) by XL Capital Ltd and may be reviewed at the EDGAR website maintained by the Commission.  All 
financial statements of  XLCA and XLFA included in, or as exhibits to, documents filed by XL Capital Ltd pursuant 
to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on or prior to the date of this Official 
Statement, or after the date of this Official Statement but prior to termination of the offering of the Series I Bonds, 
shall be deemed incorporated by reference in this Official Statement.  Except for the financial statements of XLCA 
and XLFA, no other information contained in XL Capital Ltd’s reports filed with the Commission is incorporated by 
reference. Copies of the statutory quarterly and annual statements filed with the State of New York Insurance 
Department by XLCA are available upon request to the State of New York Insurance Department. 

Regulation of the Insurer 

The Insurer is regulated by the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York.  In addition, the 
Insurer is subject to regulation by the insurance laws and regulations of the other jurisdictions in which it is licensed.  
As a financial guaranty insurance company licensed in the State of New York, the Insurer is subject to Article 69 of 
the New York Insurance Law, which, among other things, limits the business of each insurer to financial guaranty 
insurance and related lines, prescribes minimum standards of solvency, including minimum capital requirements, 
establishes contingency, loss and unearned premium reserve requirements, requires the maintenance of minimum 
surplus to policyholders and limits the aggregate amount of insurance which may be written and the maximum size of 
any single risk exposure which may be assumed.  The Insurer is also required to file detailed annual financial 
statements with the New York Insurance Department and similar supervisory agencies in each of the other 
jurisdictions in which it is licensed. 
 

The extent of state insurance regulation and supervision varies by jurisdiction, but New York and most 
other jurisdictions have laws and regulations prescribing permitted investments and governing the payment of 
dividends, transactions with affiliates, mergers, consolidations, acquisitions or sales of assets and incurrence of 
liabilities for borrowings. 
 

THE FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICIES ISSUED BY THE INSURER, INCLUDING 
THE POLICY, ARE NOT COVERED BY THE PROPERTY/CASUALTY INSURANCE SECURITY FUND 
SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE 76 OF THE NEW YORK INSURANCE LAW. 

The principal executive offices of the Insurer are located at 1221 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New 
York 10020 and its telephone number at this address is (212) 478-3400. 
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LEGALITY OF SERIES I BONDS FOR INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT 

The Act provides that the Series I Bonds are legal investments in which all public officers and public bodies 
of the Commonwealth or its political subdivisions, all Massachusetts insurance companies, trust companies, savings 
banks, cooperative banks, banking associations, investment companies, executors, administrators, trustees and other 
fiduciaries, may properly and legally invest funds, including capital in their control or belonging to them.  The Series 
I Bonds, under the Act, are securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by any 
Commonwealth or municipal officer or any agency or political subdivision of the Commonwealth for any purpose for 
which the deposit of bonds or other obligations of the Commonwealth is now or may hereafter be authorized by law. 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS NOT LIABLE ON SERIES I BONDS 

The Series I Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or liability of the Commonwealth or any 
political subdivision thereof, or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth or of any such political 
subdivision, but shall be payable solely from Revenues derived by the Authority under the Agreement.  Neither the 
faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the 
payment of the principal of or interest on the Series I Bonds.  The Act does not in any way create a so-called moral 
obligation of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof to pay debt service in the event of default by 
the Institution.  The Authority has no taxing power. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

 The Authority has determined that no financial or operating data concerning the Authority is material to any 
decision to purchase, hold or sell the Series I Bonds and the Authority will not provide any such information.  The 
Institution has undertaken all responsibilities for any continuing disclosure to Bondowners as described below, and 
the Authority shall have no liability to the Bondowners or any other person with respect to such disclosures. 

 The Institution has covenanted for the benefit of Bondowners to provide certain financial information and 
operating data relating to the Institution by not later than October 1 of each fiscal year beginning with the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2005 (the “Annual Report”), and to provide notice of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if 
deemed by the Institution to be material.  The Annual Report will be filed on behalf of the Institution with each 
Nationally Recognized Securities Information Repository and with the appropriate State Repository if such 
repository is established.  The notices of material events will be filed on behalf of the Institution with the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board.  The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report or the 
notices of material events is summarized in APPENDIX G – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
AGREEMENT.  These covenants have been made in order to assist the successful bidder for the Series I Bonds in 
complying with Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.  To date, the Institution has 
complied in all material respects with its previous continuing disclosure agreements. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority (“Bond Counsel”), based upon an 
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, compliance 
with certain covenants, interest on the Series I Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”).  Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that 
interest on the Series I Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate 
alternative minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current 
earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. 

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Series I Bonds and any profit on 
the sale of the Series I Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and that the Series I Bonds are 
exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. Bond Counsel has not opined as to other Massachusetts tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Series I Bonds.  Prospective Bondowners should be aware, however, that 
the Series I Bonds are included in the measure of Massachusetts estate and inheritance taxes, and the Series I Bonds 
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and the interest thereon are included in the measure of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise taxes.  
Bond Counsel has not opined as to the taxability of the Series I Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any 
state other than Massachusetts.  A complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in 
APPENDIX F hereto. 

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Series I Bonds.  The Authority and the 
Institution have covenanted to comply with certain restrictions designed to ensure that interest on the Series I Bonds 
will not be included in federal gross income.  Failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the 
Series I Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original 
issuance of the Series I Bonds.  The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these covenants.  Certain 
requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Agreement, and other relevant documents may be 
changed and certain actions (including, without limitation, defeasance of the Series I Bonds) may be taken or omitted 
under the circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents.  Bond Counsel has not 
undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or 
not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Series I Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of 
interest on, the Series I Bonds.  Further, no assurance can be given that pending or future legislation, including 
amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation, including amendments to the Code, or any 
regulatory or administrative development with respect to existing law, will not adversely affect the value of, or the 
tax status of interest on, the Series I Bonds.  Prospective Bondowners are urged to consult their own tax advisors 
with respect to proposals to restructure the federal income tax. 

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Series I Bonds is excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the ownership or 
disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series I Bonds may otherwise affect a Bondowner’s federal 
or state tax liability.  The nature and extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status 
of the Bondowner or the Bondowner’s other items of income or deduction.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion 
regarding any such other tax consequences, and Bondowners should consult with their own tax advisors with respect 
to such consequences. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

All legal matters incidental to the authorization and issuance of the Series I Bonds by the Authority are 
subject to the approval of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel, whose opinion approving 
the validity and tax exempt status of the Series I Bonds will be delivered with the Series I Bonds.  Certain legal 
matters will be passed on for the Institution by its counsel, Brown Rudnick Berlack Israels LLP, Boston, 
Massachusetts, and for the Underwriter by its counsel, Edwards & Angell, LLP, Providence, Rhode Island.   

RATING 

Moody’s Investor’s Service (“Moody’s”) has assigned the Series I Bonds a rating of “Aaa” based on the 
understanding that the Policy will be issued by the Insurer upon the original issuance of the Series I Bonds and will 
be in place at all times while the Series I Bonds are outstanding.  In addition, Moody’s has assigned an underlying 
rating on the Institution of “A2” without consideration of the Policy.  Such ratings reflect only the views of Moody’s 
and any desired explanation of the significance of such ratings should be obtained from Moody’s.  There is no 
assurance that a particular rating will apply for any given period of time or that it will not be lowered or withdrawn 
entirely if, in the judgment of the agency originally establishing the rating, circumstances so warrant.  The 
Underwriter has undertaken no responsibility either to bring to the attention of the Owners of the Series I Bonds any 
proposed revision or withdrawal of the rating of the Series I Bonds or to oppose any such proposed revision or 
withdrawal.  Any downward revision or withdrawal of such rating could have an adverse effect on the market price 
of the Series I Bonds.  Such rating should not be taken as a recommendation to buy or hold the Series I Bonds. 
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UNDERWRITING 

Banc of America Securities LLC has agreed to purchase the Series I Bonds at an Underwriter’s discount of 
$92,413.80 from the principal amount set forth on the cover page hereof.  The Institution has agreed to indemnify the 
Underwriter and the Authority against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities arising under federal and state 
securities laws. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

The references found herein to the Agreement are brief summaries of certain provisions thereof.  Such 
summaries do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the Agreement for full and complete statements 
of such provisions.  The agreements of the Authority with the Bondowners are fully set forth in the Agreement, and 
neither any advertisement of the Series I Bonds nor this Official Statement is to be construed as constituting an 
agreement by the Authority, Institution or Underwriter with the Bondowners.  So far as any statements are made in 
this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, they are intended merely as 
such and not as representations of fact. 

Information relating to DTC and the book-entry system described under the heading “THE SERIES I 
BONDS” has been furnished by DTC.  None of the Authority, the Institution or the Underwriter makes any 
representations or warranties whatsoever with respect to such information. 

APPENDIX A – INFORMATION RELATING TO STONEHILL COLLEGE, INC. contains certain 
information provided by Stonehill College, Inc. relating to the Institution.  APPENDIX B – FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF STONEHILL COLLEGE, INC. sets forth the audited financial statements of the Institution for 
its fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 and the report of its independent certified public accountants, 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP. Neither the Authority nor the Underwriter makes any representations or warranties 
whatsoever with respect to such information.  The Authority and the Underwriter have relied on the information 
contained in APPENDIX A and APPENDIX B. 

APPENDIX C-1 – DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS, APPENDIX C-2 – SUMMARY OF THE 
AGREEMENT, APPENDIX F – FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION and APPENDIX G – FORM OF 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT have been prepared by Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the 
Authority.   

APPENDIX D – SUMMARY OF PROCEDURES RELATING TO AUCTION RATE SECURITIES has 
been prepared by Edwards & Angell, LLP, counsel to the Underwriter. 

APPENDIX E – SPECIMEN FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY has been furnished by 
the Insurer. 

All of the Appendices attached hereto are incorporated as an integral part of this Official Statement. 

MASSACHUSETTS HEALTH AND EDUCATIONAL 
FACILITIES AUTHORITY 

By:   /s/ Benson T. Caswell    
 Executive Director 
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APPENDIX A 
 
 

October 13, 2005 
 
Massachusetts Health and Educational 
Facilities Authority 
99 Summer Street, Suite 1000 
Boston, Massachusetts 02110-1240 
 
 
Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
 We are pleased to submit the following with respect to Stonehill College, Inc. (the “College” or 
“Stonehill”) and the Project.  This letter and the information contained herein are submitted to the 
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority for inclusion in its Official Statement relating 
to its Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series I, 2005.  All information contained herein was 
obtained from the College’s records unless otherwise specified. 
 
 
HISTORY 
 
 Stonehill is a private, co-educational college with a 57-year Catholic tradition that offers 
undergraduate degrees to its approximately 2,300 full and part-time students.  The predecessor institution 
to the College was founded in 1934 by the priests and brothers of the Congregation of Holy Cross (the 
“Congregation”).  The Congregation, begun in 1837 by Father Basil Moreau in Sainte Croix, commune 
of LeMans, France, was responsible for founding the University of Notre Dame in 1842. 
 
 The original charter was granted to the Foundation of Our Lady of Holy Cross by the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts on August 13, 1934, for the establishment of a seminary in North 
Dartmouth, Massachusetts.  To allow for increased enrollment, the Congregation acquired title to the 
North Easton estate of the late Frederick Lothrop Ames and moved the seminary in October 1935.  For 
the next thirteen years, Our Lady of Holy Cross Seminary, North Easton, offered a two-year program of 
collegiate study to candidates for Holy Orders in the Congregation. 
 
 In 1948, the Congregation amended its charter to authorize the awarding of “all degrees and 
academic honors usually granted and conferred by colleges in the Commonwealth, except medical 
degrees.”  That fall, the College enrolled students in courses leading to bachelor’s degrees in the arts and 
sciences.  One year later, a curriculum of study in business administration was inaugurated.  In 
September 1951, the College expanded enrollment by admitting women students and in December 1959, 
Stonehill received full accreditation and membership in the New England Association of Schools and 
Colleges. In 1971, the College further amended its charter to change the school’s name to “Stonehill 
College, Inc.” 
 
 Since the first commencement exercises in 1952, the College has graduated more than 19,000 
students.
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ACCREDITATION AND MEMBERSHIPS 
 
 The College is accredited by the New England Association of Schools and Colleges. 
 
 The College is also a member of the American Council on Education, the Association of 
Independent Colleges and Universities in Massachusetts, the National Association of College and 
University Business Officers, the National Association of Independent Colleges and Universities, the 
Association of Catholic Colleges, the American Assembly of Collegiate Schools of Business, the Council 
of Independent Colleges, and the Association of American Colleges and Universities.  
 
 
MISSION AND GOALS 
 
 Stonehill College seeks to mark out a place among the nation’s quality institutions of higher 
education.  It is the mission of the College to provide education of the highest caliber, grounded in the 
liberal arts, comprehensive in nature, nurtured by Catholic intellectual and moral ideals and committed to 
the creation of a just and compassionate world. 
 
 The College offers a four-year program of liberal arts studies and major concentrations that lead 
to the awarding of a bachelor’s degree.  While the faculty’s primary emphasis is on the quality of 
instruction, its members also engage in research and writing. 
 
 
ACADEMIC PROGRAM AND DEGREES CONFERRED 

 
 Academic Program 
 
 The academic program introduces students to the various disciplines of a liberal arts and sciences 
education and prepares students for graduate studies or professional positions.  Upon the successful 
completion of the academic program, a student is awarded one of the three undergraduate degrees that 
the College confers:  A.B., B.S. or B.S./B.A. degrees.  The College also offers a Master of Science in 
Accountancy degree. 
 
 The academic program embraces three areas.  Students on average take one-third of their courses 
from each area: 
 
 Cornerstone Program 
 
 The Cornerstone Program of general education lies at the heart of the liberal education offered at 
Stonehill.  By leading every student to examine critically the self, society, culture and the natural world, 
it provides the foundation for a lifetime of learning.  The Cornerstone Program develops in the student 
the inspiration and ability to pursue learning in the humanities, the social sciences and the natural 
sciences, regardless of major concentration. 
 
 The Cornerstone curriculum is distinguished by the emphasis in each course on three unifying 
structures: historical context, methodology, and values.  Courses demand proficiency in critical thinking, 
reading, writing, and speaking, as well as experience in moral reasoning, integration of knowledge, and 
leadership and collaboration. Courses beyond humanities and science requirements include a year of a 
foreign language and a course in statistical reasoning. 
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Majors   
 

 The major and minor concentrations  constitute the second broad area of the curriculum.  College 
education should both facilitate intellectual growth and equip students to take their place as responsible 
members of society.  Students prepare themselves for some field of graduate or professional study, or 
for a more immediate career in such areas as teaching, government, business, industry, or social service. 

Accordingly, students select an area of major concentration in light of career or postgraduate 
plans. In the chosen major subject, students seek the comprehensive knowledge so valued in an age of 
specialization. In addition, students may declare a minor concentration. Such a minor concentration may 
be closely related to a student’s major or may be selected as an alternative field of specialization or 
simply for personal enrichment. 

 
 In the fall of 2004, the majors in greatest demand were: 
 
 Field of Concentration Number of Students 
 Business 565  
 Psychology   280  
 Education    208  
 Biology 168  
 Communication 156  
 English   141  
 Criminology   127  
 Political Science 107  
 History 105  
 Mathematics 71 

 
 
The most popular fields of concentration as a minor in the fall of 2004 were: 

 
 Field of Concentration Number of Students 
 Secondary Education 110  
 Business Administration  67  
 Sociology  57  
 Psychology 53  
 Computer Information Systems  51  
 Spanish  44  
 Communication 35  
 Economics  30  
 Criminology 29 
 Health Care Administration 28 
 
 
 Electives 
 
 The elective component constitutes the third broad area of the curriculum.  Here the student 
exercises discretion in designing a program of study.  Elective courses may be used to deepen knowledge 
of familiar areas or to explore new areas of intellectual inquiry. 
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Degrees Conferred 
 
 The College awards three undergraduate degrees and one graduate degree: 
 
 Bachelor of Arts   (66% of 2005 Stonehill undergraduate degrees awarded) 
 
 The  program leading to a Bachelor of Arts Degree provides the student with a general education 
by introducing the student to the main areas of human knowledge and by concentrated study in one of 
these areas.  The Bachelor of Arts degree is awarded in American Studies, Chemistry, Communication, 
Computer Science (the University of Notre Dame Computer Engineering Program), Criminology, 
Economics, Education Studies, English, Gender Studies, Health Care Administration, Foreign 
Languages, History,  International Studies, Mathematics, Multidisciplinary Studies, Philosophy, Political 
Science, Psychology, Public Administration, Religious Studies, and Sociology. 
  
 Bachelor of Science   (9% of 2005 Stonehill undergraduate degrees awarded) 
 

  The Science program offers a curriculum that is designed to give the student a solid foundation in 
the basic sciences in the context of a strong general education.  Each major concentration has been 
planned to meet requirements of graduate and professional schools in the particular fields.  The Bachelor 
of Science degree is awarded in Biochemistry, Biology, Chemistry, and Computer Science.   
 
 Bachelor of Science in Business Administration   (25% of 2005 Stonehill undergraduate degrees 

awarded) 
 
 The Business Administration program provides the student with a balanced educational 
experience. A solid core of business courses is provided in the context of a strong general education.  The 
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration degree is awarded in Accounting, Finance, Management,  
Marketing, and International Business. 
 

Master of Science in Accountancy (19 graduates in 2005) 
 
In accordance with the policies of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

(AICPA), Massachusetts mandates 30 hours of college study beyond the baccalaureate to sit for the CPA 
examination. To enable students to meet this requirement, Stonehill College offers a Master of Science in 
Accountancy (MSA) degree to students who have completed an undergraduate degree. 

 
Internships and International Study 
 
 The College has developed an extensive internship program during the past several years in 
affiliation with numerous organizations. Currently, there are over 900 internship opportunities in the 
Internship Database as well as semester-long internships in New York and Washington, D.C.  Internship 
sites include local and Boston medical centers, television/radio stations, social services agencies, banks, 
brokerage houses, advertising and accounting firms,  and  various other organizations.  During the 2004-
05 academic year, approximately 400 students interned for academic credit in this program, while many 
others completed non-credit internships. 
 
 In addition, Stonehill offers to qualified students semester-long International Internship Programs 
in several locations, including London, Geneva, Dublin, Paris and Zarogoza, Spain. In recent years, 
students have been placed with such organizations as the Department of Foreign Affairs in Dublin, the 
House of Lords in London, Coeur de Femme Women’s Shelter in Paris, and Colegio Saragrado Corazón 
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de Jesús elementary school in Zaragoza.   Thirty-eight students enrolled in international internships for 
the 2004-05 academic year. 
 

Recognizing that the understanding of other peoples' cultures enables students to better 
comprehend and provide leadership to an increasingly interdependent and complex global society, and 
allows students to achieve a deeper level of self-reliance and personal understanding, Stonehill College 
allows qualified students to spend  a maximum of two semesters in an approved program of study in a 
foreign country.  Stonehill students may choose from over 100 approved programs worldwide, with 
Australia, England, Ireland, Italy and Spain among the top destinations. The College also directly 
administers programs in Spain at the Universidad de Zaragoza and the University of Granada.  During the 
2004-05 academic year, 160 Stonehill students participated in international study programs. 
 
Cooperative Arrangements 
 
 Stonehill is a member of a nine-college consortium called the Southeastern Association for 
Cooperation of Higher Education in Massachusetts (“SACHEM”).  In addition to common purchasing 
and other joint ventures, SACHEM offers cross-registration (covered by the students' full-time tuition) 
between participating institutions to increase the variety of course offerings.  The other colleges 
participating in SACHEM are: 
 
 Name of College Location in Massachusetts 

Bridgewater State College   Bridgewater 
Bristol Community College  Fall River 
Cape Cod Community College  Barnstable 
Dean College     Franklin  
Massachusetts Maritime Academy  Buzzards Bay 
Massasoit Community College  Brockton 
University of Massachusetts Dartmouth North Dartmouth 
Wheaton College    Norton 

 
Stonehill Undergraduate Research Experience (SURE) 
 
 Created in 1996, the SURE program introduces students to scholarly research through 
participation in research projects with Stonehill faculty members during the summer.  Over the last ten 
years, 39 faculty members and 159 students have participated in the program, which awards a stipend and 
housing to students on campus.  The program has yielded scholarly conference presentations by 
undergraduates and co-authored faculty/student publications in academic journals; the program has also 
contributed to improved rates of application and acceptance to graduate and professional schools. 
 
 
FACULTY AND STAFF 
 
 In fiscal year 2005, the College’s faculty consisted of 133 full-time members and 117 part-time 
members.  During fiscal year 2005, 85% of the full-time faculty had doctoral-level degrees.  The College 
awards tenure to the most distinguished of its probationary faculty.  Peers, the College administration and 
the Trustees award tenure only after a thorough review.  The College has a 65% quota on tenured faculty 
and approximately 57% of the faculty were tenured as of fiscal year 2005.  If necessary, qualified faculty 
are conferred tenurable status until there is an opening among the tenured faculty.  The College currently 
employs approximately 239 full-time administrative and staff members and approximately 94 full-time 
custodial, maintenance and campus police employees, as well as a number of part-time employees.   
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MARKETING AND RECRUITMENT OF STUDENTS 
 
  The Office of Admissions and Enrollment is responsible for meeting the College’s annual 
strategic enrollment objectives.  As a result, this office is charged with formulating a cohesive, effective 
recruitment plan.  One of the recruitment initiatives involves traveling throughout the New England and 
the Mid-Atlantic States in addition to selected cities in Illinois, Minnesota, Missouri and Florida to speak 
with interested high school students, parents, and guidance office personnel.  Professional staff recruited 
in over 800 domestic and international high schools this past fall.  These visits took the form of a college 
day/night program, a group information session, a panel presentation, or a regional/national college fair 
format.  In addition, targeted mailings to over 25,000 student names purchased from the College Entrance 
Examination Board (CEEB) Spring Search Program as well as the National Hispanic Recognition 
Program helped to build a strong inquiry pool of 18,393 potential Class of 2009 candidates. 
 

Over the last five years, the number of first-year students who have earned a high school rank in 
the top 25% has grown.  In the fall of 2004, eighty-eight (88%) earned a rank in the top 25% compared to 
eighty-five (85%) in the fall of 2000. 
 
  The College received 4,847 full-time first-year applications for the approximately 615 available 
spaces beginning fall, 2005.  A total of 2,744 students were accepted.    A total of 618 full-time first-year 
students enrolled for the 2005-06 academic year. 

 
FULL-TIME FRESHMEN APPLICATIONS, ACCEPTANCES  AND ENROLLMENTS 

 
 

Academic Year Applications Acceptances  Acceptance Rate   Fall Enrollments  Enrollment Rate 

2000-01 5,240 2,295 43.8% 631 27.5% 
2001-02 4,936 2,120 42.9% 588 27.7% 
2002-03 5,331 2,240 42.0% 566 25.3% 
2003-04 4,806 2,364 49.2% 566 23.9% 
2004-05 4,648 2,645 56.9% 614 23.2% 

 
 
The following table shows the geographical distribution of entering freshmen. 

 
GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF ENTERING FRESHMEN 

 
 

 
Academic 

Year 

 
 

Massachusetts 

 
Other 

New England 

New York, 
New Jersey, 

Washington DC

 
 

Other 

 
 

Total 

2000-01 57% 29% 10% 4% 100% 
2001-02 57% 28% 11% 4% 100% 
2002-03 51% 33% 13% 3% 100% 
2003-04 57% 28% 10% 5% 100% 
2004-05 55% 28% 13% 4% 100% 

  
 
The following table shows the percentage of male and female students and the percentage of 

residents and commuters for the past five years. 
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ANALYSIS OF FRESHMEN STUDENTS BY GENDER AND HOUSING CATEGORY 
 

 

Academic Gender  Housing 
Year Male Female  Resident Commuter 

2000-01 42% 58% 94% 6% 
2001-02 44% 56% 94% 6% 
2002-03 40% 60% 95% 5% 
2003-04 46% 54% 94% 6% 
2004-05 38% 62% 95% 5% 

 
 
The following table outlines the SAT scores of entering freshman over the past five years. 

 
AVERAGE SAT SCORES OF ENTERING FRESHMEN 

 
 

 
Academic Year 

 
Verbal/Math 

 
Total Score 

National 
Average 

Stonehill SAT Score as a 
Percent of the National Average 

2000-01 580/590 1170 1019 115% 
2001-02 580/590 1170 1020 115% 
2002-03 590/600 1190 1020 117% 
2003-04 590/600 1190 1026 116% 
2004-05 590/590 1180 1026 116% 

 
 

 
ENROLLMENT 
 
 The following table, based on fall semester registrations, shows full-time and part-time student 
enrollments and combined full-time equivalent (“FTE”) students enrolled in credit granting courses. 
 

TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 
 

Academic Year  Full-time Students Part-time Students Combined FTE Students* 
 2000-01 2,196 453 2,327 
 2001-02 2,189 429 2,311 
        2002-03 2,221 396 2,344 
        2003-04 2,236 346 2,351 
        2004-05 2,247 243 2,328 

__________ 
*  Full-time equivalent based on five courses per semester. 

 Given the size of its physical facilities and faculty, the College’s objective is to maintain the fall 
full-time student enrollment at an optimal level of approximately 2,250 full-time degree students.  Part-
time student enrollment is expected to decrease to 50 FTE for a combined total of approximately 2,300 
FTE students.  Historically, actual enrollments have exceeded budgeted levels. 

The following table shows the College’s retention rates for first-time, full-time students for the most 
recent five years for which the College has data.  To illustrate, 89% of freshmen enrolled in the 2003-04 
academic year remained at the College for their sophomore year. 
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Academic Year 
Enrolled 

  
Freshmen to Sophomore

 
Sophomore to Junior

 
Junior to Senior 

 1999-00 89% 95% 98% 
 2000-01 90% 94% 98% 
        2001-02 91% 94% 97% 
        2002-03 89% 93% 98% 
        2003-04 89% 93% 98% 

 
 
TUITION AND FEES 
 
 The following table shows the average tuition and fees, room and board rates and total fees 
charged by the College for each of the last five academic years. 
 

TUITION, FEES, ROOM AND BOARD 
 

 
Academic Year 

 
Tuition and Fees 

 
Room & Board Rate 

 
Total 

 2000-01    $17,320 $8,166  $25,486 
 2001-02    $18,360 $8,492  $26,852 
 2002-03    $19,908 $9,172  $29,080 
       2003-04            $21,302            $9,450                  $30,752 
       2004-05            $23,008            $10,206                  $33,214 

 
 For the 2005-06 academic year, the Trustees of the College have approved an increase in tuition 
and fees of 11% for first-year students and 5% for returning students; the room and board fee increase for 
all students is 3.5%. 

 
The following table shows tuition and fees for the academic year 2004-05 at the College and at 

those colleges with which Stonehill regularly competes for students. 
 

COMPARATIVE TUITION AND FEES 
 

 Tuition and Fees 
Boston University $30,402 
College of the Holy Cross 29,686 
Boston College 28,940 
Loyola College 28,470 
Fairfield University 28,415 
Bentley College 27,244 
Northeastern University 26,750 
Providence College 23,180 
Stonehill College 23,008 
Assumption College 22,425 
University of Connecticut 19,322 

__________ 
Source: “Will Not Attend Questionnaire” and “Committed Questionnaire”, FY 2004-05 
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FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 
 The following summaries and discussions of financial matters should be read in conjunction with 
the financial statements of the College, related notes and the independent accountants’ report included as 
Appendix B to this Official Statement. 
 
Accounting Matters 
 
 The College operates on a fiscal year ending June 30. The financial statements of the College 
have been prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for 
educational institutions.  The financial statements of the College for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 
and 2004, together with the opinion of the College’s independent accountants, PricewaterhouseCoopers, 
LLP, are included as Appendix B to this Official Statement.   
 
 The College’s Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Activities for the three fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2005 are presented in the following tables.  The information presented in these 
tables has been derived from the audited financial statements of the College for the respective periods, 
which are prepared according to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 116 and No. 
117.   Note that the fiscal year 2003 financial data disclosed in the tables is not presented in Appendix B. 
 



 

A-10 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
June 30 

 
 

 2003 2004 2005 
    
Assets    
Cash and cash equivalent $      10,204,855 $        9,193,582 $        8,340,478 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 
of $42,000 

297,555 532,720              491,378 

Other current assets 1,177,109 830,460 1,304,650 
Pledges receivable, net of allowance of 
$118,665, $8,900, and $12,700 at June 
30, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively 

240,593 169,300 2,254,635 

Loans receivable, net of allowance of 
$300,000 

1,989,744 2,038,597 1,598,451 

Perpetual trusts held by third parties 1,822,409 1,894,347 1,818,477 
Restricted cash 2,130,335 2,126,890 1,640,093 
Investments 93,967,891 110,030,946 127,704,745 
Property, plant and equipment, net 70,688,608 69,124,707 70,208,704 
    
          Total assets $    182,519,099 $    195,941,549 $    215,361,611 
    
Liabilities    
Accounts payable $        1,169,877 $        1,570,202 $        2,663,022 
Accrued payroll and other benefits 1,737,872 1,604,474 1,914,009 
Tuition received in advance 1,541,754 1,622,673 1,594,443 
Other liabilities 2,236,454 1,889,192 2,359,361 
Government advances for student loans 1,031,375 1,041,748 1,056,841 
Note and bonds payable 52,233,560 51,373,671 49,777,723 
    
          Total liabilities $      59,950,892 $      59,101,960 $      59,365,399 
    
Net assets:    
   Unrestricted 107,787,472 117,237,105 131,372,200 
   Temporarily restricted 5,983,279 7,904,501 9,732,824 
   Permanently restricted 8,797,456 11,697,983 14,891,188 
    
          Total net assets 122,568,207 136,839,589 155,996,212 
    
          Total liabilities and net assets $    182,519,099 $    195,941,549 $    215,361,611 
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STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 
              Years ended June 30, 

 
 2003 

 
2004 2005 

    
Operating:    
   Revenue and other support:    
      Tuition and fees, net (1) $      30,253,583 $      33,628,346 $      35,518,332 
      Federal and state grants 654,538 1,114,052 814,981 
      Private gifts 1,081,293 1,139,352 1,440,511 
      Short-term investment income 251,148 181,563 374,260 
      Auxiliary services 16,511,356 17,120,912 18,597,023 
      Other income 915,832 1,037,760 955,976 
      Nonoperating assets used for  
           operations 

5,295,724 4,861,296 4,927,307 

    
          Total operating revenue and  
              other support 

        54,963,474         59,083,281 62,628,390 

    
Expenses:    
   Instruction 15,944,565 16,474,494 17,280,245 
   Public service 289,813 822,255 652,709 
   Academic support 5,815,145 7,712,387 8,659,403 
   Student services 7,921,628 8,393,479 8,848,806 
   Institutional support 6,549,517 6,849,280 7,387,524 
   Auxiliary services 14,617,687 14,959,092 15,674,202 
   Other 865,765 847,772 1,121,657 
    
          Total expenses         52,004,120         56,058,759 59,624,546 
    
Increase in net assets from operations 2,959,354 3,024,522 3,003,844 
    
Nonoperating revenue:    
   Private gifts and grants 3,827,598 2,435,593 5,843,505 
   Realized gains (losses) 345,648 (1,599,482) 2,982,126 
   Change in unrealized appreciation 2,035,991 12,958,956 8,054,722 
   Change in perpetual trust - 71,938 (75,870) 
   Investment income 3,234,886 2,785,469 4,275,603 
   Loss on retirement of debt - (544,318) - 
   Nonoperating assets used for    
         operations 

(5,295,724) (4,861,296) (4,927,307) 

    
Increase in net assets from 
nonoperating activities 

4,148,399 11,246,860 16,152,779 

    
Total changes in net assets 7,107,753 14,271,382 19,156,623 
    
Net assets at beginning of year 115,460,454 122,568,207 136,839,589 
    
Net assets at end of year $    122,568,207 $    136,839,589 $    155,996,212 

 
(1) Tuition and fees are presented net of tuition discounts, which were: $14,416,930, $15,743,786, and  
$17,891,471 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. 
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Administration’s Discussion of Recent Financial Performance 
 
 In each year  of its existence, Stonehill has achieved an increase in net assets from operations.  
To date, capital projects have been financed in part through contributions or the use of unrestricted 
reserve funds as directed by the Board of Trustees, and in part through debt.  The following table shows 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2003, 2004 and 
2005: 
 

NET ASSETS 
June 30 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
It is the policy of the College that auxiliary enterprises be operated at the breakeven point or better to 
avoid placing an additional burden on general tuition and fees. 
 
Budgetary Procedures  
 
 Critical to the College’s budget process is the link that exists between the budget and the 
strategic plan.  The current  plan, which was developed in fiscal year 2005 with the participation of every 
constituency of the College, includes a supporting financial forecast that details revenue requirements as 
well as the financial and human resources needed for a successful implementation of the strategic plan.  
This supporting financial forecast  is the starting point for purposes of developing the budget each year. 
 

In an effort to ensure consistency between the budget and the strategic plan, the College’s 
Strategic Planning Committee has responsibility for developing and monitoring the annual operating and 
capital budgets.  The Strategic Planning Committee, which is chaired by the President, consists of the 
Financial VP and Treasurer, the VP of Advancement, the VP of Academic Affairs, the VP of Student 
Affairs, the VP of Mission, the Director of Planning & Institutional Research, two faculty 
representatives, one student representative, and other key members of the College’s management.  The 
Strategic Planning Committee submits a preliminary budget to the Board of Trustees in January for the 
purpose of setting tuition and room & board rates.  The final budget is approved by the Board of Trustees 
in late April or early May. 
 

Department heads and their respective division head monitor their budgets on an ongoing basis 
via the College’s budget system.  The budget system provides the department with the ability to compare 
budgeted and actual spending at any point in time.  The Financial Vice President and Treasurer, the 
Controller, and the Director of Budgeting & Financial Planning also observe spending on a regular basis 
in an effort to ensure that each department adheres to its budget.  A quarterly management report, 
designed to help senior management monitor the College’s current year financial results, is distributed to 
members of the Strategic Planning Committee and other interested individuals. 
 

Consistent with the strategic plan, the College has in recent years strived to realize a minimum 
annual operating margin of 3%.  The College has surpassed this level in each of the last five fiscal years.  
A budget providing for an operating margin of 3.0% was approved by the Trustees for fiscal year 2006.  
 

 2003 2004 2005 
    
    
Unrestricted $107,787,472 $117,237,105 $131,372,200 
Temporarily restricted 5,983,279 7,904,501 9,732,824 
Permanently restricted 8,797,456 11,697,983 14,891,188 
Total net assets $122,568,207 $136,839,589 $155,996,212 
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Endowment and Other Investments 
 
 Endowment. The College’s endowment has performed well relative to  higher education industry 
averages over the past five  years.  The endowment posted  a 4.3% average annual return for the five-year 
period ending June 30, 2004, while the NACUBO (National Association of College and University 
Business Officers) total equal weighted average return for that same period was 3.8% .   While the 
endowment’s market value was $96,844,000 on June 30, 2000, the value declined to $84,991,000 by June 
30, 2002.  Since then, the College’s endowment has grown by just over $33,200,000.  For fiscal year 
2005, the endowment posted a return of 14.6% and amounted to $118,215,000 as of June 30, 2005.  
Approximately 85% of the College’s endowment is categorized as unrestricted.  Each year, the 
endowment supports the College’s operating budget.  The amount of support is determined by the 
College’s endowment-spending policy, which currently states that up to 5% of the previous three years’ 
average endowment market value may be spent.  For fiscal year 2005, the College employed a spending 
rate of 4.5%, which amounted to $4,184,000.   
 
The following table shows the change in the endowment and annual endowment investment performance 
since June 2000.   
 

ENDOWMENT 
(in thousands) 

 
Fiscal Year Market Value % Change Annual Return 

    
2000 $96,844 10.7% 10.5% 
2001 $93,106 -3.9% -4.8% 
2002 $84,991 -8.7% -4.3% 
2003 $90,096 6.0% 6.4% 
2004 $103,847  15.3% 15.2% 
2005 $118,215 13.8% 14.6% 

           
 
 Funds restricted by donors for purposes other than the general purposes of the College may not 
be used to make debt service payments to the Authority for the Bonds or to meet the claims of general 
creditors. 
 

Investments.  It is the policy of the College to maintain stock and bond portfolios for the 
investment of funds not required for current operations.  Prime, Buchholz & Associates, the College’s 
investment advisor, assists in determining the portfolio’s asset allocation and in the selection of 
investment managers for each of the investment disciplines.  The portfolio is currently managed by 
Commonfund Securities Inc., Wilton, Connecticut; Grantham, Mayo, Van Otterloo & Co. LLC, Boston, 
Massachusetts; ICAP Funds, Chicago, Illinois; Iridian Asset Management LLC, Westport, Connecticut; 
Loomis Sayles & Company, L.P., Boston, Massachusetts; Pine Grove Associates Inc., Summit, New 
Jersey; Park Street Capital, Boston, Massachusetts;  Winston Partners, McLean, Virginia; Wellington 
Trust Company, LLC, Boston, Massachusetts; Farallon Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., San 
Francisco, California; AEW Capital Management, L.P., Boston, Massachusetts; Sowood Capital 
Management, L.P., Boston, Massachusetts; Barlow Partners, New York, New York; Bluestream Asset 
Management, LLC, Charlottesville, Virginia.  Performance is supervised and reviewed by the Investment 
Committee of the Board of Trustees and the Financial Vice President and Treasurer.  Investments in 
stocks, bonds, alternative investments, etc. are made with a goal of achieving results equal to or better 
than those realized by their appropriate indices. 
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 Operating capital is invested by the Financial VP and Treasurer of the College in U.S. Treasury 
obligations and money market funds.  Placement of short-term funds is determined on a “best rate 
available” basis within guidelines established by the Finance Committee of the Board of Trustees. 

 
Investments for all funds as of June 30, 2004 and 2005 are included in the following table.  
 

      INVESTMENTS  
 

  June 30, 2004   June 30, 2005  
 Cost  Fair Value  Cost  Fair Value 
Money market funds $ 10,165,704 $ 10,165,704 $ 11,882,525  $ 11,882,525
Bond funds 23,139,878 26,028,070 21,895,423  26,510,317
Stock funds 25,957,797 26,624,845 35,228,591  37,571,232
Limited Partnerships and other funds 42,089,276 47,212,327 41,965,194  51,740,671

Total $101,352,655 $110,030,946 $110,971,733  $127,704,745
 

Gifts and Bequests 
 
 The Advancement Division coordinates Stonehill’s fundraising efforts. In fiscal year 2005, 
eleven  development professionals were  engaged in the cultivation, solicitation and stewardship of gifts 
from alumni, parents, benefactors, friends, corporations, foundations and public agencies.  The VP of 
Advancement is charged with the oversight of all development activities, as well as the College’s alumni, 
public relations and communications programs.  The Assistant Vice President  of Advancement, Director 
of Development, two Associate  Directors of Development, the Director of Government Relations and 
Special Gifts, the Director of Corporate and Foundation Relations, a Planned Giving & Major Gifts 
Officer, a Development Researcher, a Special Events and Stewardship Coordinator, and a Development 
Associate assist the VP  in fundraising efforts. 
 

 In 1997, Stonehill completed a capital campaign entitled “Securing the Vision.”  A total of $23 
million was raised.  The College is currently in the leadership gifts phase of its second major fundraising 
campaign which is entitled “Attaining the Summit:  The Campaign for Stonehill College”.  A working 
goal of $55 million has been set. Thus far, $15 million in gifts, pledges and commitments has been 
raised.  The College plans to raise $20 million over the remainder of the leadership gifts phase, which 
ends in fiscal year 2007.  The campaign will conclude with the public phase spanning fiscal years 2008 
through 2010, during which the College plans to raise the remaining $20 million. 
 
 Indicated below are the results of the development initiatives conducted over the past five fiscal 
years.  Giving totals include restricted and unrestricted gifts and grants from individuals, corporations, 
foundations and public agencies. 
 

GIFT GIVING DATA 
  FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,  

 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 

Private gifts & grants $3,032,440 $2,470,552 $4,908,891 $3,574,945  $7,284,016

Alumni Contributors 4,534  5,012  4,378     4,644  4,653 
% of Solicitable Alumni 29%  31%  26%     27%  26% 
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EXISTING FACILITIES 
 
  The College is located in North Easton, Massachusetts, approximately 25 miles south of Boston.  
The campus is situated on approximately 384 acres and contains over 45 academic, administrative, 
residential and maintenance buildings.  The residential buildings each house from 50 to 240 students.  
The physical plant, which is well maintained, consists of the following buildings: 
 

 
 
Facility 

Date of  
Initial 

Construction 

Approximate 
Gross 

Square Feet 

Date of  
Additions/ 

Renovations 

 
 
Uses 

Donahue Hall 1905 40,441 1981 Offices and dining 

Alumni Hall 1905 12,135 1990 
2002 

Meeting space and offices 

Education Building 1905 4,332 1982 Classrooms and offices 

Merkert-Tracy Science Center 1949 46,245 1980 
1995 
1997 

Classrooms and laboratories 

Duffy Academic Center 1956 94,143 1962 
1968 
1973 
2001 
2003 

Classrooms, auditorium and offices 

Cushing-Martin Building 1962 37,903 1976 
2001 

Classrooms, offices 

College Center 1973 40,191 1983/92 Lounge, gymnasium, classrooms and 
faculty offices, student affairs offices, 
athletic offices 

St. Mary’s Chapel, Human  
Resource Center 

1978       11,927 2002 Chapel, offices and medical services 

Hafstrom-Swanson House 
President’s Garage 

1912 
1912 

4,894 
1,000 

1985 President’s house 

Stanger Hall 1986 22,549 1988 Classrooms, computer laboratories and offices

Sally Blair Ames Sports 
Complex 

1988 69,124 - Recreational sports 

Joseph Martin Institute 1990 28,686 - Classrooms, auditorium, archives, offices and 
meeting rooms 

Student Union Building 1959 21,816 - Classrooms, library storage, athletics,  
offices and campus police 

     

     

The Dining Commons 1991 60,958 2001 Main dining area plus offices  
for student activities 

Cardinal O’Hara Hall 1961 46,923 2000 Residences, campus lounge 
 and dormitory 
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Boland Hall 1967 56,205 2002 Residences, bookstore and women’s 
dormitory 

Commonwealth Court 
(Consisting of six buildings) 

1968 48,171 1970 Residences 

Colonial Court  
(Consisting of six buildings) 

1969 47,451 1971 
1997 

Residences 

Sullivan Hall 1981 11,917 2003 Residences 

Cascino Hall 1985 11,917 2002 Residences 

Benaglia Hall 1987 11,901 - Residences 

Flynn Hall 1988 17,129 - Residences 

Sheehan Hall 1993 17,129 2001 Residences 

Villa Theresa 1991 31,942 - Residences 

Clock Farm (including  
warehouse) 

1908 36,211 1980 Offices, shops and storage for Buildings 
and Grounds Dept. 

Notre Dame du Lac 1997 34,774 - Residences 

CSC Building, 16 Belmont  
Street 

 6,586 - Offices and Meeting Space 

Holy Cross Center 1959 99,118 - Residences 
     
MacPhaidin Library 
 
Corr Hall 
 
Guest House 
 
South House/Barn 
 
Squash Courts 
 
Cushing House 
 
RFK Building 
 

1998 
 

2000 
 

1905 
 

1905 
 

1905 
 

1825 
 
 

64,715 
 

36,019 
 

2,472 
 

1,600 
 

848 
 

2,000 
 

797 
 

- 
 
- 
 

2002 
 
- 
 
- 
 

1980 

Library 
 
Residences 
 
Residences 
 
Rental/Facilities 
 
Storage 
 
Rental 
 
Service 

Total Square Feet  1,082,169   
 
 
 
GOVERNANCE 
 

Stonehill College is a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of The Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts.  The College was founded in 1948 by the Congregation of Holy Cross, a Catholic 
religious order first established in France in 1837 (hereinafter “the Congregation”). 
 

Until 1972, responsibility for the College was vested in the Eastern Province of the 
Congregation.  On February 24, 1972, responsibility was transferred to an elected, and primarily lay, 
Board of Trustees. 
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Currently, the overall governance of the College is structured as follows: 
 

The Board of Fellows.  The Board of Fellows is a group of 19 individuals whose sole authority 
is to elect the members of the Board of Trustees.  The Fellows constitute a board made up of the 
College’s four primary constituencies – the faculty, the alumni, the priests and brothers of the 
Congregation, and the students.  The President of the College also serves, ex officio, on the Board.  Three 
faculty members are elected by the Faculty Senate, six alumni are elected by the Alumni Council and the 
President’s Council (three each), seven priests and brothers are elected by the Incorporators and two 
students are elected by the Student Government Association. 
 

The Board of Incorporators.  The Board of Incorporators represents the College’s continuing 
connection to the moral, spiritual, and educational ideals of the Congregation.  The Incorporators consist 
of all of the perpetually professed religious of the Congregation who are serving as salaried members of 
the staff  of the College.  The Provincial of the Congregation’s Eastern Province also serves on the Board 
as an ex officio member.   
 

The Incorporators serve as a board of advisement and oversight with respect to the operation and 
Catholic mission of the College.  The Incorporators are vested with the power to amend, alter or appeal 
the Bylaws of the corporation (except those sections dealing with the function or makeup of the Board of 
Fellows or Board of Trustees). 
 

The Corporation.  The Corporation refers to a joint meeting of the Board of Fellows and the 
Board of Incorporators.  The Corporation meets annually and sets the number of Trustees to be elected to 
the Board of Trustees.  The Corporation also has the power to amend, alter, or repeal those sections of 
the Bylaws that deal with the function and/or makeup of the Board of Fellows or Board of Trustees. 
 

The Board of Trustees.  The Board of Trustees is the main governing body of the College.  
Under the Bylaws, the Board must be made up of at least 15 and not more than 33 elected members.  
Additionally there are three ex-officio members with full voting rights; they are the President of the 
College, the Provincial of the Congregation’s Eastern Province, and one individual elected by the 
President’s Council.  The Board has all final authority on appointment of employees and agents of the 
College, prescribes the course of study and educational directives, and oversees the conduct of student 
affairs, college development, mission, and finances. 
 

The Board appoints the three officers of the Corporation required under Massachusetts law – the 
President, Treasurer, and Clerk – and empowers them with the duties required under Massachusetts law 
and under the By-laws of the corporation.  The Board also appoints (upon the recommendation of the 
President) the Vice Presidents for Advancement, Mission, Academic Affairs, and Student Affairs.  Under 
the Bylaws, the Treasurer is appointed to the position of Vice President for Finance.  These Vice 
Presidents serve as the President’s cabinet and oversee the day to day operations of the College.   
 

The College’s day to day operations are divided into six separate divisions – Executive, Mission, 
Academic Affairs, Student Affairs, Advancement, and Finance.   The business of the College is 
conducted through this designated chain of command and the associated committee structure. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
Thomas F. Bogan 
Venture Partner 
Greylock Partners 
Waltham, Massachusetts 
 
Rev. Arthur J. Colgan, Jr., C.S.C. 
Provincial Superior 
Eastern Province 
Congregation of Holy Cross 
Bridgeport, Connecticut  
 
Rev. Mark T. Cregan, C.S.C. 
President 
Stonehill College 
Easton, Massachusetts  
 
Daniel Devasto 
President and CEO 
Wolf & Company, P.C. 
Boston, Massachusetts 
 
William F. Devin  
Executive Vice President (Retired) 
Fidelity Investments-Capital Markets 
Boston, Massachusetts  
 
Christine A. Donovan 
Managing Director, 
Global Securities Lending 
Brown Brothers Harriman 
Boston, Massachusetts 
 
John Drew 
Chief Executive Officer 
World Trade Center 
Boston, Massachusetts 
 
Bro. Thomas A. Dziekan, C.S.C. 
Vice Rector 
Moreau Seminary 
Notre Dame, Indiana 
 
David I. Finnegan, Chair 
Attorney/Managing Partner 
Finnegan, Underwood, Ryan and Tierney 
Boston, Massachusetts  
 
 
 

 
 
Anne M. Finucane  
Executive Vice President, 
President, Northeast 
Bank of America 
Boston, Massachusetts 
 
Sol Gittleman 
Gantcher Professor of Judaic Studies 
Tufts University 
Medford, Massachusetts  
 
James G. “Lou” Gorman 
Executive Consultant, 
Community Relations and Special Events 
Boston Red Sox 
Boston, Massachusetts  
 
Patrick W. Griffin ’81 
President/CEO 
Griffin Bodi & Krause 
Manchester, New Hampshire 
 
Rev. Donald J. Grimes, C.S.C. 
Vice President for Academic Affairs 
King's College 
Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania  
 
Paul G. Kirk, Jr. 
Of Counsel 
Sullivan & Worcester 
Boston, Massachusetts  
 
Rev. Thomas P. Looney, C.S.C. 
Chairperson, Department of Theology 
Associate Professor of Systematic Theology 
King's College 
Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania  
 
Thomas J. Lucey 
Former Senior Managing Director, Chief of 
Putnam Institutional Management Business 
(Retired) 
Putnam Investments, Inc. 
Boston, Massachusetts 
 
 
 
 
 



 

A-19 

Thomas J. May 
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer 
NSTAR 
Boston, Massachusetts  
 
Kathleen (Duffy) Mazan 
Attorney 
Clinical Technology Transfer Group 
McLean, Virginia 
 
Rev. James E. McDonald, C.S.C. 
Senior Executive Assistant and Counselor to the 
President 
University of Notre Dame 
Notre Dame, Indiana 
 
Leo J. Meehan, III 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
W.B. Mason Company, Inc. 
Brockton, Massachusetts 
 
Marsha A. Moses, Ph.D. 
Associate Professor of Surgery 
Harvard Medical School/The Children’s 
Hospital 
Boston, Massachusetts  
 
Albert W. Niemi, Jr. 
Dean, Edwin L. Cox School of Business 
Administration 
Tolleson Chair in Business Leadership 
Southern Methodist University 
Dallas, Texas 
 
Rev. Thomas J. O’Hara, C.S.C. 
President 
King's College 
Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania  
 
Rev. Laurence M. Olszewski, C.S.C. 
Pastor 
St. John the Evangelist Parish 
Viera, Florida 
 
Bro. John Rhodes Paige, C.S.C. 
Vicar and First General Assistant 
Congregazione Di Santa Croce Via Framura 
Rome, Italy 
 

 
 

 
Rev. Wilfred J. Raymond, C.S.C. 
National Director 
Family Theater Productions 
Hollywood, California  
 
Rev. Jack Ryan, C.S.C., PhD 
Director of the William G. McGowan School of 
Business 
Kings College 
Wilkes Barre, Pennsylvania 
 
Sherrie Ryan 
Executive 
American Automobile Association 
Carver, Massachusetts 
 
Lawrence C. Salameno 
Executive Vice President and Director 
Permal Asset Management 
New York, New York 
 
F. Robert Salerno 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc. 
World Headquarters 
Parsippany, N.J. 
 
Maria Cristina "Kitty" Sierra 
Health Underwriting Insurance Director and 
Administrator 
Venezuelan Insurance Company 
Coral Gables, Florida 
 
Daniel E. Somers 
Vice Chairman 
Blaylock & Partners, L.P. 
New York, New York 
 
Joseph A. Spiak 
Senior Vice President/Managing Director 
UBS Financial Services 
Jacksonville, Florida  
 
Rev. David Tyson, C.S.C. 
Provincial Superior 
Congregation of Holy Cross 
Notre Dame, Indiana 
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ADMINISTRATION 
 
 Rev. Mark T. Cregan, C.S.C. is the ninth president of Stonehill. A 1978 graduate of the 
College, he took office in 2000.  
 

Since becoming president, he has enhanced the College's already strong academic profile and has 
actively engaged the faculty in this initiative. He has also modernized the College's governance structure, 
making it more responsive and effective. In addition, he has built on Stonehill's many ties to the 
community by reaching out to the College's neighbors and friends with renewed vigor.  Active in all areas 
of Stonehill life, Rev. Cregan also teaches courses on non-profit management and Constitutional law at 
the College. 
 

Before being appointed president of Stonehill, Rev. Cregan served as the pastor of Sacred Heart 
Parish, a large inner-city parish in the Bronx, New York.  In that position, he was the chief administrative 
officer responsible for schools, buildings, outreach programs, pastoral activities, finances and fund-
raising. He helped to turn the parish's annual deficit into a surplus, created a school advisory board to 
help with fund-raising, special projects and curriculum and established a quasi endowment for future 
projects. 
 

In addition, Rev. Cregan provided leadership to the Archdiocese of New York's community 
development efforts, which produced over $100 million in affordable subsidized housing. While 
administering Sacred Heart Parish, Rev. Cregan also maintained a  law practice, serving clients in the 
areas of  immigration, family, estate and real estate law as well as boards and executives in tax-exempt 
organizations. 
 

Rev. Cregan holds a master of divinity degree from the University of St. Michael's College at the 
Toronto School of Theology (University of Toronto). He is a former member of the Board of Trustees at 
the University of St. Michael's College. 
 

Rev. Cregan holds a juris doctor degree from Brooklyn Law School. He is licensed to practice 
law before the U.S. Supreme Court, in the State of New York and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 
the District of Columbia, the United States District Courts for the Districts of Puerto Rico and 
Massachusetts, the Southern and Eastern Districts of New York, and the U.S. Court of Appeals, First 
Circuit. From 1990 until 1992, he served as Law Clerk to the Honorable Jose A. Fuste, United States 
District Judge, San Juan, Puerto Rico. 
 

Born in Jersey City and raised in Newark, N.J., Rev. Cregan graduated from Seton Hall 
Preparatory School, West Orange, N.J. in 1975. He joined the Congregation of Holy Cross in 1975 and 
was ordained a Catholic priest in 1983. He is active in the administrative life of the Eastern Province of 
the Congregation of Holy Cross. 

 
In his free time, he enjoys reading, music, sports and travel. In addition to English, he speaks 

Spanish fluently and has reading knowledge of Portuguese, Italian, French and Latin. 
 

As Financial Vice President and Treasurer, Edward P. Casieri manages the College's budget 
and endowment. He also has responsibility for student aid and finance, information technology, 
conferencing & events, accounting, payroll & employee benefits, purchasing and facilities management. 
Mr. Casieri holds a B.S. degree in business administration from Boston College and an M.B.A. degree 
from Babson College. He is a member of the Massachusetts  Society of Certified Public Accountants and 
has served Stonehill since 1968 as business manager, treasurer and now as Financial Vice President and 
Treasurer. 
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As Vice President for Academic Affairs, Dr. Katie Conboy is responsible for the College's 

academic vision and for ensuring that the curriculum meets its academic objectives.  She also oversees 
admissions, enrollment, degree programs and academic support. A faculty member since 1987, Dr. 
Conboy has served as chair of the English Department and as interim academic vice president. A 
published scholar, she specializes in British fiction, Irish literature and feminist theory. She holds a B.A. 
degree in English from the University of Kansas and a Ph.D. degree in English literature from the 
University of Notre Dame.  
                                           

As Vice President for Advancement, Francis X. Dillon directs the College's development, 
alumni, communications, and external relations program. He led Stonehill's first capital campaign, which 
successfully raised over $23 million. A Stonehill alumnus, Dillon holds an M. Ed. degree in educational 
administration from Suffolk University. He is active in many community organizations such as Metro 
South Chamber of Commerce, Old Colony United Way, Caritas Good Samaritan Medical Center and the 
Easton/Stonehill Town-Gown Committee.  
                                           

As Vice President for Student Affairs, (Rev.) George B. Mulligan, C.S.C. is responsible for 
residence life, intercultural affairs, health services, recreational sports, counseling/testing, student 
activities and programming. A clinical social worker and former assistant to the president, he holds a B.S. 
degree from Mercy College in New York, an M. Div. from the University of Saint Michael's College 
(University of Toronto), and an M.S.W. degree from Columbia University.  
                                            

As Vice President for Mission, (Rev.) John Denning, C.S.C. oversees Campus Ministry, works 
to strengthen Catholic identity and Holy Cross sponsorship, coordinates volunteer service commitments 
and supports other College divisions as they implement the College’s mission. He holds a B.A. degree 
from Tulane University and an M. Div. degree from the University of Saint Michael’s College 
(University of Toronto). 
 
 
STUDENT AFFAIRS  
 
 The professional staff of the Student Affairs Division is dedicated to the growth and 
development of Stonehill students.  The Division provides a wide variety of services and programs that 
are designed to help students make the most of educational opportunities within the classroom and to 
encourage students to be challenged by opportunities outside the classroom.  Services provided include 
educational, career and personal counseling and testing, career planning and placement; primary health 
care through consulting physicians including a psychiatrist; intramural and recreational sports; student 
activities; student government; and numerous residence life activities. 
 
 Major student development programs include leadership training; a four-year career planning 
program with career interns; a Resident Advisor training course; an alcohol and drug education course; 
and, educational, cultural and social programs in the residence areas.  Strong emphasis is placed on the 
living/learning quality of residence life. 
 
 More than 70 campus organizations run by students for students provide numerous opportunities 
for students to express interests and enhance individual growth.  Students also have an active voice in the 
governance of the College and serve on key committees such as the Board of Fellows, the College 
Council and the Strategic Planning Committee. 
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 Over 375 men and women participate in one or more of 20 intercollegiate athletic programs.  
Additionally, approximately 80% of the College’s students participate in intramural sports, club sports, 
fitness programs and various services offered at the College’s recreational sports complex facility. 
 
 The Office of Career Services  offers comprehensive programs and services to assist students and 
alumni in developing career opportunities. By providing self-assessment, career exploration, internship 
and employment opportunities, and graduate school information, the office seeks to empower individuals 
to achieve their academic and/or career goals. Through collaborative relationships with faculty, 
employers, and alumni, the office offers programs and services that students can utilize to achieve their 
own individual career goals.  Some of these programs include the Graduate School Fair, Mock Interview 
Day, on-campus recruiting, the New York Externship program, the Career Fair and Senior Transitions 
Day.  
 
 
FINANCIAL AID  
 
 Approximately 85% of Stonehill students receive some form of financial aid.  Financial aid is in 
the form of a “package” which includes grants, loans and/or work opportunities from federal, state, 
College and private sources.  The College is strongly committed to providing a quality education for all 
students, regardless of financial circumstances.  The College has consistently increased its financial 
commitment to students over the years.  It is anticipated that as a result of rising college costs, reduced 
government support and various socio-economic factors, the College will continue to increase its 
contribution to financial aid programs. 
 
 
UNION RELATIONS 
 
 The Service Employee’s International Union (“SEIU”) local 615 represents employees from 
facilities management and campus police, approximately 100 total members. The present contract will 
expire on June 30, 2006. The SEIU has been involved with the College for approximately 30 years and 
there have not been any strikes during this history. The College believes that it enjoys a positive 
relationship with the union and the employees it represents. No other employees of the College are 
represented by labor unions or similar organizations at this time. 
 
 
PENSION PLANS 
 
 The College has a defined contribution pension plan, which is administered, by the Teachers 
Insurance and Annuity Association of America (“TIAA”) and the College Retirement Equities Fund 
(“CREF”) for academic, administrative and service personnel.  For all full-time employees with more 
than one year of service, the College contributes a percentage of each employee’s salary for the purchase 
of individually owned, immediately vested and fully funded annuities with TIAA and CREF.  Employees 
may elect to apply their contribution to either their TIAA and CREF accounts or to managed mutual fund 
custodial accounts.  
 
 
OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS 
 
 As of June 30, 2004, the College’s outstanding indebtedness amounted to $51,373,671 net of 
unamortized discount in the amount of $353,500.  During fiscal year 2004, outstanding principal 
decreased by $953,164 and interest paid amounted to $2,313,287.  
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 As of June 30, 2005, the College’s outstanding indebtedness amounted to $49,777,723 net of 
unamortized discount in the amount of $328,850.  During fiscal year 2005, no new debt was incurred and 
outstanding principal decreased by $1,620,598 and interest paid amounted to $2,306,958. 
 
 The following schedule summarizes the College’s bonds payable as of June 30, 2004 and 2005. 
 
                                     Principal Outstanding  

                        as of June 30,    

                 (000s)   
 

Description 
Year of 
Maturity

Interest 
Rate 

 
2004 

 
2005

 

 Authority Bonds Stonehill College Issue, Series F 2026 4.8% to 7.5% 6,665 6,510

 Authority Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series G  2028 4.75% to 5.25% 16,000 16,000
    
 Authority Loan, Capital Asset Program, Series D Stonehill 2027       variable 15,424 15,138  
    
Authority Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series H  2020      3% to 5% 12,170 11,050
    
U.S.D.E. - College Facilities Loan 2020           5.5% 1,468 1,409
   51,727 50,107
     
Less discount at original issue   (353) (329)
                 TOTAL:   $51,374 $49,778
 
 
 Detailed information concerning the College’s outstanding indebtedness as of June 30, 2005 is as 
follows: 
 

 
(1)  $6,510,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds 

Stonehill College Issue, Series F.  The Series F Bonds were issued in 1996 in the aggregate 
par amount of $7,495,000, bear interest at rates ranging from 4.8% to 7.5% serially to 2016, 
5.625% on a term bond due 2021 and 5.75% on a term bond due 2026.  The Series F Bonds 
are insured by AMBAC Indemnity Corporation, and are secured by a lien on tuition receipts.  
The loan constitutes a general obligation of the College.  (All of the outstanding Series F 
Bonds will be refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Series I Bonds). 

(2)  $15,137,844 Loan from the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
Capital Asset Program Issue, Series D dated February 18, 2000.  The loan bears variable 
interest and is due monthly through April 1, 2027.  The loan constitutes a general obligation 
of the College.  (The loan will be refinanced with a portion of the proceeds of the Series I 
Bonds). 

(3)  $16,000,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds, 
Stonehill College, Series G.  The Series G Bonds were issued in 1998 in the aggregate par 
amount of $16,000,000, bear interest at rates ranging from 4.75% to 5.25% serially to 2015, 
5% on a term bond due 2018 and 5.25% on a term bond due 2028.  The Series G Bonds are 
insured by MBIA Insurance Corporation and are secured by a lien on tuition receipts.  The 
loan constitutes a general obligation of the College.  (The Series G Bonds will be partially 
refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Series I Bonds). 

(4)  $11,050,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds, 
Stonehill College, Series H.  The Bonds were issued in August 2003 in the aggregate par 
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amount of $12,170,000, bear interest at rates ranging from 3% to 5% serially to 2018, 5% on 
a term bond due 2020.   The bonds are secured by a lien on tuition receipts.  The loan 
constitutes a general obligation of the College. 

 
(5)  $1,408,729 United States Department of Education College Facilities Loan dated April 1, 

1990.  The loan bears interest at the rate of 5.5% and is payable over 30 years.  The loan is 
secured by a mortgage on the building and building site for the Academic Conference Center 
and constitutes a general obligation of the College. 

 
 The College has never been late with a debt service payment. 
 
 
LEASES 
 
 Since 1974 the College has been lessee under a lease with the Congregation of Holy Cross – 
Eastern Province (“Congregation”), expiring June 30, 2019, for the Holy Cross Center in North Easton, 
Massachusetts.  The Holy Cross Center is used to house up to 153 undergraduate resident students.  The 
annual cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 was $194,000.  In addition, the College leases a small 
housing facility in the Bronx for a New York City internship program offered to students; the annual 
lease cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 was $66,000.  The College also leases a parking lot and 
intramural fields from the Congregation amounting to a combined annual cost of $32,000 for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2005.  The College has a right of first refusal in the event of the sale of the Holy 
Cross Center.  With the exception of certain equipment leases, the College is not lessee under any other 
leases. 
 
 
LITIGATION  
 
 The College is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened to which the College is a party 
wherein any unfavorable decision would adversely affect the ability of the College to enter into the 
Agreement and carry out its obligations thereunder. 
 
 
INSURANCE PROGRAMS 
 

Real and Personal Property.  Extended coverage including earthquake and boiler and machinery 
perils. 

 
Amount: $143,964,626 Fire, Extended Coverage, Vandalism, and Sprinkler Leakage - Blanket on Building and Contents 
 $  25,000,000 Flood and Earthquake 
 Per statement of 

Values 
Equipment breakdown  

Blanket earnings 
 & extra expense 

$  10,241.256 (Fire, Extended Coverage, Vandalism, Sprinkler Leakage, Difference in Conditions, Flood and Earthquake) 

 
 Crime.  Comprehensive Dishonesty, Disappearance and Destruction Coverage including 
$500,000 employee dishonesty; $500,000 computer fraud, $100,000 loss of money or securities inside 
the premises, $100,000 loss of money or securities outside the premises; and $100,000 depositors 
forgery. 
 
 Workers Compensation.  Statutory coverage.  $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000 employers 
liability.  Massachusetts self insurance group whereby a dividend is paid to the College through the New 
England Education Insurance Association if loss experience is favorable. 
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Automobile Liability and Physical Damage.  Limits - owned/non-owned/hired automobiles - 

$1,000,000 combined single limit. 
 
 Collision and Comprehensive coverages on designated vehicles with $500 deductible. 
 
 Public Liability.  Commercial General Liability coverage with a combined single limit of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate for bodily injury and property damage; and 
Umbrella Liability coverage with a limit of $25,000,000. 
 
 Directors & Officers. Aggregate limit of $5,000,000 for all management and faculty of the 
College. 
 
 Pesticide Liability. Bodily injury/property damage coverage for damage cause by Stonehill 
employees; limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 aggregate. 
 
 Fiduciary Liability. Covers error and omissions arising out of administration of the pension and 
benefit plans; limit of $5,000,000 aggregate. 
 
 Foreign Liability. For claims made by others against students/employees for actions committees 
while overseas; includes $1,000,000 personal injury limit, $100,000 premises damage limit, and $10,000 
medical expenses limit. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
 
This letter and the information contained herein are submitted to the Authority for inclusion in its 

Official Statement relating to its Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series I.  The use of this letter 
by the Authority in connection with the initial sale and public offering of the Series I Bonds, and the 
execution and delivery thereof by the President and the Financial Vice President and Treasurer, have 
been duly authorized by the Board of Trustees of Stonehill College, Inc. 
 
 
STONEHILL COLLEGE, INC. 
 
 
By: /s/ Rev. Mark T. Cregan                                                          
       Rev. Mark T. Cregan, C.S.C , President 
 
 
By: /s/ Edward P. Casieri                                                                
       Edward P. Casieri, Financial Vice President and Treasurer 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

To the Board of Trustees of 

Stonehill College, Inc. 

In our opinion, the accompanying statements of financial position and the related statements of 

activities and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Stonehill 

College (the "College") at June 30, 2005 and 2004, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 

for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the College's management.  Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted 

our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and 

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 

basis for our opinion.

September 16, 2005



Stonehill College, Inc.
Statements of Financial Position 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

2005 2004

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,340,478$ 9,193,582$
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $42,000 491,378 532,720
Other current assets 1,304,650 830,460
Pledges receivable, net of allowance of $118,665 and $8,900
 at June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively 2,254,635 169,300
Loans receivable, net of allowance of $300,000 1,598,451 2,038,597
Perpetual trusts held by third parties 1,818,477 1,894,347
Restricted cash 1,640,093 2,126,890
Investments 127,704,745 110,030,946
Property, plant and equipment, net 70,208,704 69,124,707

Total assets 215,361,611$ 195,941,549$

Liabilities

Accounts payable 2,663,022$ 1,570,202$
Accrued payroll and other benefits 1,914,009 1,604,474
Tuition received in advance 1,594,443 1,622,673
Other liabilities 2,359,361 1,889,192
Government advances for student loans 1,056,841 1,041,748
Note and bonds payable 49,777,723 51,373,671

Total liabilities 59,365,399 59,101,960

Net assets

Unrestricted 131,372,200 117,237,105
Temporarily restricted 9,732,824 7,904,501
Permanently restricted 14,891,188 11,697,983

Total net assets 155,996,212 136,839,589

Total liabilities and net assets 215,361,611$ 195,941,549$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Stonehill College, Inc.
Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2005 
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2004) 

Temporarily Permanently Total

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2005 2004

Operating

Revenues and other support

Tuition and fees, net (Note 7) 35,518,332$ -$ -$ 35,518,332$ 33,628,346$

Federal and state grants 814,981 - - 814,981 1,114,052

Private gifts 1,070,211 370,300 - 1,440,511 1,139,352

Short-term investment income 374,260 - - 374,260 181,563

Auxiliary services 18,597,023 - - 18,597,023 17,120,912

Other income 955,976 - - 955,976 1,037,760

Nonoperating assets used for operations 4,184,010 743,297 - 4,927,307 4,861,296

Net assets released from restrictions 743,297 (743,297) - - -

Total operating revenue and other support 62,258,090 370,300 - 62,628,390 59,083,281

Expenses

Instruction 17,280,245 - - 17,280,245 16,474,494

Public service 652,709 - - 652,709 822,255

Academic support 8,659,403 - - 8,659,403 7,712,387

Student services 8,848,806 - - 8,848,806 8,393,479

Institutional support 7,387,524 - - 7,387,524 6,849,280

Auxiliary services 15,674,202 - - 15,674,202 14,959,092

Other 1,121,657 - - 1,121,657 847,772

Total expenses 59,624,546 - - 59,624,546 56,058,759

Increase in net assets from operations 2,633,544 370,300 - 3,003,844 3,024,522

Nonoperating revenue and expenses

Private gifts and grants 1,826,094 885,136 3,132,275 5,843,505 2,435,593

Realized gains (losses) 2,562,974 419,152 - 2,982,126 (1,599,482)

Change in unrealized appreciation 6,944,440 1,110,282 - 8,054,722 12,958,956

Changes in perpetual trust - - (75,870) (75,870) 71,938

Investment income 3,705,431 570,172 - 4,275,603 2,785,469

Loss on retirement of debt (Note 5) - - - - (544,318)

Redesignation of net assets (198,389) 61,589 136,800 - -

Nonoperating assets used for operations (4,184,010) (743,297) - (4,927,307) (4,861,296)

Net assets released from restrictions 845,011 (845,011) - - -

Increase in net assets from nonoperating

 activities 11,501,551 1,458,023 3,193,205 16,152,779 11,246,860

Total change in net assets 14,135,095 1,828,323 3,193,205 19,156,623 14,271,382

Net assets at beginning of year 117,237,105 7,904,501 11,697,983 136,839,589 122,568,207

Net assets at end of year 131,372,200$ 9,732,824$ 14,891,188$ 155,996,212$ 136,839,589$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Stonehill College, Inc.
Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2004 

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2004

Operating

Revenues and other support

Tuition and fees, net (Note 7) 33,628,346$ $ $ 33,628,346$

Federal and state grants 1,114,052 1,114,052

Private gifts 1,139,352 1,139,352

Short-term investment income 181,563 181,563

Auxiliary services 17,120,912 17,120,912

Other income 1,037,760 1,037,760

Nonoperating assets used for operations 4,020,000 841,296 4,861,296

Net assets released from restrictions 841,296 (841,296) -

Total operating revenue and other support 59,083,281 - - 59,083,281

Expenses

Instruction 16,474,494 16,474,494

Public service 822,255 822,255

Academic support 7,712,387 7,712,387

Student services 8,393,479 8,393,479

Institutional support 6,849,280 6,849,280

Auxiliary services 14,959,092 14,959,092

Other 847,772 847,772

Total expenses 56,058,759 - - 56,058,759

Increase in net assets from operations 3,024,522 3,024,522

Nonoperating revenue and expenses

Private gifts and grants 122,750 1,089,575 1,223,268 2,435,593

Realized gains (losses) (1,418,562) (180,920) (1,599,482)

Change in unrealized appreciation 11,543,729 1,415,227 12,958,956

Changes in perpetual trust - - 71,938 71,938

Investment income 2,481,162 304,307 2,785,469

Loss on retirement of debt (Note 5) (544,318) (544,318)

Redesignation of net assets (2,112,858) 507,537 1,605,321 -

Nonoperating assets used for operations (4,020,000) (841,296) (4,861,296)

Net assets released from restrictions 373,208 (373,208) -

Increase in net assets from nonoperating activities 6,425,111 1,921,222 2,900,527 11,246,860

Total change in net assets 9,449,633 1,921,222 2,900,527 14,271,382

Net assets at beginning of year 107,787,472 5,983,279 8,797,456 122,568,207

Net assets at end of year 117,237,105$ 7,904,501$ 11,697,983$ 136,839,589$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Stonehill College, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 

2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities

Change in net assets 19,156,623$ 14,271,382$
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
 provided by operating activities

Amortization of original issue discount on debt 24,650 481,828
Depreciation 3,650,033 3,597,155
Change in unrealized appreciation on investments (8,054,722) (12,958,956)
Realized (gains) losses on investments (2,982,126) 1,599,482
Change in perpetual trusts held by third parties 75,870 (71,938)
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 41,342 (235,165)
Pledge receivable (2,085,335) 71,293
Other current assets (474,190) 346,649
Accounts payable 1,092,820 400,325
Accrued payroll and other benefits 309,535 (133,398)
Other liabilities 470,169 (347,262)
Tuition received in advance (28,230) 80,919
Contributions to be used for long-term investment (3,601,073) (1,151,330)

Net cash provided by operating activities 7,595,366 5,950,984

Cash flows from investing activities

Loans granted (431,727) (479,712)
Loans collected 871,873 430,859
Purchase of fixed assets (4,734,030) (2,033,254)
Purchase of investments (61,338,985) (46,916,431)
Proceeds from sale of investments 54,702,034 42,212,850

Net cash used for investing activities (10,930,835) (6,785,688)

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in government advances for student loans 15,093 10,373

Payments on long-term debt (1,620,598) (13,123,163)
Write-off of bond issuance cost - (158,836)
Net proceeds from long-term debt - 11,940,282
Change in restricted cash 486,797 3,445
Contributions to be used for long-term investment 3,601,073 1,151,330

Net cash provided by financing activities 2,482,365 (176,569)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (853,104) (1,011,273)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,193,582 10,204,855

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 8,340,478$ 9,193,582$

Supplemental information

Interest paid 2,306,958$ 2,313,287$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Stonehill College, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Stonehill College, Inc. (the "College") was founded in 1948 by members of the Congregation of 
Holy Cross.  It is an independent, undergraduate, church-related institution in Easton,
Massachusetts and offers bachelor degrees in the arts and sciences and a master degree in 
accountancy.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis and in accordance 
with the reporting principles of not-for-profit accounting.

Certain amounts presented in fiscal 2004 have been reclassified to conform to fiscal 2005 
presentation.

The College has classified net assets and its revenues, expenses, gains and losses into three 
categories based on the existence or absence of externally-imposed restrictions.  The categories, 
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted net assets, are defined as follows: 

Unrestricted - Net assets which are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.  Unrestricted net
assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Trustees. 

Temporarily Restricted - Net assets whose use is limited by law or donor-imposed stipulations that 
will either expire with the passage of time or be fulfilled by actions of the College. 

Permanently Restricted - Reflects the historical value of gifts subject to donor-imposed
stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to produce income for general or 
specific purposes. 

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related assets is
limited by donor-imposed restrictions.  Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net
assets.  Realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are
reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit 
donor stipulation or by law.  Expirations of temporary restrictions on net assets are reclassified as
"net assets released from restrictions" in the statement of activities. 

Gifts and investment return with donor-imposed restrictions, which are reported as temporarily
restricted revenues, are reclassified to unrestricted net assets when an expense is incurred that 
satisfies the restriction.  Gifts restricted for the purchase of property, plant and equipment are 
reported as temporarily restricted revenues and are reclassified to unrestricted net assets upon 
acquisition of the assets, or when a time restriction expires.  Redesignation of net assets was due to 
changes in donor designation.  Fundraising expenses totaled $1,411,108 and $1,209,297 in 2005 
and 2004, respectively.

Gifts received for annual operating purposes are recorded as operating revenues. Nonoperating
revenues include all other gifts, investment income, and realized and unrealized gains on long-term
investments during the year.  To the extent investment returns are authorized by the Board and gifts
are permitted by the donor to fund operations, they are reclassified as "nonoperating assets used for 
operations" on the statement of activities.  All other activity is classified as operating revenue. 
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Stonehill College, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include operating cash accounts, and short-term investments with 
maturities from date of purchase of three months or less.  The carrying amount of these cash 
equivalents is a reasonable estimate of fair value. 

Restricted cash represents amounts on deposit with the trustee in accordance with bond 
requirements.  These securities are primarily invested in money market funds and are recorded at 
cost which approximates market value. 

Cash is deposited in several institutions; however, at times cash held in a single institution may
exceed federally insured limits.  The College has not experienced any losses in such accounts.  The 
College believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. 

Investments

Investments are recorded at fair market value.  Cost represents the historical cost of investments.
The value of securities listed on a national exchange are based upon quoted market prices and net 
asset values.  The value of securities that represent interests in partnerships or other nonmarketable
securities for which there are no market quotations available are valued by the managers of those 
entities and reviewed by management.  The majority of alternative investments are carried at 
estimated fair value provided by the management of the alternative investment partnerships or 
funds as of June 30, 2005 and 2004.

The College believes that the carrying amount of its alternative instruments is a reasonable estimate
of fair value as of June 30, 2005 and 2004.  Because alternative investments are not readily
marketable, the estimated value is subject to uncertainty and, therefore, may differ from the value 
that would have been used had a ready market for the investments existed and such differences 
could be material.  The amount of gain or loss associated with these investments is reflected in the 
accompanying financial statements using the equity method of accounting. 

Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade date basis.  Gains or losses from the sale 
of investment securities are computed on the specific identification cost basis, or for pooled funds, 
on the average cost basis. 

Perpetual Trusts Held by Third Parties 

The College is the beneficiary of certain perpetual trusts held and administered by others.  The 
estimated fair values of trust assets, which approximate the present values of expected future cash 
flows from the trusts, are recognized as assets and as gift revenue when the trusts are established.
The College had $1,818,477 and $1,894,347 in perpetual trusts held by third parties at June 30, 
2005 and 2004, respectively. 
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Stonehill College, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

Endowment Funds 

As a result of market declines, the fair market value of certain donor-restricted endowments is less 
than the historical cost value of such funds by $19,991 at June 30, 2005 and $15,641 at June 30,
2004.  These unrealized losses have been recorded as reductions in unrestricted net assets.  Market 
gains restore this deficiency in unrestricted net assets before any net appreciation above the 
historical cost value of such funds increases temporarily restricted net assets. 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition and at market value at 
the date of gift for donated assets.  Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of the individual assets:  land improvements (20 years), buildings (30-60 
years) and equipment (5-15 years).  Depreciation, totaling $3,650,033 and $3,597,155 for the years
ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively, has been allocated to functional expenses based on
square foot usage calculations.

Property, plant and equipment are removed from the records at the time of disposal and the 
resulting gain or loss is included in the statement of activities. 

Replacements and major improvements are capitalized; expenses for maintenance and repairs are 
charged as incurred.  Operation and maintenance expense totaling $4,650,443 and $3,389,231 for 
the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively, has been allocated to functional expenses 
based on square foot usage calculations.

Contracts and Grants 

Government grants and contracts normally provide for the recovery of direct and indirect costs, 
subject to audit.  The College recognizes revenue associated with direct costs as the related costs 
are incurred.  Recovery of related indirect costs is generally recorded at fixed rates negotiated with 
the government.

Gifts

Gifts, including unconditional promises to give (pledges), are recorded as revenue when the donor's 
commitment is received.  Unconditional pledges are recorded at the present value of their expected 
cash flows, net of allowances for doubtful accounts. 

Accounts and Loans Receivable 

Accounts and loans receivable are stated net of allowances for doubtful accounts.  Loans receivable
are principally amounts due from students under federally sponsored loan programs, which are 
subject to significant restrictions.  Accordingly, it is not practicable to determine the fair value of 
such amounts.

Endowment Spending Policy

Under the College's endowment spending policy, up to five percent of the average market value of 
qualifying endowment investments at the end of the previous three years may be appropriated for
current operations.  The College appropriated four and a half percent for the years ended June 30, 
2005 and 2004, respectively. 

Federal Income Tax 

The College is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and, accordingly, does not provide for income taxes.
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Stonehill College, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

2. Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable as of June 30, 2005 and 2004 are expected to be realized in the following time
frame:

2005 2004

One year or less 692,250$ 66,570$
Between one year and five years 1,853,750 103,000
Greater than five years - 15,000
Less allowance for unfulfilled pledges and discount (291,365) (15,270)

Pledges receivable, net 2,254,635$ 169,300$

A discount of $172,700 and $6,370 for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively, was
calculated using a discount factor based on the appropriate United States Treasury Bill rates at
June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

3. Investments

Investments at June 30, 2005 and 2004 are as follows: 

Fair Fair

Cost Value Cost Value

Money market funds 11,882,525$ 11,882,525$ 10,165,704$ 10,165,704$
Bond funds 21,895,423 26,510,317 23,139,878 26,028,070
Stock funds 35,228,591 37,571,232 25,957,797 26,624,845
Limited partnerships and 
 other funds 41,965,194 51,740,671 42,089,276 47,212,327

110,971,733$ 127,704,745$ 101,352,655$ 110,030,946$

20042005

Investment management fees are included in other expenses and totaled $249,516 and $191,190 in 
2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The College is committed to investing an additional $1,046,250 in private equity investments. 
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Stonehill College, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

4. Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment at June 30, 2005 and 2004 are as follows: 

2005 2004

Land 688,119$ 488,118$
Land improvements 6,360,581 6,309,414
Buildings and improvements 88,384,671 87,063,110
Equipment 20,261,097 19,384,688
Construction in progress 2,284,892 -

117,979,360 113,245,330

Less: Accumulated depreciation (47,770,656) (44,120,623)

70,208,704$ 69,124,707$

5. Note and Bonds Payable

Note and bonds payable at June 30, 2005 and 2004 are as follows: 

2005 2004

Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority issues

 (MHEFA) revenue bonds (1)

Series F, dated August 1, 1996, interest rates ranging from 4.8% to 7.5%,

 due serially on July 1, from 1997 to 2016, inclusive, and in 2021 and 2026 (3) 6,510,000$ 6,665,000$

Series G, revenue, dated April 1, 1998, interest rates ranging from 4.75% to

 5.25% due serially on July 1, from 2010 to 2015, inclusive, and in 2018 

 and 2028 (3) 16,000,000 16,000,000

Series D (Pooled) capital asset program dated February 18, 2000,

 variable interest with 4.75% at 6/30/05, due monthly through

 April 1, 2027 (3) 15,137,844 15,424,236

Series H, revenue, dated August 1, 2003, interest rates ranging from 3% to

 5% due serially on July 1, from 2004 to 2018, inclusive and in 2020 (3) 11,050,000 12,170,000

United States Department of Education issues (E.D.)

Dated April 1, 1990, at an interest rate of 5.5% due serially from

 November 1, 1990 to May 1, 2020, inclusive (2) 1,408,729 1,467,935

Total debt 50,106,573 51,727,171

Less unamortized original issue discount (328,850) (353,500)

49,777,723$ 51,373,671$

(1) In accordance with the provisions of the MHEFA revenue bonds, the College remits

funds to the Trustee fifteen days prior to the due date of the semiannual debt service

payments.

(2) Collateralized by Alumni Hall building, land and equipment.

(3) Collateralized by tuition receipts.

At June 30, 2005 the approximate fair value of outstanding debt on the statement of financial 
position is $51,452,877 based on estimates using current interest rates available for debt with 
similar remaining maturities.

Under its notes and bonds payable agreements, the College is subject to certain restrictive financial 
covenants, the most restrictive of which is that the College must maintain a ratio of non-donor
restricted fund balances to plant debt. 
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Stonehill College, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

In accordance with bond requirements, the College has on deposit with the trustee at June 30, 2005 
and 2004 the following amounts: 

2005 2004

MHEFA 1,640,093$ 2,126,890$

1,640,093$ 2,126,890$

Mandatory annual principal payments on long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are 
as follows: 

MHEFA E.D.

Bonds Note

2006 1,127,095$ 62,506$
2007 1,174,295 65,991
2008 1,228,100 69,671
2009 1,288,626 73,555
2010 1,415,997 77,656
Thereafter 42,463,731 1,059,350

Interest expense, totaling $2,329,027 and $2,144,328 for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, has been allocated to functional expenses based on square foot usage calculations. 

6. Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 

2005 2004

Net investment in plant and equipment 22,071,074$ 19,877,926$
Quasi-endowment 101,658,631 91,802,289
Other 7,642,495 5,556,890

131,372,200$ 117,237,105$
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Stonehill College, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 

2005 2004

Donor designated support 3,474,144$ 4,047,753$
Realized and unrealized investment gains and investment
 income on permanently restricted assets 6,258,680 3,856,748

9,732,824$ 7,904,501$

Permanently restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 

2005 2004

Endowment - principal 14,891,188$ 11,697,983$

7. Scholarships and Other Awards 

Tuition and fees are presented net of tuition discounts, which include the following for the years
ended June 30:

2005 2004

Institutional scholarships (unfunded) 16,743,271$ 14,653,645$
Endowed scholarships (funded) 506,294 554,717
External grants (funded) 641,906 535,424

17,891,471$ 15,743,786$

In addition, a total of $374,316 and $372,048 of tuition remissions are included in functional 
expenses at June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

8. Lease Commitments

The College leases property for terms ranging from one to fifteen years.  The annual minimum
lease commitments through the year 2010 are as follows: 

2006 292,828$

2007 292,828

2008 270,328

2009 270,328

2010 204,328

Total rental expense for the College was $494,769 and $401,595 for the years ended June 30, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

12



Stonehill College, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2005 and 2004 

13

9. Employee Benefit Plans 

The College offers its employees a defined contribution plan and participates in the Teachers 
Insurance and Annuity Association contributory retirement program.  This program covers 
substantially all full-time employees of the College.  The College made contributions of 
$1,955,624 and $1,987,048 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  The 
College also maintains a self-insured medical plan for its employees.  The Plan is funded by both 
employee and College contributions. 

10. Related Parties 

Certain members of the Board of Trustees are members, employees or officers of companies which 
do business with the College.  The College engaged in these transactions in the conduct of its 
activities (i.e., the borrowing of money from a bank of which the trustee may be an officer or the 
purchase of products from a corporation of which a trustee may be an employee or officer).  
Related party transactions were $633,968 and $788,233 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005 
and 2004, respectively. 

11. Contingencies

The College is engaged in numerous activities which expose the College to risk of litigation.  These 
matters may include disputes with contractors, subcontractors and other claims arising from 
employment matters with the College.  The College does not expect that these matters will require 
any amounts to be paid which, in the aggregate, will be material to the results of operations.  
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DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS

The following are definitions of certain terms used in the Agreement and as used in this
Official Statement:

“Act” means Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1968, as amended from time to
time.

“Additional Bonds” means bonds of the Authority issued under the Agreement which are
secured equally and ratably with the Bonds as to the lien on the Tuition Receipts of the
Institution.

“Agreement” means the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of March 12, 1992 among
the Authority, the Institution, and the Shawmut Bank, N.A., as predecessor Trustee, as amended
and supplemented by a First Supplemental Agreement dated as of August 13, 1996 among the
Authority, the Institution and Fleet National Bank, as predecessor Trustee, a Second
Supplemental Agreement dated as of March 10, 1998 among the Authority, the Institution and
State Street Bank and Trust Company, as predecessor Trustee, a Third Supplemental Agreement
dated as of August 15, 2003 among the Authority, the Institution and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee, and a Fourth Supplemental Agreement dated as of September 13, 2005
among the Authority, the Institution and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, as it may
be further amended and supplemented as provided in the Agreement.

“All-Hold Rate” means, on any date of determination, the interest rate per annum equal to
85% (as such percentage may be adjusted pursuant to the Agreement of the lesser of (i) the
After-Tax Equivalent Rate on such date and (ii) the Index on such date; provided, that in no
event shall the All-Hold Rate be more than the ARS Maximum Rate.

“Alternative Indebtedness” means indebtedness of the Institution incurred in accordance
with the Agreement which is secured equally and ratably with the Bonds as to the lien on the
Tuition Receipts of the Institution.

“Applicable ARS Rate” means, while the Series I Bonds are in an ARS Period, the rate
per annum at which interest accrues with respect to the Series I Bonds for any ARS Interest
Period.

“Applicable Percentage” means, with respect to Series I Bonds which are ARS on any
date of determination, the percentage determined (as such percentage may be adjusted pursuant
to the Agreement), based on Moody’s or S&P ratings of such ARS, in effect at the close of
business on the Business Day immediately preceding such date, or, if such ARS, are then rated
by both Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s, based on the lower of such ratings on such Business
Day, as set forth below:
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Credit Ratings Applicable Percentage
Moody’s Standard & Poor’s

“Aaa” “AAA” 175%
“Aa” “AA” 175%
“A” “A” 175%

“Baa” “BBB” 200%
Below “Baa” Below “BBB” 265%

provided, that if any ARS are not then rated by an ARS Rating Agency, the Applicable
Percentage with respect to such ARS shall be 265% of the Index on such date. For purposes of
this definition, S&P rating categories of “AAA”, “AA”, “A” and “BBB,” and Moody’s rating
categories of “Aaa,” “Aa,” “A” and “Baa” shall refer to and include the respective rating
categories correlative thereto if either or both of such rating agencies shall have changed or
modified their generic rating categories or if Moody’s or S&P shall not rate, or no longer rate,
the ARS or shall have been replaced.

“ARS” means, on any date, a Series I Bond in an ARS Period as to which interest accrues
on such date as auction rate securities as provided in the Agreement and the Auction Procedures
applicable thereto.

“ARS Beneficial Owner” means the Person who is the beneficial owner of ARS
according to the records of (i) the Securities Depository or its Participants while such ARS are
Book-Entry Bonds or (ii) the Trustee while the ARS are not Book-Entry Bonds.

“ARS Defaulted Interest” means interest with respect to any ARS which is payable but is
not punctually paid or duly provided for on any ARS Interest Payment Date.

“ARS Interest Payment Date” means, with respect to ARS, the Business Day
immediately following each Auction Period for such ARS.

“ARS Interest Period” means the period commencing on and including an ARS Interest
Payment Date and ending on and including the day immediately preceding the next succeeding
ARS Interest Payment Date; provided that the initial ARS Interest Period shall commence on the
Issuance Date and any subsequent ARS Interest Period shall commence on the Conversion Date
to such subsequent ARS Interest Period.

“ARS Maximum Rate” means, on any date of determination, the interest rate per annum
equal to the lesser of (i) the Applicable Percentage of the higher of (A) the After-Tax Equivalent
Rate on such date and (B) the Index on such date, and (ii) 12% per annum; provided, that in no
event shall the ARS Maximum Rate be more than the Maximum Lawful Rate.

“ARS Payment Default” means a default by the Insurer under the Insurance Policy and (i)
a default in the due and punctual payment of any installment of interest on ARS or (ii) a default
in the due and punctual payment of any principal of or premium, if any, on ARS at stated
maturity or pursuant to a mandatory redemption.

“ARS Period” means each Rate Period during which the Series I Bonds are ARS.

“ARS Rate” means the interest rate with respect to ARS during an ARS Interest Period
determined as provided in the Agreement and the Auction Procedures.
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“ARS Rating Agency” means Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s, or if either Moody’s or
S&P discontinues its securities rating service, then such other nationally recognized securities
rating agency as may be specified by the Market Agent with the consent of the Institution.

“Auction” means the implementation of the Auction Procedures on an Auction Date.

“Auction Date” means, with respect to ARS, the Business Day immediately preceding the
first day of each Auction Period, other than

(i) each Auction Period commencing after the ARS are no longer Book-Entry Bonds;

(ii) each Auction Period commencing after the occurrence and during the continuance
of an ARS Payment Default; or

(iii) any Auction Period commencing less than two Business Days after the cure or
waiver of an ARS Payment Default.

The Auction Date determined as provided in this definition may be adjusted as provided
in the Agreement.

“Auction Period” means (i) with respect to ARS in a seven-day mode, any of (A) a
period, generally of seven days, beginning on and including a Monday (or the day following the
last day of the prior Auction Period if the prior Auction Period does not end on a Sunday) and
ending on and including the Sunday thereafter (unless such Sunday is not followed by a Business
Day, in which case ending on and including the next succeeding day which is followed by a
Business Day), (B) a period, generally of seven days, beginning on and including a Tuesday (or
the day following the last day of the prior Auction Period if the prior Auction Period does not
end on a Monday) and ending on and including the Monday thereafter (unless such Monday is
not followed by a Business Day, in which case ending on and including the next succeeding day
which is followed by a Business Day), (C) a period, generally of seven days, beginning on and
including a Wednesday (or the day following the last day of the prior Auction Period if the prior
Auction Period does not end on a Tuesday) and ending on and including the Tuesday thereafter
(unless such Tuesday is not followed by a Business Day, in which case ending on and including
the next succeeding day which is followed by a Business Day), (D) a period, generally of seven
days, beginning on and including a Thursday (or the day following the last day of the prior
Auction Period if the prior Auction Period does not end on a Wednesday) and ending on and
including the Wednesday thereafter (unless such Wednesday is not followed by a Business Day,
in which case ending on and including the next succeeding day which is followed by a Business
Day) or (E) a period, generally of seven days, beginning on and including a Friday (or the day
following the last day of the prior Auction Period if the prior Auction Period does not end on a
Thursday) and ending on and including the Thursday thereafter (unless such Thursday is not
followed by a Business Day, in which case ending on and including the next succeeding day
which is followed by a Business Day) and (ii) with respect to ARS in a 28-day or 35-day mode,
any of (A) a period, generally of 28 or 35 days, respectively, beginning on and including a
Monday (or the day following the last day of the prior Auction Period if the prior Auction Period
does not end on a Sunday) and ending on and including the fourth or fifth Sunday thereafter
(unless such Sunday is not followed by a Business Day, in which case ending on and including
the next succeeding day which is followed by a Business Day), (B) a period, generally of 28 or
35 days, beginning on and including a Tuesday (or the day following the last day of the prior
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Auction Period if the prior Auction Period does not end on a Monday) and ending on and
including the fourth or fifth Monday thereafter (unless such Monday is not followed by a
Business Day, in which case ending on and including the next succeeding day followed by a
Business Day), (C) a period, generally of 28 or 35 days, beginning on and including a
Wednesday (or the day following the last day of the prior Auction Period if the prior Auction
Period does not end on a Tuesday) and ending on and including the fourth or fifth Tuesday
thereafter (unless such Tuesday is not followed by a Business Day, in which case ending on and
including the next succeeding day followed by a Business Day), (D) a period, generally of 28 or
35 days, beginning on and including a Thursday (or the day following the last day of the prior
Auction Period if the prior Auction Period does not end on a Wednesday) and ending on and
including the fourth or fifth Wednesday thereafter (unless such Wednesday is not followed by a
Business Day, in which case ending on and including the next succeeding day followed by a
Business Day) or (E) a period, generally of 28 or 35 days, beginning on and including a Friday
(or the day following the last day of the prior Auction Period if the prior Auction Period does not
end on a Thursday) and ending on and including the fourth or fifth Thursday thereafter (unless
such Thursday is not followed by a Business Day, in which case ending on and including the
next succeeding day which is followed by a Business Day); provided, however, that in the event
of a Conversion of the Series I Bonds from another Rate Period to an ARS Period the initial
Auction Period with respect to such ARS following such Conversion shall begin on and include
the Conversion Date.

“Auction Procedures” means, with respect to ARS, the provisions set forth in Section 2 of
the Auction Procedures set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto.

“Auction Rate” means, with respect to the interest rate on ARS, the rate of interest per
annum that results from implementation of the Auction Procedures, and determined as described
in the Agreement; provided, however, that the Auction Rate shall not exceed the ARS Maximum
Rate.

“Authorized Denomination” means (a) with respect to the Series I Bonds during any
Daily Rate Period, Weekly Rate Period or Commercial Paper Rate Period, $100,000 and or any
integral multiple of $5,000 ($1,000 in a Commercial Paper Rate Period) in excess thereof;
(b) with respect to the Series I Bonds during any Fixed Rate Period, $5,000 or any multiple of
$5,000 in excess thereof; and (c) with respect to the Series I Bonds during any ARS Period,
$25,000 or any multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof.

“Authority” means the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority, a body
politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
constituted by the Act, and its successors.

“Balloon Indebtedness” means long-term indebtedness which is secured by a refinancing
arrangement meeting the requirements of the Agreement or which is part of an issue of
indebtedness 25% or more of which has its Date of Maturity in the same 12-month period.

“Bond Year” means each one year period (or shorter period from the date of issue of a
series of Bonds) ending on June 30.

“Bondowners” means the registered owners of the Bonds from time to time as shown in
the books kept by the Paying Agent as bond registrar and transfer agent.
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“Bonds” means the $28,595,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities
Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series E, dated March 1, 1992
(the “Series E Bonds”), the $7,495,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities
Authority Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series F, dated August 1, 1996 (the “Series F
Bonds”), the $16,000,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue
Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series G, dated April 1, 1998 (the “Series G Bonds”), the
$12,170,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds,
Stonehill College Issue, Series H, dated August 1, 2003, the $28,865,000 Massachusetts Health
and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Series I (2005) (Auction
Rate Securities), dated their date of delivery (the “Series I Bonds”), any additional Bonds issued
under Section 501 of the Agreement, and any Bond or Bonds duly issued in exchange or
replacement therefor.

“Bonds and Notes Payable (with a maturity of greater than one year)” shall be as set out
in the Institution’s audited financial statements.

“Business Day” means, with respect to the Series I Bonds, any day other than (i) a
Saturday, a Sunday or (ii) a day on which the Insurer or banks located in the cities in which the
Principal Offices of the Trustee, the Tender Agent, any Remarketing Agent, any Liquidity
Provider, any Auction Agent or any Market Agent, are located, are not required or authorized to
be closed or (iii) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as it may be amended and applied to
each series of Bonds from time to time.

“Commonwealth” means The Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means with respect to the Series I Bonds, that
certain Continuing Disclosure Agreement between the Authority and U.S. Bank National
Association, as originally executed and as it may be amended from time to time in accordance
with the terms thereof.

“Date of Maturity” means as to any indebtedness of the Institution, as of any date of
determination, the first date thereafter on which such indebtedness is payable, whether at
maturity, by mandatory redemption (or purchase) or by redemption (or purchase) at the option of
the holders; provided that if portions of any indebtedness are payable on different dates, the Date
of Maturity shall be separately determined for each such portion. Balloon Indebtedness may be
deemed to be payable as provided in the Agreement in order to adjust actual Dates of Maturity
for such indebtedness to assumed Dates of Maturity, to be used in calculating Total Principal and
Interest Requirements.

“Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement” means an amount determined on January 1 of
each year Bonds are Outstanding (a “Calculation Date”) which amount (i) shall be zero (0) so
long as the ratio of Unrestricted Net Assets to Bonds and Notes Payable (with a maturity of
greater than one year) is equal to or greater than 0.5 to 1.0, or (ii) if the ratio of Unrestricted Net
Assets to Bonds and Notes Payable (with a maturity of greater than one year) for the preceding
fiscal year is less than 0.5 to 1.0, shall be the greatest amount required in the then current or any
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future Bond Year to pay the sum of: (x) interest on the Bonds payable on January 1 of such
Bond Year and on July 1 of the next succeeding Bond Year excluding accrued interest received
upon the issuance of the Bonds and capitalized interest financed by the issuance of the Bonds;
and (y) the principal of the Bonds or the sinking fund installment, as the case may be, payable on
July 1 of the next succeeding Bond Year. For this purpose, principal becoming due by reason of
acceleration or redemption of Bonds shall be treated as coming due on the originally scheduled
dates until the same has been paid.

“Educational Consultant” means a nationally recognized firm of independent public
accountants or college or university management consultants selected by the Institution and
approved by the Authority.

“Existing Owner” means (a) with respect to and for the purpose of dealing with the
Auction Agent in connection with an Auction, a Person who is a Broker-Dealer listed in the
Existing Owner Registry at the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding the
Auction Date for such Auction and (b) with respect to and for the purpose of dealing with a
Broker-Dealer in connection with an Auction, a Person who is a beneficial owner of the Series I
Bonds.

“Existing Owner Registry” means, with respect to ARS, the registry of Persons who are
Broker-Dealers, maintained by the Auction Agent as provided in the Auction Agent Agreement.

“Government or Equivalent Obligations” means with respect to the Series I Bonds (i)
obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States; (ii) certificates evidencing ownership of
the right to the payment of the principal of and interest on obligations described in clause (i),
provided that such obligations are held in the custody of a bank or trust company satisfactory to
the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, in a special account separate from the general
assets of such custodian; and (iii) any open-end or closed-end management type investment
company or trust registered under 15 U.S.C. §80(a)-1 et seq., provided that the portfolio of such
investment company or trust is limited to obligations described in clause (i) and repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by such obligations, and provided further that such investment
company or trust shall take custody of such collateral either directly or through a custodian
satisfactory to the Trustee or the Authority.

“Index” means, with respect to ARS, on any date of determination, the Index determined
by the Market Agent for ARS, which shall equal the prevailing rate for bonds rated in the highest
short-term rating category by Moody’s or S&P that are subject to tender by the holders thereof
for purchase on not more than seven (7) days notice and the interest on which is (i) variable on a
weekly basis; (ii) is Tax-Exempt; and (iii) is not subject to an “alternative minimum tax” or any
similar tax under the Code unless all Tax-Exempt securities are subject to such tax.

“Institution” means the nonprofit institute for higher education, duly incorporated and
existing under the laws of the Commonwealth, located in the Town of Easton, Massachusetts, the
corporate name of which is Stonehill College, Inc. and sometimes in this Official Statement
called the “College” or “Stonehill.”

“Interest Payment Date” means each Conversion Date and (i) with respect to each
Liquidity Provider Bond, each date for the payment of interest thereon as set forth in the
applicable Liquidity Agreement; (ii) with respect to each Series I Bond bearing interest at a
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Daily Rate or Weekly Rate, the first Wednesday of each calendar month (or the next succeeding
Business Day if such Wednesday is not a Business Day); (iii) with respect to each Series I Bond
bearing interest at a Commercial Paper Rate, the day immediately succeeding the last day of each
Commercial Paper Rate Term applicable to such Series I Bond; (iv) with respect to any Fixed
Rate Period, each Semi-Annual Interest Payment Date, (v) with respect to each ARS Period, the
ARS Interest Payment Date immediately following such ARS Interest Period, and (vi) as to each
Series I Bond, the final maturity date of such Series I Bond.

“Interest Rate Determination Method” means any of the methods of determining the
interest rate on the Series I Bonds from time to time as described in the Agreement.

“IRC” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as it may be amended and applied to
each series of Bonds from time to time.

“Market Agent” means Banc of America Securities LLC and any other Person meeting
the requirements of the Agreement which is a party to a Market Agent Agreement and agrees
with the Trustee to perform the duties of the Market Agent under the Agreement with respect to
ARS.

“Maximum Interest Rate” means: (i) with respect to Series I Bonds other than Liquidity
Provider Bonds and ARS, the lesser of (a) twelve percent (12%) per annum and (b) the
Maximum Lawful Rate; (ii) with respect to Liquidity Provider Bonds, the Maximum Lawful
Rate; and (iii) with respect to ARS, the ARS Maximum Rate.

“Maximum Lawful Rate” means the maximum rate of interest on the relevant obligation
permitted by applicable law.

“Net Revenues Available for Debt Service” means the excess of revenues over expenses
(excluding from revenues and expenses extraordinary items and excluding from expenses
depreciation, interest on long-term indebtedness and amortization of bond discount and financing
expenses), as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

“Non-Payment Rate” means, on any date of determination, the interest rate per annum
equal to the lesser of (i) 265% of the Index on such date (as such percentage may be adjusted
pursuant to the Agreement) or (ii) 12% per annum; provided, that in no event shall the Non-
Payment Rate be more than the Maximum Lawful Rate.

“Notice of ARS Payment Default” means a notice substantially in the form of Exhibit D
to the Auction Agent Agreement.

“Notice of Cure of ARS Payment Default” means a notice substantially in the form of
Exhibit C attached hereto.

“Notice of Percentage Change” means a notice to the Trustee and the Auction Agent
substantially in the form provided as Exhibit B to the Market Agent Agreement.

“Notice of Proposed Percentage Change” means a notice to the Trustee and the Auction
Agent substantially in the form provided as Exhibit A to the Market Agent Agreement.

“Outstanding,” with respect to the Series I Bonds when used to modify Bonds, refers to
Bonds issued under the Agreement, excluding: (i) Bonds which have been exchanged or
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replaced, or delivered to the Trustee for credit against a principal payment or a sinking fund
installment; (ii) Bonds which have been paid; (iii) Bonds which have become due and for the
payment of which moneys have been duly provided; and (iv) Bonds for which there have been
irrevocably set aside sufficient funds, or Government or Equivalent Obligations described in
clause (i) or (ii) of the applicable definition thereof bearing interest at such rates and with such
maturities as will provide sufficient funds to pay or redeem them, provided, however, that if any
such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to maturity, the Authority shall have taken all action
necessary to redeem such Bonds and notice of such redemption shall have been duly mailed in
accordance with the Agreement or irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been given to
the Trustee.

“Paying Agent” means U.S. Bank National Association or any other Paying Agent
designated from time to time pursuant to the Agreement.

“Project” means, with respect to the Series I Bonds, (A) refinancing the Authority’s
Series F Bonds, which financed (i) the design and construction of an approximately 35,000 s.f.,
two-story dormitory accommodating approximately 120 students; (ii) the renovation and repair
of approximately 40 housing units by upgrading the electrical and heating systems, installing
new data transmission equipment, installing new lighting and plumbing fixtures, adding lounge
areas, repairing walls and floors, painting exterior and interior surfaces, and installing new
landscaping; and (iii) repairs and renovations on the Cushing Martin Building; (B) refinancing
the loan made from the Authority’s Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Capital Asset
Program Issue, Series D, which financed and refinanced (i) the construction and equipping of an
approximately 36,000 s.f. dormitory accommodating approximately 133 students; (ii)
construction of an approximately 62,000 s.f. library; and (iii) renovations to the Institution’s
buildings and acquisition of equipment on the Campus; and (C) refinancing the Authority’s
Series G Bonds, which financed (i) the renovation and repair of the Commonwealth Court Town
Houses; (ii) repairs and renovations on the Cushing Library; (iii) renovation and repair of the
Student Union Building; (iv) various routine capital expenditures of the Institution; and (v) the
refunding a portion of the Authority’s Series E Bonds, which financed or refinanced the Duffy
Academic Center, townhouse residences, a sports and student activity center, sewerage system
additions, additions and renovations to the Science and Building and Grounds Buildings, a
parking lot and various other facilities on the Institution’s Campus.

“Purchase Price” means an amount equal to 100% of the principal amount of any
Tendered Bond, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but not including the date of
purchase; provided, however, if the date of such purchase occurs after the Record Date
applicable to the interest accrued on such Series I Bond from the last occurring Interest Payment
Date, then the Purchase Price shall not include accrued and unpaid interest, which shall be paid
to the Bondowner of record on the applicable Record Date.

“Rate Period” means any Daily Rate Period, Weekly Rate Period, Commercial Paper
Rate Period, ARS Period or Fixed Rate Period.

“Rebate Year” means the one-year period (or shorter period from the date of issue of
each series of Bonds) ending on June 30.

“Revenues” means all rates, rents, fees, charges, and other income and receipts, including
proceeds of insurance, eminent domain and sale, and including proceeds derived from any
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security provided under the Agreement, payable to the Authority or the Trustee under the
Agreement, excluding administrative fees of the Authority, fees of the Trustee, reimbursements
to the Authority or the Trustee for expenses incurred by the Authority or the Trustee, and
indemnification of the Authority and the Trustee.

“Total Principal and Interest Requirements” means amounts required to amortize
principal during a year and to pay interest (other than capitalized interest) on long-term
indebtedness, taking into account in determining the Total Principal and Interest Requirements
for any future period that (i) at the election of the Institution, Balloon Indebtedness described in
the Agreement shall be deemed payable on the dates and in the amounts contemplated therein;
(ii) principal on all indebtedness (including the Bonds) shall be deemed to be payable on the
Date of Maturity thereof; and (iii) with respect to indebtedness refunded or refinanced during
such period, the amounts of principal and interest taken into account during such period shall
exclude amounts payable from the proceeds of the refunding indebtedness. Computation of debt
service on long-term indebtedness shall include an amount equal to 25% of the debt service on
obligations of others for borrowed money guaranteed by the Institution. Guaranties on a parity
with the Bonds under the Agreement and guaranties of obligations in default shall be included at
100% of debt service. If any issue of additional Bonds, Alternative Indebtedness or other long-
term indebtedness bears other than a fixed rate of interest, the rate reported in the then current
issue of the Bond Buyer as its “Thirty Year 25 Bond Revenue Index,” or any similar successor
index acceptable to the Authority, shall be the assumed interest rate of such indebtedness in
determining the maximum Total Principal and Interest Requirements with respect to such
indebtedness.

“Trustee” means U.S. Bank National Association, or any other bank, trust company or
national banking association appointed by or pursuant to the Agreement to act as Trustee.

“Tuition Receipts” means those receipts from any source which are applied or to be
applied to tuition or to financial aid for tuition, as set forth in the Agreement.

“Unrestricted Net Assets” shall be as set out in the Institution’s audited financial
statements.
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SUMMARY OF THE LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT

The following is a brief summary, prepared by Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to
the Authority, of certain provisions of the Loan and Trust Agreement (the “Loan and Trust
Agreement,” and, as supplemented and amended, the “Agreement”), pertaining to the Bonds and
the Project. The summary does not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the
Agreement for full and complete statements of such and all provisions.

The Loan and Trust Agreement was entered into pursuant to a resolution adopted by the
Authority on March 12, 1992, and was amended and supplemented by a First Supplemental
Agreement, entered into pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Authority on August 13, 1996
(the “First Supplemental Agreement”), which authorized the issuance of the Authority’s Series F
Bonds (as defined in the Agreement), a Second Supplemental Agreement, entered into pursuant
to a resolution adopted by the Authority on March 10, 1998 (the “Second Supplemental
Agreement”), which authorized the issuance of the Series G Bonds, a Third Supplemental
Agreement, entered into pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Authority on August 15, 2003
(the “Third Supplemental Agreement”), which authorized the issuance of the Series H Bonds,
and a Fourth Supplemental Agreement, entered into pursuant to a resolution adopted by the
Authority on September 13, 2005 (the “Fourth Supplemental Agreement”), which authorized the
issuance of the Series I Bonds, as defined below.

The Agreement authorizes the issuance of the Massachusetts Health and Educational
Facilities Authority Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series I
(2005)(Auction Rate Securities) (the “Series I Bonds” together with the Series E Bonds, the
Series F Bonds, the Series G Bonds, the Series H Bonds, and any additional Bonds issued under
the Agreement, being sometimes referred to collectively herein as the “Bonds”).

The Series H Bonds are not insured. The Series E Bonds, Series F Bonds, Series G
Bonds and Series I Bonds are insured by their respective bond insurers. Such bond insurers have
certain rights with respect to the applicable series of insured bonds and will be deemed to be the
owners of the applicable series of bonds for the purpose of giving consents, notices, directions
and waivers to the Institution, the Authority and the Trustee, so long as there has been no Bond
Insurer Event of Default, as defined in the Agreement.

Establishment of Funds

The following funds have been established and shall be maintained with the Trustee for
the account of the Institution, to be held in trust by the Trustee and applied subject to the
provisions of the Agreement:

Debt Service Fund;

Debt Service Reserve Fund;

Rebate Fund; and
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Redemption Fund.

An Expense Fund has been established with the Authority to be held by the Authority in
trust for the account of the Institution and applied subject to the provisions of the Agreement.
(Sections 303, 304, 305, 306, 307, 308, 311, and 312)

Debt Service Fund

The moneys in the Debt Service Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund
shall be held in trust and, except as otherwise provided, shall be applied by the Trustee solely to
the payment of the principal (including sinking fund installments), redemption premium, if any,
and interest on the Bonds. Moneys shall be transferred by the Trustee from the Debt Service
Fund to the Paying Agent for the payment of Bonds. (Section 303)

Debt Service Reserve Fund

The moneys in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, if any, and any investments held as part
of such fund shall be held in trust and, except as otherwise provided, shall be applied by the
Trustee solely to the payment of the principal (including sinking fund installments) of and
interest on the Bonds. When required to be funded, the Fund may be funded in whole or in part
with cash, securities constituting Permitted Investments for the Fund or an irrevocable letter of
credit or insurance policy reasonably acceptable to the bond insurers of each Series of Bonds, if
any, and the Trustee and issued by an issuer whose long-term debt obligations or claims-paying
ability, as applicable, is rated at least as highly as the Bonds are rated by Standard & Poor’s
Corporation and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. Any letter of credit or insurance policy shall be
in an amount which, together with any cash or securities in the Fund, shall equal the Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement, and available to be drawn on whenever the Agreement calls
for the application of moneys in the Fund.

If on any date the amount in the Rebate Fund is less than the amount then required by the
Agreement, the Trustee shall apply the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the extent
necessary to meet the deficiency, except that the Trustee shall not so apply any amount necessary
to pay or redeem the Bonds in full pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement regarding
defeasance of the Bonds. If on any date the amount in the Debt Service Fund is less than the
amount then required to be transferred to the Paying Agent to pay the principal (including
sinking fund installments) and interest then due on the Bonds, the Trustee, after making all
payments to the Rebate Fund required under the Agreement, shall apply the amount in the Debt
Service Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to meet the deficiency. The Institution shall
remain liable for any required sums which it has not paid to the Rebate Fund or Debt Service
Fund and any subsequent payment thereof shall be used to restore the funds so applied.

If the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund on July 1 or January 1 of any year (less
any payment made therefrom on that day described above) exceeds the Debt Service Reserve
Fund Requirement, the Trustee shall transfer the excess to the Debt Service Fund.

If and to the extent that the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund on January 1 of any
year is less than the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement, the Institution shall pay the
amount of such deficiency to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, in four
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(4) equal semi-annual payments of one-quarter (1/4) of the deficiency as of such Calculation
Date, commencing on the Calculation Date, and continuing on or before the succeeding July 1,
January 1 and July 1 of the following eighteen (18) months, except to the extent that the
deficiency is otherwise overcome (except by transfer from the Redemption Fund) on or before
June 1 or December 1, respectively. In the event that the ratio of Unrestricted Net Assets to
Bonds and Notes Payable (with a maturity of greater than one year) is equal to or greater than
0.75 to 1.0 for two (2) successive fiscal years, the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve
Fund shall be transferred to the Institution on such Calculation Date, free and clear of the lien of
the Agreement. (Section 304)

Redemption Fund

The moneys and investments held in the Redemption Fund shall be applied, except as
otherwise provided, to the redemption of Bonds. The Trustee may, and upon written direction of
the Institution for specific purchases shall, apply moneys in the Redemption Fund to the
purchase of Bonds for cancellation at prices not exceeding the price at which they are then
redeemable (or next redeemable if they are not then redeemable), but not within the forty-five
(45) days preceding a redemption date. Accrued interest on the purchase of Bonds shall be paid
from the Debt Service Fund. Moneys in the Redemption Fund to be applied to the redemption of
Bonds shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Paying Agent for payment.

If on any date the amount in the Debt Service Fund is less than the amount then required
to be transferred to the Paying Agent to pay the principal (including sinking fund installments)
and interest then due on the Bonds, the Trustee shall apply the amount in the Redemption Fund
(other than any sum irrevocably set aside for the redemption of particular Bonds or required to
purchase Bonds under outstanding purchase contracts) to the extent necessary to meet the
deficiency. The Institution shall remain liable for any sums which it has not paid into the Debt
Service Fund and any subsequent payment thereof shall be used to restore the funds so applied.

If on any date on which a payment is due to the Rebate Fund such payment is not made
fully by the Institution, the Trustee shall apply the amount in the Redemption Fund (other than
any sum irrevocably set aside for the redemption of particular Bonds or required to purchase
Bonds under outstanding purchase contracts) to the extent necessary to meet the deficiency. The
Institution shall remain liable for any sums which it has not paid into the Rebate Fund and any
subsequent payment thereof shall be used to restore the funds so applied.

If on January 1 or July 1 of any year the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less
than the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement, the Trustee shall transfer an amount from the
Redemption Fund (other than any sum irrevocably set aside for the redemption of particular
Bonds or required to purchase Bonds under outstanding purchase contracts) to the extent
necessary to meet the deficiency. The Institution shall remain liable to meet such deficiency and
any payment for such purpose shall be used to restore the funds transferred from the Redemption
Fund. (Section 305)
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Rebate Fund

A Rebate Fund has been established for the purpose of complying with IRC
Section 148(f) and the regulations thereunder (the “Rebate Provision”). Amounts in the Rebate
Fund shall not be available to pay principal of, interest, or redemption premium on the Bonds. If
the amount in the Rebate Fund is insufficient to pay the amount required to be paid under the
Rebate Provision, the Institution shall be liable to make up that deficiency prior to each date on
which a payment could become due. (Section 306).

Application of Moneys

If available moneys in the Debt Service Fund after any required transfers from the Debt
Service Reserve Fund and the Redemption Fund are not sufficient on any day to pay the
principal of (including sinking fund installments), redemption price and interest on the
Outstanding Bonds then due or overdue, such moneys (other than any sum in the Redemption
Fund irrevocably set aside for the redemption of particular Bonds or required to purchase Bond
under outstanding purchase contracts and amounts required to be paid to the Rebate Fund) shall,
after payment of all charges and disbursements of the Trustee in accordance with the Agreement,
be applied (in the order such Funds are named in this paragraph) first to the payment of interest,
including interest on overdue principal, in the order in which the same became due (pro rata with
respect to interest which became due at the same time) and second to the payment of the
principal and redemption premiums, if any, without regard to the order in which same became
due (in proportion to the amounts due). For this purpose interest on overdue principal shall be
treated as coming due on the first day of each month. Whenever moneys are to be applied
pursuant to this paragraph, such moneys shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as
the Trustee in its discretion shall determine, having due regard to the amount of such moneys
available for application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such
application in the future. Whenever the Trustee shall exercise such discretion it shall fix the date
(which shall be the first of a month unless the Trustee shall deem another date more suitable)
upon which such application is to be made, and upon such date interest on the amounts of
principal paid on such date shall cease to accrue. The Trustee shall give such notice as it may
deem appropriate of the fixing of any such date. When interest or a portion of the principal is to
be paid on an overdue Bond, the Trustee may require presentation of the Bond for endorsement
of the payment. (Section 308)

Investment of Moneys

As more fully described in the Agreement, with respect to each Series of Bonds, pending
their use under the Agreement, moneys in the Debt Service Fund, Redemption Fund and Rebate
Fund may be invested by the Trustee in certain Permitted Investments (as defined below)
maturing or redeemable at the option of the holder at or before the time when such moneys are
expected to be needed and shall be so invested pursuant to written direction of the Institution if
there is not then an Event of Default known to the Trustee; Moneys in the Debt Service Reserve
Fund may be invested by the Trustee in certain Permitted Investments of a type customarily sold
in a recognized market and shall be so invested pursuant to written direction of the Institution if
there is not then an Event of Default known to the Trustee; provided that all investments in such
fund shall mature with five (5) years except as approved by the Series I Bond Insurer. Moneys
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in the Expense Fund may be invested by the Authority in Permitted Investments maturing or
redeemable at the option of the holder not later than the time when such moneys are expected to
be needed.

Except as set forth below, any interest realized on investments in any Fund and any profit
realized upon the sale or other disposition thereof shall be credited to the Fund with respect to
which they were earned and any loss shall be charged thereto. Earnings on moneys deposited in
the Debt Service Reserve Fund and on the Redemption Fund shall be transferred to the Debt
Service Fund and credited against the payments otherwise required to be make thereto.

With respect to the Series I Bonds, the term “Permitted Investments” means: (i) Direct
obligations of the United States of America (including obligations issued or held in book-entry
form on the books of the Department of the Treasury, and CATS and TIGRS) or obligations the
principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of
America; (ii) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by
any of the following federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States of America (stripped securities are only permitted if they have
been stripped by the agency itself): U.S. Export-Import Bank direct obligations or fully
guaranteed certificates of beneficial ownership, Farmers Home Administration certificates of
beneficial ownership, Federal Financing Bank, Federal Housing Administration debentures,
General Services Administration participation certificates, Government National Mortgage
Association (GNMA – guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds; GNMA – guaranteed pass-through
obligations), U.S. Maritime Administration guaranteed Title XI financing, U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development project notes, local Authority bonds, New Communities
Debentures – U.S. government guaranteed debentures, U.S. public housing notes and bonds –
U.S. government guaranteed public housing notes and bonds; (iii) Bonds, debentures, notes or
other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any of the following federal agencies
which are not backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America (stripped
securities are only permitted if they have been stripped by the agency itself): Federal Home Loan
Bank System senior debt obligations, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation participation
certificates and senior debt obligations, Federal National Mortgage Association mortgage-backed
securities and senior debt obligations, Student Loan Marketing Association senior debt
obligations, Resolution Funding Corp. obligations, Farm Credit System consolidated systemwide
bonds and notes; (iv) Money market funds registered under the Federal Investment Company Act
of 1940, whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, and having a
rating by S&P of AAAm-G; AAA-m; or AA-m and if rated by Moody’s rated Aaa, Aa1 or Aa2,
and the Authority’s STAR Fund, so long as it is rated as least AA-m by S&P; (v) Certificates of
deposit secured at all times by collateral described in (i) and/or (ii) above. (Such certificates
must be issued by commercial banks, savings and loan associations or mutual savings banks.
The collateral must be held by a third party and the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be,
must have a perfected first security interest in the collateral.); (vi) Certificates of deposit, savings
accounts, deposit accounts or money market deposits which are fully insured by FDIC, including
BIF and SAIF; (vii) Investment Agreements, including GIC’s, Forward Purchase Agreements
and Reserve Fund Put Agreements acceptable to the Series I Bond Insurer; (viii) Commercial
paper rated, at the time of purchase, “Prime-1” by Moody’s and “A-1” or better by S&P; (ix)
Bonds or notes issued by any state or municipality which are rated by Moody’s and S&P in one
of the two highest rating categories assigned by such rating agencies; (x) Federal funds or
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bankers acceptances with a maximum term of one year of any bank which has an unsecured,
uninsured and unguaranteed obligation rating of “Prime-1” or “A3” or better by Moody’s and
“A-1” or “A” or better by S&P; (xi) Repurchase Agreements for 30 days or less must follow the
following criteria. Repos which exceed 30 days must be acceptable to the Series I Bond Insurer
(criteria available upon request). Repos provide for the transfer of securities from a dealer bank
or securities firm (seller/borrower) to the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be,
(buyer/lender) and the transfer of cash from the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be, to
the dealer bank or securities firm with an agreement that the dealer bank or securities firm will
repay the cash plus a yield to the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be, in exchange for
the securities at a specified date. Repos must be between the Authority or the Trustee, as the case
may be, and a dealer bank or securities firm (Primary dealers on the Federal Reserve reporting
dealer list which are rated A or better by S&P and A2 or better by Moody’s, or Banks rated “A”
or better by S&P and A2 or better by Moody’s; The written repurchase agreement must include
the following: (a.) Securities which are acceptable for transfer are: (1) Direct obligations of the
United States of America referred to in (i) above, or (2) Obligations of federal agencies referred
to in (ii) above, or (3) Obligations of FNMA and FHLMC. (b.) The term of the Repos may be up
to 30 days. (c.) The collateral must be delivered to the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may
be, (if the trustee is not supplying the collateral) or third party acting as agent for the trustee is (if
the trustee is supplying the collateral) before/simultaneous with payment (perfection by
possession of certified securities). (d.) Valuation of Collateral: (1) the securities must be valued
weekly, marked-to-market at current market price plus accrued interest, (2) the value of
collateral must be equal to 104% of the amount of cash transferred by the Authority or the
Trustee, as the case may be, to the dealer bank or security firm under the repo plus accrued
interest. If the value of securities held as collateral slips below 105% of the value of the cash
transferred by the Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be, then additional cash and/or
acceptable securities must be transferred. If, however, the securities used as collateral are
FNMA or FHLMC, then the value of collateral must equal 105%.

Notwithstanding the immediately preceding paragraph, Permitted Investments with
respect to the Series I Bonds shall not include the following: (i) Government or Equivalent
Obligations, certificates of deposit and banker’s acceptances, in each case with yields lower than
the yield available on comparable obligations then offered by the United States Treasury; (ii) any
demand deposit or similar account with a bank, trust company or broker, unless (x) the account is
used for holding funds for a short period of time until such funds are reinvested or spent, and (y)
substantially all the funds in the account are withdrawn for reinvestment or expenditure within
fifteen (15) days of their deposit therein; or (iii) repurchase agreements, unless (x) at least three
(3) bids are obtained on the proposed repurchase agreement from persons other than those with
an interest in the Series I Bonds, (y) the yield on the repurchase agreement is at least equal to the
yield offered by the highest bidder, and (z) a written record of the yield offered by each bidder is
maintained. Any of the requirements of this paragraph shall not apply to moneys allocable to the
Series I Bonds as to which the Trustee and the Authority shall have received an opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such requirements are not necessary to
preserve the exclusion of interest on the Series I Bonds from the gross income of the recipient
thereof for federal income tax purposes. (Section 312)
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Payments by the Institution

On or before December 15 and June 15 in each year, the Institution shall pay to the
Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Fund (whether from tuition or otherwise) at least three (3)
Business Days prior to the date on which any payment of principal (including any sinking fund
installment) or interest on the Series I Bonds is due, an amount equal to such payment.

At any time when any principal (including sinking fund installments) of the Bonds is
overdue, the Institution shall also have a continuing obligation to pay to the Trustee for deposit
in the Debt Service Fund an amount equal to interest on the overdue principal but the installment
payments required under the Agreement shall not otherwise bear interest. Redemption premiums
shall not bear interest.

As additional security for its obligations to make payments to the Debt Service Fund and
Rebate Fund, the Institution grants to the Authority a lien upon all of its Tuition Receipts which
are available after satisfaction of prior liens on Tuition Receipts, whether in the form of proceeds
of accounts receivable or contract rights or otherwise, and in any rights to receive the same. For
this purpose Tuition Receipts shall include receipts from any source which are applied or to be
applied to tuition or financial aid for tuition. If any required payment is not made when due, any
Tuition Receipts with respect to which this security interest remains perfected pursuant to law
(including the Act) shall be transferred or paid over immediately to the Trustee without being
commingled with other funds (unless already commingled) and any such Tuition Receipts
thereafter received shall upon receipt be transferred immediately to the Trustee in the form
received to the extent necessary to cure the deficiency. The Institution represents and warrants in
the Agreement that the lien granted in the Tuition Receipts is and at all times will be a first lien,
subject only to (i) the liens permitted under the Agreement and (ii) non-consensual liens arising
by operation of law. The Institution further represents and warrants that the liens mentioned in
clause (ii) of this paragraph are and will at all times be of an aggregate amount which is not
material to the security for the Bonds and Alternative Indebtedness (if any).

________________________________________

Tuition Receipts paid by the Institution to other parties in the ordinary
course might no longer be subject to the lien of the Agreement and might,
therefore, be unavailable to the Authority. The enforcement of the lien on Tuition
Receipts and receivables is also subject to the exercise of discretion by a court of
equity which, under certain circumstances, may have power to direct the use
thereof to meet expenses of the Institution before paying debt service. In the
event of the bankruptcy of the Institution, pursuant to Sections 547 and 552 of the
Bankruptcy Code, Title 11 of the United States Code, receivables coming into
existence and Tuition Receipts received by the Institution on or after the date
which is ninety (90) days (or, in some circumstance, one year) prior to the
commencement of the case in bankruptcy court might not be subject to the lien of
the Authority. With respect to Tuition Receipts not subject to the lien, the
Authority would occupy the position of an unsecured creditor.

________________________________________
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Payments by the Institution to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Fund under the
Agreement shall discharge the obligation of the Institution to the extent of such payments;
provided, that if any moneys are invested in accordance with the Agreement and a loss results
therefrom so that there are insufficient funds to pay principal and interest on the Bonds when
due, the Institution shall supply the deficiency.

The Institution shall also pay expenditures reasonably incurred by the Authority, the
Trustee and the Paying Agent by reason of the Agreement. (Section 309)

Additional Bonds

The Authority may issue additional Bonds, on a parity with the Outstanding Bonds, to
refund Bonds previously issued under the Agreement or to finance or refinance any other project
or projects of the Institution permitted under the Act.

Prior to the delivery of the additional Bonds, the Institution, the Authority and the Trustee
shall enter into a supplemental agreement providing for the details of the additional Bonds,
including the application of the proceeds thereof substantially in accordance with the provisions
of the Agreement relating to the initial Bonds. The supplemental agreement shall require
payments by the Institution at such times and in such manner as shall be necessary to provide for
full payment of the debt service on the additional Bonds as it becomes due. The supplemental
agreement may amend any provision of the Agreement, provided that it will not have a material
adverse effect upon the security for the Bonds other than that implicit in the authorization of
parity Bonds.

No additional Bonds shall be delivered by the Trustee (except to complete the Project or
to refund Bonds) unless there shall have been filed with the Authority and the Trustee:

(i) A certificate of an architect acceptable to the Authority setting forth (A)
the estimated cost of the project being financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the
additional Bonds, (B) the estimated amounts which will be required from month to month
for paying such cost, and (C) the estimated date of completion of such project; and

(ii) A certificate acceptable to the Authority of an Authorized Officer of the
Institution stating that the maximum Total Principal and Interest Requirements in any
future fiscal year for the Bonds (including any additional Bonds and the proposed
additional Bonds), Alternative Indebtedness and other long-term indebtedness will not
exceed thirteen percent (13%) of the unrestricted operating revenues as shown on the
most recent audited financial statements of the Institution.

The interest shall be payable semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each year and
principal payments or sinking fund installments shall be payable on July 1 of each year. (Section
501)
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Alternative Indebtedness

The Institution may incur Alternative Indebtedness to finance or refinance any capital
project or projects of the Institution or guarantee the indebtedness of others on a parity with the
Bonds and Alternative Indebtedness (provided that the indebtedness guaranteed, if issued
directly by the Institution, could be issued as Alternative Indebtedness under the Agreement), but
in each case only with the written consent of the Authority, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld after considering the interests of the Bondowners.

Consent of the Authority to the incurring of Alternative Indebtedness by the Institution
may be given upon the fulfillment of the following conditions:

(i) The Institution and the Alternative Indebtedness lender or lenders (the
“Alternative Lender”) shall have entered into a written agreement satisfactory to the Authority,
and an executed counterpart of such agreement shall have been delivered to the Authority and
the Trustee;

(ii) There shall have been filed with the Authority and the Trustee:

(A) An opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel satisfactory to the
Authority that the agreement between the Institution and the Alternative Lender and any
supplement to the Agreement in connection therewith are permitted by the Agreement
and that the creation of security interests in the Institution’s Tuition Receipts for the
benefit of the holders of Alternative Indebtedness is permitted by law and will not
materially adversely affect (other than is implicit in the authorization of parity debt) the
rights of the Bondowners to realize upon their share of the security interests in the
Tuition Receipts of the Institution;

(B) A certificate of an architect acceptable to the Authority containing (1) the
estimated costs of the project to be financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the
Alternative Indebtedness, (2) the estimated amounts which will be required from month
to month for paying such cost, (3) the estimated date of completion of the project, and (4)
a statement that, in his or her opinion, the proceeds of the Alternative Indebtedness
together with other available moneys, as represented by the Institution, are not less than
the total cost of the project; provided however, that if the project or a portion of the
project is one for which plans and specifications have not been prepared by an architect,
or with the consent of the Authority, a certificate of an Authorized Officer of the
Institution setting forth all or any portion of the information required by this clause (B)
may be substituted for the corresponding information required from an architect; and

(C) A certificate acceptable to the Authority of an Authorized Officer of the
Institution stating that the maximum Total Principal and Interest Requirements in any
future fiscal year for the Bonds (including any additional Bonds), Alternative
Indebtedness (including such proposed Alternative Indebtedness) and other long-term
indebtedness will not exceed thirteen percent (13%) of the unrestricted operating
revenues as shown on the most recent audited financial statements of the Institution.
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(iii) The Agreement shall have been amended to provide that the lien on the Tuition
Receipts of the Institution secures the obligation of the Institution to make payments of principal
of and interest on the Alternative Indebtedness in addition to the payments and obligations
described in the Agreement.

In addition to the Tuition Receipts of the Institution, Alternative Indebtedness may be
secured by a pledge, lien, mortgage, security interest or other encumbrance on any tangible or
intangible property of the Institution other than money or other property on deposit in the Rebate
Fund, Expense Fund, Debt Service Fund, Debt Service Reserve Fund, or Redemption Fund
maintained under the Agreement.

Unless waived in writing by the Authority, the agreement between the Institution and the
Alternative Lender shall contain the following provisions:

(i) Any pledge, lien, mortgage, security interest or other encumbrance on any tangible or
intangible property of the Institution granted to secure Alternative Indebtedness shall be
extended also to secure the obligations of the Institution under the Agreement equally and ratably
with such Alternative Indebtedness;

(ii) Payments by the Institution shall be required at such times and in such manner as
shall be necessary to provide for full payment of the debt service on the Alternative Indebtedness
as it becomes due in substantially equal annual amounts of principal or in substantially equal
amounts of principal and interest combined and to provide for payment of any other cost in
connection therewith;

(iii) The Alternative Lender and the trustee, if any, appointed to administer the
Alternative Indebtedness (the “Alternative Indebtedness Trustee”) shall notify the Authority, the
Trustee and the Institution of any default in a payment by the Institution with respect to debt
service on the Alternative Indebtedness immediately upon becoming aware of such default; and

(iv) The recovery and application of insurance and eminent domain proceeds as provided
in the Agreement, the exercise of the rights and remedies of the Authority under the Agreement,
the institution of legal proceedings by the Authority or the Trustee under the Agreement, and the
exercise of the rights of the Authority under the Agreement shall be the sole and exclusive
remedies of the Alternative Lender and the Alternative Indebtedness Trustee (in the event of a
default or breach by the Institution under the agreement between the Institution and the
Alternative Lender) with respect to the lien on the Tuition Receipts. However, the agreement
between the Institution and the Alternative Lender may set forth additional remedies which the
Alternative Lender or the Alternative Indebtedness Trustee may exercise with respect to the
Tuition Receipts upon obtaining the written consent of the Authority.

The agreement between the Institution and the Alternative Lender shall also set forth the
specific terms of allocation between the Bonds and Alternative Indebtedness (based on the levels
of Outstanding indebtedness of Bonds and Alternative Indebtedness from time to time, which
may include interest to the extent permitted by such agreement) of any net proceeds derived from
the exercise of the rights and remedies of the Authority and the Trustee under the Agreement
and/or of any net proceeds derived from the exercise of the rights and remedies of the Alternative
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Lender and the Alternative Indebtedness Trustee, if any, under the agreement between the
Institution and the Alternative Lender.

The Authority, the Trustee and the Institution may enter into a supplemental agreement to
provide for the incurring of Alternative Indebtedness by the Institution. Such a supplemental
agreement may provide, among other things, for notices from the holders of Alternative
Indebtedness or from the Alternative Indebtedness Trustee to the Trustee and/or the Authority
regarding defaults by the Institution, the duties and limitations of duties of the Trustee and/or the
Authority to pursue remedies upon the receipt of such notice, and the sharing of the rights of the
Bondowners to control the exercise of remedies with the holders of Alternative Indebtedness.
(Section 502)

Balloon Indebtedness

At the election of the Institution, for the purpose of determining Total Principal and
Interest Requirements, the principal and interest deemed to be payable on Balloon Indebtedness
shall be as set forth below:

(i) If the Institution has obtained a binding commitment of a responsible financial
institution satisfactory to the bond insurers (to the extent insured Bonds are then Outstanding)
and the Authority to refinance such Balloon Indebtedness (or a portion thereof), including
without limitation, a letter of credit or a line of credit, which commitment is subject only to such
conditions as are reasonably acceptable to the Authority, the Balloon Indebtedness (or a portion
thereof) may be deemed to be payable in accordance with the terms of the refinancing
arrangement; or

(ii) If (A) the Date of Maturity of any portion of such Balloon Indebtedness is more than
eighteen (18) months after the date of any transaction for which a determination of Total
Principal and Interest Requirements is made, or (B) the condition of paragraph (i) above is
satisfied with respect to such portion by a financing arrangement having a term not less than
three (3) years, such portion of such Balloon Indebtedness may be deemed (but, with respect to
Balloon Indebtedness described in clause (A) above, subject to the approval of the Authority) to
be indebtedness payable over a fifteen (15) year term, at the interest rate certified below, in equal
annual installments of principal and interest, provided that the Institution has delivered to the
Authority a certificate of an investment banker satisfactory to the Authority stating that it is
reasonable to assume that such indebtedness of the Institution could be sold and stating the
interest rate then applicable to fifteen (15) year obligations of comparable quality and type. The
amount of Balloon Indebtedness deemed to be payable over a fifteen (15) year period pursuant to
clause (A) above, shall not at any time exceed fifteen percent (15%) of either the aggregate
unrestricted fund balance or Bonds and Notes Payable (with a maturity of greater than one year)
for the preceding fiscal year unless approved in writing by the bond insurer for each series of
Bonds, if any. (Section 503)

Default

“Event of Default” means any one of the events set forth below and “default” means any
Event of Default without regard to any lapse of time or notice.
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(i) Debt Service. The Institution shall fail to make any debt service payment or any
payment under the Rebate Provision required of it under the Agreement within seven (7) days
after the same becomes due and payable.

(ii) Other Obligations. The Institution shall fail to make any other required payment to
the Trustee, and such failure is not remedied within seven (7) days after written notice, or the
Institution shall fail to perform any of its obligations under the Agreement with respect to
maintaining insurance or its financial covenants and such failure is not remedied within seven (7)
days after written notice, or the Institution shall fail to observe or perform any of its other
agreements, covenants or obligations under the Agreement and such failure is not remedied
within sixty (60) days after written notice.

(iii) Warranties. There shall be a material breach of warranty made in the Agreement by
the Institution and the breach is not cured within sixty (60) days after written notice.

(iv) Voluntary Bankruptcy. The Institution shall commence a voluntary case under the
federal bankruptcy laws, or shall become insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they become due,
or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall apply for, consent to or
acquiesce in the appointment of, or taking possession by, a trustee, receiver, custodian or similar
official or agent for itself or any substantial part of its property.

(v) Appointment of Receiver. A trustee, receiver, custodian or similar official or agent
shall be appointed for the Institution or for any substantial part of its property and shall not be
discharged within sixty (60) days.

(vi) Involuntary Bankruptcy. The Institution shall have an order or decree for relief in an
involuntary case under the federal bankruptcy laws entered against it, or a petition seeking
reorganization, readjustment, arrangement, composition, or similar relief as to it under the
federal bankruptcy laws or any similar law for the relief of debtors shall be brought against it and
shall be consented to by it or shall remain undismissed for sixty (60) days.

(vii) Breach of Other Agreements. A breach shall occur (and continue beyond any
applicable grace period) with respect to a payment of other indebtedness of the Institution for
borrowed money with respect to loans exceeding $100,000, or with respect to the performance of
any agreement securing such other indebtedness or pursuant to which the same was issued or
incurred, or an event shall occur with respect to the provisions of any such agreement relating to
matters of the character referred to in this paragraph, so that a holder or holders of such
indebtedness or a trustee or trustees under any such agreement accelerates or is empowered to
accelerate any such indebtedness; but an Event of Default shall not be deemed to be in existence
or to be continuing if (a) the Institution is in good faith contesting the existence of such breach or
event and if such acceleration is being stayed by judicial proceedings, or (b) the power of
acceleration is not exercised and it ceases to be in effect, or (c) such breach or event is remedied
and the acceleration, is any, is wholly annulled.

If the Trustee determines that a default has been cured before the entry of any final
judgment or decree with respect to it, the Trustee may waive the default and its consequences,
including any acceleration, with the written consent of the Authority, by written notice to the
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Institution and shall do so, with the written consent of the Authority, upon written instruction of
the owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds.
(Section 601)

Remedies for Events of Default

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing:

(i) Acceleration. With respect to the Series E Bonds, the Series G Bonds and the Series
H Bonds, the Trustee may by written notice to the Institution and the Authority with the consent
or at the direction of the appropriate bond insurer, if any, to the extent Outstanding Bonds are
insured, declare immediately due and payable the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds
and the payments to be made by the Institution therefor, and accrued interest on the foregoing,
whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable without any further action or
notice.

(ii) Rights as to Tuition Receipts. The Authority may exercise all of the rights and
remedies of a secured party, under the Massachusetts Uniform Commercial Code (the “Code”) or
otherwise, with respect to the lien on Tuition Receipts. (Section 602)

The rights and remedies under the Agreement shall be cumulative and shall not exclude
any other rights allowed by law, provided there is no duplication of recovery. (Section 606)

Limitations on Bondowners’ Remedies

The Authority and the Trustee may be directed to act by the Bondowners as described in
this paragraph. The Trustee shall be required to take notice of a breach or default by the
Institution or the Authority, and the Authority shall be required to take notice of a breach or
default by the Institution, when given written notice thereof by the Institution or by the owners of
at least ten percent (10%) in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds. The Trustee shall
institute legal proceedings to enforce the obligations of the Authority under the Agreement, and
the Authority shall institute legal proceedings to enforce the obligations of the Institution under
the Agreement, in accordance with the written directions of the owners of a majority in principal
amount of the Outstanding Bonds. Neither the Trustee nor the Authority shall be required to
take remedial action (other than acceleration, in the case of the Trustee, or the giving of notice)
unless reasonable indemnity is furnished for any expense or liability to be incurred therein.
(Sections 702, 802 and 902)

No Bondowner shall have any right to institute any legal proceedings for the enforcement
of the Agreement or any applicable remedy thereunder, unless the Bondowners have directed the
Authority to act as provided in the Agreement and furnished the Authority indemnity as provided
therein and have afforded the Authority reasonable opportunity to proceed, and the Authority
shall thereafter fail or refuse to take such action.

No Bondowner shall have any right to institute any legal proceedings for the enforcement
of the obligations of the Trustee under the Agreement or any applicable remedy thereunder,
unless the Bondowners have directed the Trustee to act as provided in the Agreement and
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furnished the Trustee indemnity as provided therein and have afforded the Trustee reasonable
opportunity to proceed, and the Trustee shall thereafter fail or refuse to take such action.

Subject to the foregoing, any Bondowner may by any available legal proceedings enforce
and protect its rights under the Agreement and the laws of the Commonwealth. (Section 902)

Covenant as to Operation

To the extent consistent with its status as a nonprofit educational institution, the
Institution shall do nothing which would adversely affect its exemption from federal income
taxes. The Institution shall not take or permit any action which would cause the Bonds to be
“arbitrage bonds” under IRC Section 148 or to cease to be qualified 501(c)(3) bonds under
Section 145 of the IRC. (Section 1002)

Maintenance of Corporate Existence

The Institution shall maintain its existence as a nonprofit corporation qualified to do
business in the Commonwealth and shall not dissolve or dispose of all or substantially all of its
assets, or spin off a substantial amount of its assets, or consolidate with or merge into another
entity or entities, or permit one or more other entities to consolidate with or merge into it, or
transfer all or substantially all of its assets to one or more other entities (and thereafter dissolve
or not dissolve as it may elect) except upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the
Agreement which include that the surviving or resulting entity or entities each meets certain
requirements set forth in the Agreement as to its nonprofit, tax-exempt status and assumes all the
obligations of the Institution under the Agreement and that either (i) the ratio of Net Revenues
Available for Debt Service to the maximum Total Principal and Interest Requirements for Bonds
and other long-term indebtedness of the Institution or surviving entity for that or any subsequent
fiscal year during which Bonds will be Outstanding was at least 1.50 and that such transaction
will not lower the ratio for the Institution by more than thirty percent (30%) from what it would
have been without the transaction, or (ii) that such pro forma ratio is greater than the ratio for the
Institution would have been without the transaction. (Section 1006)

Encumbrance, Sale and Lease of Property

The Institution has agreed not to grant a mortgage or otherwise grant a security interest in
any of the currently existing buildings (excepting only the student union building), including the
real property appurtenant thereto, or fixtures located on the Institution’s campus (the “Existing
Buildings”), to secure indebtedness unless the Institution shall grant to the Authority a mortgage
or security interest in the Existing Buildings to be used to secure such indebtedness concurrently
with the granting of a mortgage or security interest to any other mortgagee or secured party
which places the Authority in a parity position in every respect with such mortgagee or secured
party. The Institution shall not sell, transfer, lease, convey or grant or otherwise dispose of any
of the Existing Buildings, or permit others to occupy the same except to carry out the purposes of
the Institution, without the Authority’s written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld. The Authority may waive any of the above restrictions with regard to the
encumbrance or disposition of the Existing Buildings at any time, provided that the value of the
Existing Buildings to be so encumbered or disposed is less than fifteen percent (15%) of the
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aggregate value of the Existing Buildings, and the Authority’s waiver of such restrictions at any
given time shall not be construed as a waiver or a relinquishment in the future of such
requirements. (Section 1007)

Financial Covenants

The Institution shall maintain the ratio of its Unrestricted Net Assets to Bonds and Notes
Payable (with a maturity of greater than one year) of not less than .25 to 1.0. In the event of a
Major Capital Investment, such ratio need not be maintained. For the purposes of this subsection
(a) a “Major Capital Investment” is defined as an investment of unrestricted funds to: (i) acquire
or merge with another school, college, university or other entity; (ii) purchase or otherwise
acquire land or buildings for future college development; or (iii) purchase other substantial
properties or rights the purpose of which is to provide increased opportunity for the Institution to
compete for students or otherwise enhance net revenues. In years subsequent to the acquisition,
the amount of non-donor restricted funds utilized for such Major Capital Investment will be
added back to the sum of the Unrestricted Net Assets for the purpose of calculating this ratio.

The Institution may not incur short-term indebtedness for borrowed money outstanding at
any one time exceeding fifteen percent (15%) of revenues from student tuition and fees as shown
in its most recent audited financial statements and shall have no short-term indebtedness
outstanding for a period of at least thirty (30) consecutive days in each of its fiscal years.

Prior to the issuance of any new long-term debt, the Institution shall provide the
Authority and the Trustee a certificate acceptable to the Authority of an Authorized Officer of
the Institution stating that according to audited financial statements for the prior fiscal year,
maximum Total Principal and Interest Requirements in any future fiscal year on all Outstanding
debt (excluding internal loans due one Institution fund from another) and the proposed new debt
does not exceed thirteen percent (13%) of the unrestricted operating revenues as shown on the
most recent audited financial statements of the Institution. (Section 1007)

Insurance

The Institution (i) shall keep its plant, equipment and furnishings insured against fire,
lightning and extended coverage perils and against such other risks as are customarily insured
against by similar institutions in the area, in an amount at least equal to eighty percent (80%) of
the insurable value thereof, exclusive of excavations and foundations, or, in the case of blanket
policies, an amount at least equal to the long-term indebtedness of the Institution (as determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles), including the Bonds and
Alternative Indebtedness, but in any case not less than the amount necessary to avoid
coinsurance; (ii) shall carry worker’s compensation insurance, disability insurance and other
insurance, to the extent required by law, covering injury, sickness, disability or death of
employees; and (iii) shall maintain insurance against liability of the Institution imposed by law or
assumed by contract for injuries to persons, and for death of persons from such injuries, in the
minimum amount of $1,000,000 per person and $1,000,000 per occurrence and $10,000,000 in
the aggregate per policy year and for damages to property in the minimum amount of $7,000,000
per occurrence and $10,000,000 in the aggregate per policy year. Substitutions for or omissions
from the required coverage may be made with the consent of the Authority. Without limiting the
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generality of the foregoing, the Authority may consent to self-insurance or other risk
management programs and may take account of legal limitations on potential liability. (Section
405)

Amendments

The Agreement may be amended by the parties without Bondowner consent, to provide
for the issuance of additional Bonds or the incurrence of Alternative Indebtedness, or to add to
the covenants of or surrender or limit any right of the Institution, or to cure any ambiguity, or to
add provisions not inconsistent with the Agreement and which do not impair the security for the
Bonds. Other amendments require the written consent of the owners of at least two-thirds (2/3)
in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds. However, no amendment shall (1) extend the
maturity of any Bond; (2) reduce the principal amount or interest rate of any Bond; (3) make any
Bond redeemable other than in accordance with its terms; (4) create a preference or priority of
any Bond or Bonds over any other Bond or Bonds; or (5) reduce the consent requirements for
any amendment, without the unanimous written consent of the affected Bondowners. When the
requisite number of consents have been obtained for an amendment which requires Bondowner
consents, the Trustee shall mail notice of such event to the Bondowners. (Section 1101)

Defeasance

When the respective series of Bonds have been paid or redeemed in full as provided in
the Agreement, or after there are in the Debt Service Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund and
the Redemption Fund sufficient cash (insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation or otherwise collateralized by Government or Equivalent Obligations), or
Government or Equivalent Obligations in such principal amounts, bearing interest at such rates
and with such maturities as will provide sufficient funds to pay or redeem the respective series of
Bonds in full, when there are in the Rebate Fund sufficient funds, or Government or Equivalent
Obligations in such principal amount, bearing interest at such rates and with such maturities as
will provide sufficient funds to pay to the United States all amounts due or which may become
due in respect of the respective series of Bonds under IRC §148(f), and when all the rights of the
Authority and Trustee under the Agreement have been provided for, upon written notice from the
Institution to the Authority and the Trustee and receipt by the Authority and the Trustee of (i) a
verification report prepared by a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants
acceptable to the Authority addressed to the Authority dated as of the date of such defeasance,
stating that such firm has verified the accuracy of (x) the mathematical computations of the
adequacy of the maturing principal of and interest on the Government or Equivalent Obligations
held by the Trustee to provide for the payment of principal and redemption premium and interest
on the respective series of Bonds when due, and (y) the mathematical computations of the
actuarial yield on such Government or Equivalent Obligations and on the respective series of
Bonds, which computations support certain opinions of bond counsel, with respect to Section
148 of the IRC, and (ii) an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel satisfactory to the
Authority dated as of the date of such defeasance that the respective series of Bonds have been
defeased, the applicable Bondowners shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under
the Agreement except the right to receive payment of the funds deposited and held for payment
and other rights which by their nature cannot be satisfied prior to or simultaneously with
termination of the lien of the Agreement, the security interests created by the Agreement (except
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in such funds and investments) shall terminate, and the Authority and the Trustee shall execute
and deliver such instruments as may be necessary to discharge the lien and security interest
created under the Agreement; provided, however, that if any such respective series of Bonds are
to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, the Authority shall have taken all action necessary
to redeem such respective series of Bonds and notice of such redemption shall have been duly
mailed in accordance with the Agreement or irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been
given to the Trustee. Upon such defeasance, the funds and investments required to pay or redeem
the respective series of Bonds in full shall be irrevocably set aside for that purpose and moneys
held for defeasance shall be invested only as described above in this paragraph. Any funds or
property held by the Trustee and not required for payment or redemption of the respective series
of Bonds in full shall, after satisfaction of all the rights of the Authority, and the Trustee and
after allowance for payment into the Rebate Fund, if any, be distributed to the Institution upon
such indemnification, if any, as the Authority or the Trustee may reasonably require. (Section
203)
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SUMMARY OF PROCEDURES RELATING TO AUCTION RATE SECURITIES 

The following is a summary, prepared by Edwards & Angell, LLP, Counsel to the Underwriter, of 
certain provisions in the Agreement, Auction Agent Agreement, Broker Dealer Agreement and Market Agent 
Agreement relating to the Series I Bonds when bearing interest at Auction Rates which are not described 
elsewhere in this Official Statement.  The summary does not purport to be complete, and reference is made to 
the Agreement for full and complete statements of such and all provisions. 

Capitalized but undefined terms used herein shall have the meanings set forth in Appendix C-1 – 
Definitions of Certain Terms. 

Auction Participants 

 Existing Owners and Potential Owners.  Participants in each Auction will include: (i) “Existing 
Owners,” which shall mean any Person who is listed in the Existing Owner Registry at the close of business on 
the Business Day immediately preceding the Auction Date for such Auction, and (ii) “Potential Owners,” 
which shall mean any Person, including any Existing Owner, who may be interested in acquiring ARS (or, in 
the case of an Existing Owner, an additional principal amount of ARS). 

 By purchasing ARS, whether in an Auction or otherwise, each prospective purchaser of ARS or its 
Broker-Dealer will be deemed to have agreed to all of the provisions relating to ARS, including but not limited 
to: (i) for the replacement of the Auction Agent, each Broker-Dealer and the Market Agent, (ii) the Book-Entry 
System, (iii) the Auction Procedures, (iv) Settlement Procedures, and (v) all other ARS provisions as provided 
in the Agreement, and relevant agreements among the Institution, the Trustee, the Auction Agent, the Market 
Agent and each Broker-Dealer, as appropriate. 

Market Agent.  The Market Agent shall serve as such under the terms and provisions of the 
Agreement and of the Market Agent Agreement. The Market Agent shall be a member of the National 
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. having capitalization of at least $25,000,000, be acceptable to the 
Insurer, and be authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by the Agreement and the Market 
Agent Agreement. The Market Agent may be removed by the Trustee at any time upon and pursuant to the 
written direction of (1) the Institution with the consent of the Insurer, (2) the Insurer or (3) the ARS Beneficial 
Owners of 66-2/3% of the aggregate principal amount of the ARS then Outstanding with the consent of the 
Insurer, by an instrument signed by the Trustee and filed with the Market Agent, the Auction Agent and the 
Institution; provided that such removal shall not take effect until the appointment by the ARS Beneficial 
Owners or the Trustee of a substitute Market Agent acceptable to the Insurer. The Market Agent may resign 
upon 30 days’ written notice delivered to the Trustee, provided that such resignation shall not take effect until 
the appointment by the ARS Beneficial Owners or the Trustee of a substitute Market Agent. If the Trustee is 
unable to appoint a substitute Market Agent within 30 days following receipt of such written notice of 
resignation, the Market Agent may petition the appropriate court having jurisdiction to appoint a substitute 
Market Agent.  The Market Agent may be removed at any time, at the written request of the Institution, for any 
breach of its obligations hereunder or under the Market Agent Agreement. 

Auction Agent.  Any Auction Agent shall be (i) subject to the written approval of each Broker-Dealer, 
(ii) a bank or trust company duly organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state or 
territory thereof having its principal place of business in the Borough of Manhattan, New York, or such other 
location as approved by the Institution and the Market Agent in writing and having a combined capital stock or 
surplus of at least $15,000,000, or (iii) a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., 
having a capitalization of at least $15,000,000, and, in either case, authorized by law to perform all the duties 
imposed upon it hereunder and under the Auction Agent Agreement and (iv) acceptable to the Insurer. The 
Auction Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations created by this Indenture 
by giving at least 90 days’ notice to the Authority, the Trustee, the Insurer, each Broker-Dealer, the Institution 



 

D-2 

and the Market Agent. The Auction Agent shall be removed at any time by the Institution, upon the written 
direction of (1) the Institution with the consent of the Insurer, (2) the Insurer, or (3) the ARS Beneficial 
Owners of 66-2/3% of the aggregate principal amount of the ARS then Outstanding with the consent of the 
Insurer, by an instrument signed by the Institution and filed with the Auction Agent, the Insurer, the Market 
Agent and the Trustee upon at least 30 days’ notice. Neither the resignation nor the removal of the Auction 
Agent pursuant to the preceding two sentences shall be effective until and unless a substitute Auction Agent 
acceptable to the Insurer has been appointed and has accepted such appointment. If required by the Market 
Agent, a substitute Auction Agent Agreement shall be entered into with a substitute Auction Agent. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Auction Agent may terminate the Auction Agent Agreement if, within 45 
days after notifying the Authority, the Trustee, the Insurer, the Institution and the Market Agent in writing that 
it has not received payment of any Auction Agent Fee due it in accordance with the terms of the Auction 
Agent Agreement, the Auction Agent does not receive such payment; provided, however that during such 45 
day period auctions may not be suspended.  The Trustee shall not be liable for any action taken, suffered or 
omitted by the Auction Agent. 

If the Auction Agent shall resign or be removed or be dissolved, or if the property or affairs of the 
Auction Agent shall be taken under the control of any state or federal court or administrative body because of 
bankruptcy or insolvency, or for any other reason, the Trustee, at the written direction of the Institution, shall 
use its best efforts to appoint a substitute Auction Agent acceptable to the Insurer. 

The Auction Agent is acting as Auction Agent in connection with Auctions. In the absence of bad 
faith or gross negligence on its part, as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, the Auction Agent 
shall not be liable for any action taken, suffered or omitted or any error of judgment made by it in the 
performance of its duties under the Auction Agent Agreement.  The Auction Agent is acting solely as non-
fiduciary agent of the Trustee and owes no duties, fiduciary or otherwise, to any other person by reason of the 
Auction Agent Agreement and no implied duties, fiduciary or otherwise, shall be read into the Auction Agent 
Agreement against the Auction Agent.  The Auction Agent shall not be liable for any error of judgment made 
in good faith unless the Auction Agent shall have been grossly negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts, as 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, whether acting directly of through agents or attorneys. 

The Auction Agent shall not be responsible or liable for any failure or delay in the performance of its 
obligations under this Indenture arising out of or caused, directly or indirectly, by circumstances beyond its 
reasonable control, including without limitation, acts of God; earthquakes; fires; floods; war; civil or military 
disturbances; sabotage; epidemics; riots; labor disputes; acts of terrorism; acts of civil or military authority or 
governmental actions; it being understood that the Auction Agent shall use reasonable efforts which are 
consistent with accepted practices in the banking industry to resume performance as soon as practicable under 
the circumstances. 

The Auction Agent shall not be:  (i) required to and does not make any representations nor have any 
responsibilities as to the validity, accuracy, value or genuineness of any signatures or endorsements, other than 
its own, on any document delivered pursuant to or as contemplated by the Auction Agent Agreement or any 
Broker-Dealer Agreement; (ii) obligated to take any legal action hereunder that might, in its judgment, involve 
any expense or liability, unless it has been furnished with indemnity satisfactory to the Auction Agent; and 
(iii) responsible for or liable in any respect on account of the identity, authority or rights of any person 
executing or delivering or purporting to execute or deliver any document under the Auction Agent Agreement 
or any Broker-Dealer Agreement. 

In no event shall the Auction Agent be liable for special, exemplary, punitive, indirect or 
consequential losses or damages of any kind whatsoever (including but not limited to lost profits) even if the 
Auction Agent has been advised of the likelihood of such losses or damages and regardless of the form of 
action. 
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With the consent of the Insurer, the Auction Agent may be removed at any time, at the written request 
of the Institution, for any breach of its obligations hereunder or under the Auction Agent Agreement. 

Broker-Dealers.  The Institution may, from time to time, with the consent of the Insurer, appoint one 
or more Persons to serve as Broker-Dealers under Broker-Dealer Agreements in connection with the Series I 
Bonds and shall be responsible for providing such Broker-Dealer Agreements to the Trustee and the Auction 
Agent.  Any Broker-Dealer may be removed at any time at the written request of the Institution. 

Auction Procedures 

Submission of Orders.  So long as the ownership of the ARS is maintained in book entry form by the 
Securities Depository, an Existing Owner may sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of ARS only pursuant to a 
Bid or Sell Order placed in an Auction or through a Broker Dealer, provided that, in the case of all transfers 
other than pursuant to Auctions, such Existing Owner or its Broker Dealer advises the Auction Agent of such 
transfer.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.04 of the Agreement, Auctions shall be conducted on each 
Auction Date, if there is an Auction Agent on such Auction Date, in the following manner: 

Prior to the Submission Deadline on each Auction Date (a) each Existing Owner of ARS may submit 
to a Broker Dealer by Electronic Notice any information as to: (i) the principal amount of outstanding ARS, if 
any, held by such Existing Owner which such Existing Owner desires to continue to hold without regard to the 
Auction Rate for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period; (ii) the principal amount of outstanding ARS, if 
any, which such Existing Owner offers to sell if the Auction Rate for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period 
shall be less than the rate per annum specified by such Existing Owner; and/or (iii) the principal amount of 
outstanding ARS, if any, held by such Existing Owner which such Existing Owner offers to sell without regard 
to the Auction Rate for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period; and (b) one or more Broker Dealers may 
contact Potential Owners to determine the principal amount of ARS which each Potential Owner offers to 
purchase, if the Auction Rate for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period shall not be less than the rate per 
annum specified by such Potential Owner. 

The statement of an Existing Owner or a Potential Owner referred to in (a) or (b) above is referred to 
as an “Order,” and each Existing Owner and each Potential Owner placing an Order is referred to as a 
“Bidder”.  An Order described in (a)(i) is referred to as a “Hold Order,” an Order described in (a)(ii) or (b) is 
referred to as a “Bid”; and an Order described in clause (a)(iii) is referred to as a “Sell Order.” 

Bids by Existing Owners.  Subject to the provisions below under “Validity of Orders,” a Bid by an 
Existing Owner shall constitute an irrevocable offer to sell (in each case for settlement in same day funds on 
the next ARS Interest Payment Date therefor at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof): (i) the 
principal amount of outstanding ARS specified in such Bid if the Auction Rate determined as provided herein 
shall be less than the rate specified in such Bid; or (ii) such principal amount or a lesser principal amount of 
outstanding ARS to be determined as described below in “Acceptance and Rejection of Orders,” if the Auction 
Rate determined shall be equal to the rate specified in such Bid; or (iii) such principal amount or a lesser 
principal amount of outstanding ARS to be determined as described below in “Acceptance and Rejection of 
Orders,” if the rate specified therein shall be higher than the ARS Maximum Rate and Sufficient Clearing Bids 
have not been made. 

Sell Orders by Existing Owners.  Subject to the provisions below under “Validity of Orders,” a Sell 
Order by an Existing Owner shall constitute an irrevocable offer to sell (in each case for settlement in same 
day funds on the next ARS Interest Payment Date therefor at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount 
thereof): (i) the principal amount of outstanding ARS specified in such Sell Order if Sufficient Clearing Bids 
exist; or (ii) such principal amount or a lesser principal amount of outstanding ARS as described below in 
“Acceptance and Rejection of Orders,” if Sufficient Clearing Bids have not been made. 
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Bids by Potential Owners.  Subject to the provisions below under “Validity of Orders,” a Bid by a 
Potential Owner shall constitute an irrevocable offer to purchase (in each case for settlement in same day funds 
on the next ARS Interest Payment Date therefor at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof): (i) 
the principal amount of outstanding ARS specified in such Bid if the Auction Rate determined shall be higher 
than the rate specified in such Bid; or (ii) such principal amount or a lesser principal amount of outstanding 
ARS as described below in “Acceptance and Rejection of Orders,” if the Auction Rate determined shall be 
equal to the rate specified in such Bid. 

Each Broker Dealer shall submit in writing to the Auction Agent prior to the Submission Deadline on 
each Auction Date all Orders obtained by such Broker Dealer and shall specify with respect to each such 
Order: (a) the name of the Bidder placing such Order; (b) the aggregate principal amount of ARS that are the 
subject of such Order; (c) to the extent that such Bidder is an Existing Owner: (i) the principal amount of 
ARS, if any, subject to any Hold Order placed by such Existing Owner; (ii) the principal amount of ARS, if 
any, subject to any Bid placed by such Existing Owner and the rate specified in such Bid; and (iii) the principal 
amount of ARS, if any, subject to any Sell Order placed by such Existing Owner; and (d) to the extent such 
Bidder is a Potential Owner, the rate specified in such Potential Owner’s Bid. 

If any rate specified in any Bid contains more than three figures to the right of the decimal point, the 
Auction Agent shall round such rate up to the next higher one thousandth (.001) of 1%. 

If an Order or Orders covering all outstanding ARS held by an Existing Owner is not submitted to the 
Auction Agent prior to the Submission Deadline, the Auction Agent shall deem a Hold Order to have been 
submitted on behalf of such Existing Owner covering the principal amount of outstanding ARS held by such 
Existing Owner and not subject to an Order submitted to the Auction Agent. 

Neither the Institution, the Issuer, the Insurer, the Trustee nor the Auction Agent shall be responsible 
for any failure of a Broker Dealer to submit an Order to the Auction Agent on behalf of any Existing Owner or 
Potential Owner, nor shall any such party be responsible for failure by any Securities Depository to effect any 
transfer or to provide the Auction Agent with current information regarding registration of transfers. 

Validity of Orders.  If any Existing Owner submits through a Broker Dealer to the Auction Agent one 
or more Orders covering in the aggregate more than the principal amount of outstanding ARS held by such 
Existing Owner, such Orders shall be considered valid as follows and in the following order of priority: 

Hold Orders.  All Hold Orders shall be considered valid, but only up to and including in the 
aggregate the principal amount of outstanding ARS held by such Existing Owner, and if the aggregate 
principal amount of ARS subject to such Hold Orders exceeds the aggregate principal amount of ARS held by 
such Existing Owner, the aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to each such Hold Order shall be reduced 
so that the aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to such Hold Orders equals the aggregate principal 
amount of outstanding ARS held by such Existing Owner. 

Bids.  Any Bid shall be considered valid up to and including the excess of the principal 
amount of outstanding ARS held by such Existing Owner over the aggregate principal amount of ARS subject 
to any Hold Order referred to above.  Subject to the preceding sentence, if more than one Bid with the same 
rate is submitted on behalf of such Existing Owner and the aggregate principal amount of outstanding ARS 
subject to such Bids is greater than such excess, such Bids shall be considered valid up to and including the 
amount of such excess.  Subject to the preceding two sentences, if more than one Bid with different rates is 
submitted on behalf of such Existing Owner, such Bids shall be considered valid first in the ascending order of 
their respective rates until the highest rate is reached at which such excess exists and then at such rate up to and 
including the amount of such excess.  In any such event, the amount of outstanding ARS, if any, subject to 
Bids not valid under the provisions described in this paragraph shall be treated as the subject of a Bid by a 
Potential Owner at the rate therein specified. 
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Sell Orders.  All Sell Orders shall be considered valid up to and including the excess of the 
principal amount of outstanding ARS held by such Existing Owner over the aggregate principal amount of 
ARS subject to Hold Orders referred to in the preceding two paragraphs.   

If more than one Bid for ARS is submitted on behalf of any Potential Owner, each Bid submitted shall 
be a separate Bid with the rate and principal amount therein specified.  Any Bid or Sell Order submitted by an 
Existing Owner covering an aggregate principal amount of ARS not equal to an Authorized Denomination 
shall be rejected and shall be deemed a Hold Order.  Any Bid submitted by a Potential Owner covering an 
aggregate principal amount of ARS not equal to an Authorized Denomination shall be rejected. 

Any Bid specifying a rate higher than the ARS Maximum Rate will be treated as a Sell Order if 
submitted by an Existing Owner and will not be accepted if submitted by a Potential Owner.  Any Bid 
submitted by an Existing Owner or on behalf of a Potential Owner specifying a rate lower than the All-Hold 
Rate shall be considered as valid and shall be selected in the ascending order of their respective rates contained 
in the Submitted Bids. 

Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, Broker-Dealers may submit an Order after the Submission 
Deadline and prior to the Submission Processing Deadline if the Order was (i) received by the Broker-Dealer 
from Existing Owners or Potential Owners prior to the Submission Deadline, or (ii) initiated internally by the 
Broker-Dealer for its own account prior to the Submission Deadline.  Each Order submitted to the Auction 
Agent after the Submission Deadline and prior to the Submission Processing Deadline shall constitute a 
representation by the Broker-Dealer that such Order was (i) received from an Existing Owner or Potential 
Owner prior to the Submission Deadline or (ii) initiated internally by the Broker-Dealer for its own account 
prior to the Submission Deadline (the “Submission Processing Representation”). 

Determination of Sufficient Clearing Bids and Winning Bid Rate.  Promptly after the Submission 
Deadline on each Auction Date, but subject to a Submission Processing Representation, the Auction Agent 
will assemble all Orders submitted or deemed submitted to it by the Broker-Dealers (each such Order as 
submitted or deemed submitted by a Broker-Dealer being hereinafter referred to as a “Submitted Hold Order,” 
a “Submitted Bid” or a “Submitted Sell Order,” as the case may be, and collectively as a “Submitted Order”) 
and will determine: 

(a) the excess of the total principal amount of outstanding ARS over the sum of the aggregate 
principal amount of outstanding ARS subject to Submitted Hold Orders (such excess being hereinafter referred 
to as the “Available ARSs”), and 

(b) from the Submitted Orders whether: the aggregate principal amount of outstanding ARS 
subject to Submitted Bids by Potential Owners specifying one or more rates equal to or lower than the ARS 
Maximum Rate exceeds or is equal to the sum of: (i) the aggregate principal amount of outstanding ARS 
subject to Submitted Bids by Existing Owners specifying one or more rates higher than the ARS Maximum 
Rate, and (ii) the aggregate principal amount of outstanding ARS subject to Submitted Sell Orders (in the 
event such excess or such equality exists, other than because all of the outstanding ARS are subject to 
Submitted Hold Orders, such Submitted Bids described in subclause (i) above shall be referred to collectively 
as “Sufficient Clearing Bids”); and 

(c) if Sufficient Clearing Bids exist, the lowest rate specified in such Submitted Bids (the 
“Winning Bid Rate”) such that if: 

(i) each such Submitted Bid from Existing Owners specifying such lowest rate 
and all other Submitted Bids from Existing Owners specifying lower rates were rejected, thus 
entitling such Existing Owners to continue to hold the principal amount of ARS subject to 
such Submitted Bids, and 
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(ii) each such Submitted Bid from Potential Owners specifying such lowest rate 
and all other Submitted Bids from Potential Owners specifying lower rates were accepted, 

the result would be that such Existing Owners described in subsection (c)(i) above would continue to hold an 
aggregate principal amount of outstanding ARS which, when added to the aggregate principal amount of 
outstanding ARS to be purchased by such Potential Owners described in subsection (c)(ii) above, would equal 
not less than the Available ARSs. 

Notice of Applicable ARS Rate.  Promptly after the Auction Agent has made the determinations 
described above, the Auction Agent shall advise the Broker-Dealer and the Trustee of the ARS Maximum Rate 
and the All-Hold Rate and the components thereof on the Auction Date and, based on such determinations, the 
Auction Rate for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period as follows: (a) if Sufficient Clearing Bids exist, that 
the Auction Rate for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period shall be equal to the Winning Bid Rate so 
determined; (b) if Sufficient Clearing Bids do not exist (other than because all of the outstanding ARS are 
subject to Submitted Hold Orders), that the Auction Rate for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period shall be 
equal to the ARS Maximum Rate; or (c) if all outstanding ARS are subject to Submitted Hold Orders, that the 
Auction Rate for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period shall be equal to the All-Hold Rate. 

Acceptance and Rejection of Orders.  Existing Owners shall continue to hold the principal amount of 
ARS that are subject to Submitted Hold Orders, and Submitted Bids and Submitted Sell Orders shall be 
accepted or rejected and the Auction Agent shall take such other action as set forth below: 

Sufficient Clearing Bids.  If Sufficient Clearing Bids have been made, all Submitted Sell 
Orders shall be accepted and, subject to authorized denomination requirements described below, 
Submitted Bids shall be accepted or rejected as follows in the following order of priority and all other 
Submitted Bids shall be rejected: 

(a) Existing Owners’ Submitted Bids specifying any rate that is higher than the 
Winning Bid Rate shall be accepted, thus requiring each such Existing Owner to sell the 
aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to such Submitted Bids; 

(b) Existing Owners’ Submitted Bids specifying any rate that is lower than the 
Winning Bid Rate shall be rejected, thus entitling each such Existing Owner to continue to 
hold the aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to such Submitted Bids; 

(c) Potential Owners’ Submitted Bids specifying any rate that is lower than the 
Winning Bid Rate shall be accepted; 

(d) Each Existing Owner’s Submitted Bid specifying a rate that is equal to the 
Winning Bid Rate shall be rejected, thus entitling such Existing Owner to continue to hold the 
aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to such Submitted Bid, unless the aggregate 
principal amount of outstanding ARS subject to all such Submitted Bids shall be greater than 
the principal amount of ARS (the “remaining principal amount”) equal to the excess of the 
Available ARS over the aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to Submitted Bids 
described in subsections (b) and (c) above, in which event such Submitted Bid of such 
Existing Owner shall be rejected in part, and such Existing Owner shall be entitled to 
continue to hold the principal amount of ARS subject to such Submitted Bid, but only in an 
amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of ARS obtained by multiplying the 
remaining principal amount by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the principal 
amount of outstanding ARS held by such Existing Owner subject to such Submitted Bid and 
the denominator of which shall be the sum of the principal amount of outstanding ARS 
subject to such Submitted Bids made by all such Existing Owners that specified a rate equal 
to the Winning Bid Rate; and 
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(e) Each Potential Owner’s Submitted Bid specifying a rate that is equal to the 
Winning Bid Rate shall be accepted, but only in an amount equal to the principal amount of 
ARS obtained by multiplying the excess of the aggregate principal amount of Available ARS 
over the aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to Submitted Bids described in 
subsections (b), (c) and (d) above by a fraction the numerator of which shall be the aggregate 
principal amount of outstanding ARS subject to such Submitted Bid and the denominator of 
which shall be the sum of the principal amount of outstanding ARS subject to Submitted Bids 
made by all such Potential Owners that specified a rate equal to the Winning Bid Rate. 

Insufficient Cleaning Bids.  If Sufficient Clearing Bids have not been made (other than 
because all of the outstanding ARS are subject to submitted Hold Orders), subject to authorized 
denomination requirements described below, Submitted Orders shall be accepted or rejected as 
follows in the following order of priority and all other Submitted Bids shall be rejected: 

(a) Existing Owners’ Submitted Bids specifying any rate that is equal to or 
lower than the ARS Maximum Rate shall be rejected, thus entitling such Existing Owners to 
continue to hold the aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to such Submitted Bids; 

(b) Potential Owners’ Submitted Bids specifying any rate that is equal to or 
lower than the ARS Maximum Rate shall be accepted, and specifying any rate that is higher 
than the ARS Maximum Rate shall be rejected; and 

(c) each Existing Owner’s Submitted Bid specifying any rate that is higher than 
the ARS Maximum Rate and the Submitted Sell Order of each Existing Owner shall be 
accepted, thus entitling each Existing Owner that submitted any such Submitted Bid or 
Submitted Sell Order to sell the ARS subject to such Submitted Bid or Submitted Sell Order, 
but in both cases only in an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of ARS obtained 
by multiplying the aggregate principal amount of ARS subject to Submitted Bids described in 
(b) above which are accepted by a fraction the numerator of which shall be the aggregate 
principal amount of outstanding ARS held by such Existing Owner subject to such Submitted 
Bid or Submitted Sell Order and the denominator of which shall be the aggregate principal 
amount of outstanding ARS subject to all such Submitted Bids and Submitted Sell Orders. 

All Hold Orders.  If all outstanding ARS are subject to Submitted Hold Orders, all Submitted 
Bids shall be rejected. 

Authorized Denomination Requirements.  If, as a result of the procedures described above regarding 
Sufficient Clearing Bids and Insufficient Clearing Bids, any Existing Owner would be entitled or required to 
sell, or any Potential Owner would be entitled or required to purchase, a principal amount of ARS that is not 
equal to an Authorized Denomination the Auction Agent shall, in such manner as in its sole discretion it shall 
determine, round up or down the principal amount of ARS to be purchased or sold by any Existing Owner or 
Potential Owner so that the principal amount of ARS purchased or sold by each Existing Owner or Potential 
Owner shall be equal to an Authorized Denomination.  If, as a result of the procedures described above 
regarding Sufficient Clearing Bids, any Potential Owner would be entitled or required to purchase less than an 
Authorized Denomination of ARS, the Auction Agent shall, in such manner as in its sole discretion it shall 
determine, allocate ARS for purchase among Potential Owners so that only ARS in Authorized Denominations 
are purchased by any Potential Owner, even if such allocation results in one or more of such Potential Owners 
not purchasing any ARS. 

The Institution, the Issuer, the Trustee, the Broker-Dealers and the Auction Agent shall have no 
liability in the event that there are not Sufficient Clearing Bids from time to time pursuant to the Auction 
Procedures. 
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Based on the result of each Auction, the Auction Agent shall determine the aggregate principal 
amount of ARS to be purchased and the aggregate principal amount of ARS to be sold by Potential Owners 
and Existing Owners on whose behalf each Broker Dealer Submitted Bids or Sell Orders and, with respect to 
each Broker Dealer, to the extent that such aggregate principal amount of ARS to be sold differs from such 
aggregate principal amount of ARS to be purchased, determine to which other Broker Dealer or Broker 
Dealers acting for one or more purchasers such Broker Dealer shall deliver, or from which other Broker Dealer 
or Broker Dealers acting for one or more sellers such Broker Dealer shall receive, as the case may be, ARS. 

Any calculation by the Auction Agent (or the Trustee, if applicable) of the Applicable ARS Rate, the 
“AA” Composite Commercial Paper Rate, the ARS Maximum Rate, the All-Hold Rate and the Non-Payment 
Rate shall, in the absence of manifest error, be binding on all ARS Beneficial Owners and all other parties. 

Settlement Procedures 

(a) Not later than 3:00 p.m., New York City time, on each Auction Date, the Auction Agent shall 
notify by telephone each Broker Dealer that participated in the Auction held on such Auction Date and 
submitted an Order on behalf of an Existing Owner or Potential Owner of (i) the Auction Rate fixed for the 
next ARS Interest Period; (ii) whether there were Sufficient Clearing Bids in such Auction; (iii) if such Broker 
Dealer (a “Seller’s Broker Dealer”) submitted a Bid or a Sell Order on behalf of an Existing Owner, whether 
such Bid or Sell Order was accepted or rejected, in whole or in part, and the principal amount of ARS, if any, 
to be sold by such Existing Owner; (iv) if such Broker Dealer (a “Buyer’s Broker Dealer”) submitted a Bid on 
behalf of a Potential Owner, whether such Bid was accepted or rejected, in whole or in part, and the principal 
amount of ARS, if any, to be purchased by such Potential Owner; (v) if the aggregate principal amount of ARS 
to be sold by all Existing Owners on whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted a Bid or a Sell Order exceeds 
the aggregate principal amount of ARS to be purchased by all Potential Owners on whose behalf such Broker 
Dealer submitted a Bid, the name or names of one or more Buyer’s Broker Dealers (and the name of the 
Participant, if any, of each such Buyer’s Broker Dealer) acting for one or more purchasers of such excess 
principal amount of ARS and the principal amount of ARS to be purchased from one or more Existing Owners 
on whose behalf such Broker Dealer acted by one or more Potential Owners on whose behalf each of such 
Buyer’s Broker Dealers acted; (vi) if the principal amount of ARS to be purchased by all Potential Owners on 
whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted a Bid exceeds the aggregate principal amount of ARS to be sold 
by all Existing Owners on whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted a Bid or a Sell Order, the name or 
names of one or more Seller’s Broker Dealers (and the name of the Participant, if any, of each such Seller’s 
Broker Dealer) acting for one or more sellers of such excess principal amount of ARS and the principal 
amount of ARS to be sold to one or more Potential Owners on whose behalf such Broker Dealer acted by one 
or more Existing Owners on whose behalf each of such Seller’s Broker Dealers acted; and (vii) the Auction 
Date for the next succeeding Auction. 

(b) On each Auction Date, each Broker Dealer that submitted an Order on behalf of any Existing 
Owner or Potential Owner shall (i) advise each Existing Owner and Potential Owner on whose behalf such 
Broker Dealer submitted a Bid or Sell Order in the Auction on such Auction Date whether such Bid or Sell 
Order was accepted or rejected, in whole or in part; (ii) in the case of a Broker Dealer that is a Buyer’s Broker 
Dealer, advise each Potential Owner on whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted a Bid that was accepted, in 
whole or in part, to instruct such Potential Owner’s Participant to pay to such Broker Dealer (or its Participant) 
through the Securities Depository the amount necessary to purchase the principal amount of ARS to be 
purchased pursuant to such Bid against receipt of such ARS; (iii) in the case of a Broker Dealer that is a 
Seller’s Broker Dealer, instruct each Existing Owner on whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted a Sell 
Order that was accepted, in whole or in part, or a Bid that was accepted, in whole or in part, to instruct such 
Existing Owner’s Participant to deliver to such Broker Dealer (or its Participant) through the Securities 
Depository the principal amount of ARS to be sold pursuant to such Order against payment therefor; (iv) 
advise each Existing Owner on whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted an Order and each Potential Owner 
on whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted a Bid of the Auction Rate for the next ARS Interest Period; 
(v) advise each Existing Owner on whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted an Order of the next Auction 
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Date; and (vi) advise each Potential Owner on whose behalf such Broker Dealer submitted a Bid that was 
accepted, in whole or in part, of the next Auction Date. 

(c) On the basis of the information provided to it pursuant to (a) above, each Broker Dealer that 
submitted a Bid or Sell Order in an Auction is required to allocate any funds received by it in connection with 
such Auction pursuant to paragraph (b)(ii) above, and any ARS received by it in connection with such Auction 
pursuant to paragraph (b)(iii) above among the Potential Owners, if any, on whose behalf such Broker Dealer 
Submitted Bids, the Existing Owners, if any on whose behalf such Broker Dealer Submitted Bids or Sell 
Orders in such Auction, and any Broker Dealers identified to it by the Auction Agent following such Auction 
pursuant to paragraph (a)(v) or (a)(vi) above. 

(d) On each Auction Date: (i) each Potential Owner and Existing Owner with an Order in the 
Auction on such Auction Date shall instruct its Participant as provided in pararaph (b)(ii) or (b)(iii) above, as 
the case may be; (ii) each Seller’s Broker Dealer that is not a Participant of the Securities Depository shall 
instruct its Participant to (A) pay through the Securities Depository to the Participant of the Existing Owner 
delivering ARS to such Broker Dealer following such Auction pursuant to paragraph (b)(iii) above the amount 
necessary to purchase such ARS against receipt of such ARS, and (B) deliver such ARS through the Securities 
Depository to a Buyer’s Broker Dealer (or its Participant) identified to such Seller’s Broker Dealer pursuant to 
paragraph (a)(v) above against payment therefor; and (iii) each Buyer’s Broker Dealer that is not a Participant 
in the Securities Depository shall instruct its Participant to (A) pay through the Securities Depository to 
Seller’s Broker Dealer (or its Participant) identified following such Auction pursuant to paragraph (a)(vi) 
above the amount necessary to purchase the ARS to be purchased pursuant to paragraph (b)(ii) above against 
receipt of such ARS, and (B) deliver such ARS through the Securities Depository to the Participant of the 
purchaser thereof against payment therefor. 

(e) On the Business Day following each Auction Date: (i) each Participant for a Bidder in the 
Auction on such Auction Date referred to in paragraph (d)(i) above shall instruct the Securities Depository to 
execute the transactions described under paragraph (b)(ii) or (b)(iii) above for such Auction, and the Securities 
Depository shall execute such transactions;(ii) each Seller’s Broker Dealer or its Participant shall instruct the 
Securities Depository to execute the transactions described in paragraph (d)(ii) above for such Auction, and the 
Securities Depository shall execute such transactions; and (iii) each Buyer’s Broker Dealer or its Participant 
shall instruct the Securities Depository to execute the transactions described in paragraph (d)(iii) above for 
such Auction, and the Securities Depository shall execute such transactions. 

(f) If an Existing Owner selling ARS in an Auction fails to deliver such ARS (by authorized 
book entry), a Broker Dealer may deliver to the Potential Owner on behalf of which it submitted a Bid that was 
accepted a principal amount of ARS that is less than the principal amount of ARS that otherwise was to be 
purchased by such Potential Owner.  In such event, the principal amount of ARS to be so delivered shall be 
determined solely by such Broker Dealer.  Delivery of such lesser principal amount of ARS shall constitute 
good delivery.  Notwithstanding the foregoing terms, any delivery or nondelivery of ARS which shall 
represent any departure from the results of an Auction, as determined by the Auction Agent, shall be of no 
effect unless and until the Auction Agent shall have been notified of such delivery or nondelivery in 
accordance with the provisions of the Auction Agent Agreement and the Broker Dealer Agreements. 

Agreement of Owners 

By purchasing ARS, whether in an Auction or otherwise, each prospective purchaser of ARS or its 
Broker-Dealer will be deemed to have agreed to the provisions for the replacement of the Auction Agent, each 
Broker-Dealer and the Market Agent as provided in this Indenture, and relevant agreements among the 
Institution, the Trustee, the Auction Agent, the Market Agent and each Broker-Dealer, as appropriate. 
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Payments with Respect to ARS. 

Interest on ARS shall accrue from and including, as applicable, the Issuance Date, the Conversion 
Date or the most recent ARS Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for.  The 
Trustee shall determine the aggregate amount of interest payable with respect to ARS on each ARS Interest 
Payment Date.  The Trustee shall promptly notify the Securities Depository of its calculations of the amount of 
interest distributable in respect of each $25,000 in principal amount (taken without rounding to the nearest 
.000001) or ARS for any ARS Interest Period or part thereof, shall be calculated by the Trustee by applying 
the Applicable ARS Rate, for such ARS Interest Period or part thereof, to the principal amount of $25,000, 
multiplying such sum by the actual number of days in such ARS Interest Period or part thereof divided by 360 
and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest cent (half a cent being rounded upward). 

Interest on ARS shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year for the actual number of days 
elapsed.  The applicable ARS Period shall be determined by the Auction Agent.  The Applicable ARS Rate for 
the initial ARS Period shall be determined by each Broker-Dealer.  The Applicable ARS Rate for each ARS 
Interest Period after the first ARS Interest Period shall be the Auction Rate; provided that: (1) if a notice of a 
proposed adjustment in the percentages used to determine the ARS Maximum Rate, the All-Hold Rate and the 
Non-Payment Rate shall have been given by the Market Agent with respect to the ARS and because of a 
failure to satisfy either of the conditions set forth in the Agreement such adjustment shall not have taken effect, 
then an Auction with respect to the ARS shall not be held on the Auction Date immediately preceding the next 
succeeding ARS Interest Payment Date and the Applicable ARS Rate with respect to the ARS for such next 
succeeding ARS Interest Period shall equal the ARS Maximum Rate on such Auction Date; (2) if, on any 
Auction Date for the ARS, an Auction is not held for any reason other than contemplated herein, then the 
Applicable ARS Rate for the ARS for the next succeeding ARS Interest Period shall equal the ARS Rate in 
effect on the day immediately preceding such Auction Date; and (3) in the event that the ARS Maximum Rate 
shall be in effect for the lesser of three such Auction Periods or 30 days, the Institution shall promptly initiate 
proceedings to Convert the ARS to another Interest Rate Determination Method acceptable to the Insurer. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing: (a) if the ARS are no longer Book-Entry Series I Bonds, the 
Applicable ARS Rate for any ARS Interest Period commencing after the delivery of Series I Bonds 
representing the ARS shall equal the ARS Maximum Rate; (b) in the event that the ARS Maximum Rate shall 
be in effect for the lesser of three such Auction Periods or 30 days, the Institution shall promptly initiate 
proceedings to Convert the ARS to another Interest Rate Determination Method acceptable to the Insurer; or 
(c) if an ARS Payment Default shall have occurred, the Applicable ARS Rate for the ARS Interest Period 
commencing on or immediately after such ARS Payment Default and for each ARS Interest Period thereafter, 
to and including the ARS Interest Period, if any, during which, or commencing less than two Business Days 
after, such ARS Payment Default is cured in accordance with the Agreement, shall equal the Non-Payment 
Rate on the first day of each such ARS Interest Period, provided that if an Auction occurred on the Business 
Day immediately preceding any such ARS Interest Period, the Applicable ARS Rate for such ARS Interest 
Period shall be the Non-Payment Rate. 

ARS Defaulted Interest. The Trustee shall determine not later than 2:00 p.m., New York City time, on 
each ARS Interest Payment Date, whether an ARS Payment Default has occurred. If an ARS Payment Default 
has occurred, the Trustee shall, not later than 2:30 p.m. New York City time on such Business Day, send a 
Notice of ARS Payment Default to the Auction Agent, the Authority, the Insurer and each Broker-Dealer by 
telecopy or similar means and, if such ARS Payment Default is cured, the Trustee shall immediately send a 
Notice of Cure of ARS Payment Default to the Auction Agent, the Authority, the Insurer and each Broker-
Dealer by telecopy or similar means. 

 ARS Defaulted Interest shall forthwith cease to be payable to the ARS Beneficial Owner on the 
relevant Record Date by virtue of having been such ARS Beneficial Owner and such ARS Defaulted Interest 
shall be payable to the Person in whose name the ARS with respect to such ARS Payment Default occurred are 
registered at the close of business on a special Record Date fixed therefor by the Trustee, which shall not be 
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more than fifteen days and not less than ten days prior to the date of the proposed payment of ARS Defaulted 
Interest.  The Trustee shall promptly notify the Institution and the Insurer of the special Record Date and at the 
Institution’s expense mail to each ARS Beneficial Owner of an ARS as to which ARS Defaulted Interest is 
payable, not less than ten days before the special Record Date, notice of the date of the proposed payment of 
such ARS Defaulted Interest. 

Calculation of ARS Maximum Rate, All-Hold Rate and Non-Payment Rate 

The Auction Agent shall calculate the ARS Maximum Rate and the All-Hold Rate on each Auction 
Date.  If the ARS are no longer Book-Entry Series I Bonds, the Trustee shall calculate the ARS Maximum 
Rate on the Business Day immediately preceding each ARS Interest Payment Date after the delivery of Series I 
Bonds representing.  If an ARS Payment Default shall have occurred, the Trustee shall calculate the Non-
Payment Rate on the first day of (i) each ARS Interest Period commencing on or after the date of the 
occurrence and during the continuance of such ARS Payment Default and (ii) any ARS Interest Period 
commencing less than two Business Days after the cure of any ARS Payment Default.  The Auction Agent 
shall determine the “AA” Composite Commercial Paper Rate for each ARS Interest Period other than the first 
ARS Interest Period, provided, that if the ARS are no longer Book-Entry Series I Bonds, or if an ARS Payment 
Default has occurred, then the Trustee shall determine the “AA” Composite Commercial Paper Rate for each 
such ARS Interest Period.  The determination by the Trustee or the Auction Agent, as the case may be, of the 
“AA” Composite Commercial Paper Rate, ARS Maximum Rate, All-Hold Rate and Non-Payment Rate shall 
(in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding upon all ARS Beneficial Owners and all other parties. If 
calculated or determined by the Auction Agent, the Auction Agent shall promptly advise the Trustee of the 
“AA” Composite Commercial Paper Rate, ARS Maximum Rate, All-Hold Rate and Non-Payment Rate. 

If the Federal Reserve Bank of New York has not made available its 30-day commercial paper rate for 
purposes of determining the “AA” Composite Commercial Paper Rate, the Auction Agent or the Trustee, as 
the case may be, shall request that the Institution appoint at least three commercial paper dealers to provide 
commercial paper quotes for purposes of determining the “AA” Composite Commercial Paper Rate; and if the 
Institution shall fail to make any such appointment within three Business Days following such request, the 
Trustee shall appoint such commercial paper dealers and notify the Institution of such appointment. 

Adjustment in Percentages. 

With the consent of the Insurer, the Market Agent shall adjust the percentage used in determining the 
All-Hold Rate, the Applicable Percentages used in determining the ARS Maximum Rate and the percentage of 
the Index used in calculating the Non-Payment Rate, if any such adjustment is necessary, in the judgment of 
the Market Agent, to reflect any Change of Tax Law or change in market convention such that an ARS bearing 
interest at the ARS Maximum Rate, an ARS bearing interest at the All-Hold Rate and an ARS bearing interest 
at the Non-Payment Rate in each case shall have substantially the same market value after such Change of Tax 
Law or change in market convention, as applicable, as before such Change of Tax Law or change in market 
convention as applicable.  In making any such adjustment, the Market Agent shall take into account the 
following factors, as in existence both before and after such Change of Tax Law:  (i) short-term taxable and 
Tax-Exempt market rates and indices of such short-term rates; (ii) the market supply and demand for short-
term Tax-Exempt securities; (iii) yield curves for short-term and long-term Tax-Exempt securities or 
obligations having a credit rating that is comparable to the ARS; (iv) general economic conditions; and (v) 
economic and financial factors present in the securities industry that may affect, or that may be relevant to, the 
ARS. 

The Market Agent shall communicate its determination to adjust the percentage used in determining 
the All-Hold Rate, the Applicable Percentages used in determining the ARS Maximum Rate and the 
percentage of the Index used in calculating the Non-Payment Rate by means of a Notice of Proposed 
Percentage Change delivered in writing at least 10 days prior to the Auction Date on which the Market Agent 
desires to effect the change to the Institution, the Authority, the Trustee, the Insurer, each Broker-Dealer and 
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the Auction Agent. Such notice shall be effective only if it is accompanied by a letter of Bond Counsel that it 
expects to be able to deliver a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel in connection with such adjustment. 

An adjustment in the percentage used to determine the All-Hold Rate, the Applicable Percentage used 
in determining the ARS Maximum Rate and the percentage of the Index used in calculating the Non-Payment 
Rate shall take effect on an Auction Date only if: (1) the Trustee, the Institution, each Broker-Dealer, the 
Insurer and the Auction Agent receive, by 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the Business Day immediately 
preceding such Auction Date, a Notice of Percentage Change from the Market Agent by telecopy or similar 
means, (i) authorizing the adjustment of the percentage used to determine the All-Hold Rate, the Applicable 
Percentages used to determine the ARS Maximum Rate and the percentage of the Index used to determine the 
Non-Payment Rate which shall be specified in such authorization, and (ii) confirming that Bond Counsel 
expects to be able to deliver a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel in connection with such adjustment on or 
prior to such Auction Date; and (2) The Trustee receives by 9:30 a.m., New York City time, on such 
Auction Date, a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel.  If any of the conditions referred to in (1) or (2) above 
are not met, the existing percentage used in determining the All-Hold Rate, the percentage of the Index used in 
determining the Non-Payment Rate and the Applicable Percentages used in determining the ARS Maximum 
Rate shall remain in effect and the rate of interest for each succeeding ARS Interest Period until each such 
condition is met shall equal the ARS Maximum Rate on the Auction Date for such succeeding ARS Interest 
Period. 

Changes in Auction Period or Auction Date. 

Changes in Auction Period.  The Auction Period for the Series I Bonds with respect to each ARS 
Period, if any, initially shall be either a seven-day period, a 28-day or a 35-day period commencing generally 
on a Monday, generally on a Tuesday, generally on a Wednesday, generally on a Thursday or generally on a 
Friday, in each case as provided in the Agreement or as announced by the Institution in its notice of the 
proposed Conversion to an ARS Period as provided in the Agreement. 

During any ARS Period, the Institution may from time to time on any ARS Interest Payment Date 
change the length of the Auction Period with respect to all of the Series I Bonds between 7 days, 28 days and 
35 days or change the first day of each Auction Period, or both, in each case in order to accommodate 
economic and financial factors that may affect or be relevant to the length of the Auction Period and the 
interest rate borne by the Series I Bonds.  The Institution shall initiate the change in the length or day of 
commencement of the Auction Period, or both, by giving written notice to the Trustee, the Authority, the 
Auction Agent, the Insurer, each Broker-Dealer and the Securities Depository that the Auction Period shall 
change if the conditions described herein are satisfied and the proposed effective date of the change, at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the Auction Date for such Auction Period.  Any such changed Auction Period shall be 
for a period of seven days, 28 days or 35 days and shall be for all of the Series I Bonds and shall require the 
consent of the Insurer. 

No change in the length or the day of commencement of the Auction Period for the ARS shall be 
allowed unless Sufficient Clearing Bids existed at both the Auction before the date on which the notice of the 
proposed change was given as provided in the paragraph above and the Auction immediately preceding the 
proposed change.  The change in length of the Auction Period for the Series I Bonds shall take effect only if 
Sufficient Clearing Bids exist at the Auction on the Auction Date for the first such Auction Period.  For 
purposes of the Auction for such first Auction Period only, each Existing Owner shall be deemed to have 
submitted Sell Orders with respect to all of its ARS except to the extent such Existing Owner submits a Hold 
Order with respect to such ARS.  If the condition referred to in the second sentence of this paragraph is not 
met, the Auction Rate for the next Auction Period shall be the ARS Maximum Rate, and the Auction Period 
shall be the Auction Period already in effect. 

Changes in Auction Date. During any ARS Period, the Institution may specify an earlier Auction Date 
for any Business Day earlier (but in no event more than five Business Days earlier) than the Auction Date that 
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would otherwise be determined in accordance with the definition of “Auction Date” in order to conform with 
then current market practice with respect to similar securities or to accommodate economic and financial 
factors that may affect or be relevant to the day of the week constituting an Auction Date and the interest rate 
borne on the ARS. The Institution shall provide notice of its determination to specify an earlier Auction Date 
for an Auction Period by means of a written notice delivered at least thirty (30) days prior to the proposed 
changed Auction Date to the Trustee, the Insurer, each Broker-Dealer and the Securities Depository. 



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



1221 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, New York 10020 
Telephone:  (212) 478-3400

MUNICIPAL BOND 

INSURANCE POLICY 

ISSUER:  [             ]  

BONDS: [             ] 

Policy No:  [            ] 

Effective Date: [               ] 

XL Capital Assurance Inc. (XLCA), a New York stock insurance company, in consideration of the payment of the 
premium and subject to the terms of this Policy (which includes each endorsement attached hereto), hereby agrees 
unconditionally and irrevocably to pay to the trustee (the "Trustee") or the paying agent (the "Paying Agent") (as set forth in
the documentation providing for the issuance of and securing the Bonds) for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds or, at the 
election of XLCA, to each Owner, that portion of the principal and interest on the Bonds that shall become Due for Payment 
but shall be unpaid by reason of Nonpayment. 

XLCA will pay such amounts to or for the benefit of the Owners on the later of the day on which such principal and 
interest becomes Due for Payment or one (1) Business Day following the Business Day on which XLCA shall have received 
Notice of Nonpayment (provided that Notice will be deemed received on a given Business Day if it is received prior to 10:00 
a.m. New York time on such Business Day; otherwise it will be deemed received on the next Business Day), but only upon 
receipt by XLCA, in a form reasonably satisfactory to it, of (a) evidence of the Owner's right to receive payment of the 
principal or interest then Due for Payment and (b) evidence, including any appropriate instruments of assignment, that all of 
the Owner's rights with respect to payment of such principal or interest that is Due for Payment shall thereupon vest in 
XLCA. Upon such disbursement, XLCA shall become the owner of the Bond, any appurtenant coupon to the Bond or the 
right to receipt of payment of principal and interest on the Bond and shall be fully subrogated to the rights of the Owner, 
including the Owner's right to receive payments under the Bond, to the extent of any payment by XLCA hereunder.  Payment 
by XLCA to the Trustee or Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners shall, to the extent thereof, discharge the obligation of 
XLCA under this Policy. 

In the event the Trustee or Paying Agent has notice that any payment of principal or interest on a Bond which has 
become Due for Payment and which is made to an Owner by or on behalf of the Issuer of the Bonds has been recovered from 
the Owner pursuant to a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction that such payment constitutes an avoidable 
preference to such Owner within the meaning of any applicable bankruptcy law, such Owner will be entitled to payment from 
XLCA to the extent of such recovery if sufficient funds are not otherwise available.  

The following terms shall have the meanings specified for all purposes of this Policy, except to the extent such terms 
are expressly modified by an endorsement to this Policy.  "Business Day" means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday 
or (b) a day on which banking institutions in the State of New York or the Insurer's Fiscal Agent are authorized or required 
by law or executive order to remain closed.   "Due for Payment", when referring to the principal of Bonds, is when the stated 
maturity date or a mandatory redemption date for the application of a required sinking fund installment has been reached and 
does not refer to any earlier date on which payment is due by reason of call for redemption (other than by application of 
required sinking fund installments), acceleration or other advancement of maturity, unless XLCA shall elect, in its sole 
discretion, to pay such principal due upon such acceleration; and, when referring to interest on the Bonds, is when the stated 
date for payment of interest has been reached.  "Nonpayment" means the failure of the Issuer to have provided sufficient 
funds to the Trustee or Paying Agent for payment in full of all principal and interest on the Bonds which are Due for 
Payment. "Notice" means telephonic or telecopied notice, subsequently confirmed in a signed writing, or written notice by 
registered or certified mail, from an Owner, the Trustee or the Paying Agent to XLCA which notice shall specify (a) the 
person or entity making the claim, (b) the Policy Number, (c) the claimed amount and (d) the date such claimed amount 
became Due for Payment.  "Owner" means, in respect of a Bond, the person or entity who, at the time of Nonpayment, is 
entitled under the terms of such Bond to payment thereof, except that "Owner" shall not include the Issuer or any person or 
entity whose direct or indirect obligation constitutes the underlying security for the Bonds. 
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XLCA may, by giving written notice to the Trustee and the Paying Agent, appoint a fiscal agent (the "Insurer's 
Fiscal Agent") for purposes of this Policy. From and after the date of receipt by the Trustee and the Paying Agent of such 
notice, which shall specify the name and notice address of the Insurer's Fiscal Agent, (a) copies of all notices required to be
delivered to XLCA pursuant to this Policy shall be simultaneously delivered to the Insurer's Fiscal Agent and to XCLA and 
shall not be deemed received until received by both and (b) all payments required to be made by XLCA under this Policy 
may be made directly by XLCA or by the Insurer's Fiscal Agent on behalf of XLCA.  The Insurer's Fiscal Agent is the agent 
of XLCA only and the Insurer's Fiscal Agent shall in no event be liable to any Owner for any act of the Insurer's Fiscal Agent 
or any failure of XLCA to deposit or cause to be deposited sufficient funds to make payments due hereunder. 

Except to the extent expressly modified by an endorsement hereto, (a) this Policy is non-cancelable by XLCA, and 
(b) the Premium on this Policy is not refundable for any reason.  This Policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment 
or other acceleration payment which at any time may become due in respect of any Bond, other than at the sole option of 
XLCA, nor against any risk other than Nonpayment.  This Policy sets forth the full undertaking of XLCA and shall not be 
modified, altered or affected by any other agreement or instrument, including any modification or amendment thereto. 

THIS POLICY IS NOT COVERED BY THE PROPERTY/CASUALTY INSURANCE SECURITY FUND 
SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE 76 OF THE NEW YORK INSURANCE LAW. 

In witness whereof, XLCA has caused this Policy to be executed on its behalf by its duly authorized officers. 

_____________
Name: 
Title:

_____________
 Name: 
 Title: 

XLCAP-005
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October 20, 2005

Massachusetts Health and Educational
Facilities Authority

99 Summer Street, Suite 1000
Boston, Massachusetts 02110

$28,865,000
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Revenue Bonds,

Stonehill College Issue, Series I (2005) (Auction Rate Securities)
Dated their Date of Delivery

We have acted as bond counsel to the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority
(the “Authority”) in connection with the issuance by the Authority of the above-referenced bonds
(the “Bonds”). In such capacity, we have examined the law and such certified proceedings and
other papers as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion, including the Loan and Trust
Agreement dated as of March 12, 1992 (the “Loan and Trust Agreement”), among the Authority,
Stonehill College, Inc. (the “Institution”) and Shawmut Bank, N.A., as trustee, as previously
amended and supplemented, and as further amended and supplemented by the Fourth
Supplemental Agreement dated as of September 13, 2005 (the “Fourth Supplement” and together
with the Loan and Trust Agreement, as previously amended and supplemented, the
“Agreement”), among the Authority, the Institution and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (the “Trustee”).

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and
covenants of the Authority and the Institution contained in the Agreement and in the certified
proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished to us, and certifications of
officials of the Institution and others, without undertaking to verify the same by independent
investigation.

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Agreement. The Bonds are payable solely from funds to be
provided therefor by the Institution pursuant to the Agreement. Under the Agreement, the
Institution has agreed to make payments sufficient to pay when due the principal (including
sinking fund installments) and purchase or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds. Such
payments and other moneys payable to the Authority or the Trustee under the Agreement,
including proceeds derived from any security provided thereunder (collectively the “Revenues”),
and the rights of the Authority under the Agreement to receive the same (excluding, however,
certain administrative fees, indemnification, and reimbursements), are pledged and assigned by
the Authority as security for the Bonds. The Bonds are payable solely from the Revenues.
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We express no opinion with respect to compliance by the Institution with applicable legal
requirements with respect to the Agreement or in connection with the construction or operation
of the Project (as defined in the Agreement) being financed by the Bonds.

Reference is made to an opinion of even date of Brown Rudnick Berlack Israels LLP, counsel to
the Institution, with respect to, among other matters, the corporate existence of the Institution,
the power of the Institution to carry out the Project, the power of the Institution to enter into and
perform its obligations under the Agreement, and the authorization, execution and delivery of the
Agreement by the Institution. We have relied on such opinion with regard to such matters and to
the other matters addressed therein, including, without limitation, the current qualification of the
Institution as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 (the “Code”). We note that such opinion is subject to the limitations and conditions
described therein. Failure of the Institution to maintain its status as an organization described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code or to use the Project in activities of the Institution that do not
constitute unrelated trades or businesses of the Institution within the meaning of Section 513 of
the Code may result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income
tax purposes, possibly from the date of issuance of the Bonds.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows:

1. The Authority is a duly created and validly existing body corporate and politic
and a public instrumentality of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts with the power to enter
into and perform the Agreement and to issue the Bonds.

2. The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
Authority and is a valid and binding obligation of the Authority enforceable against the
Authority. As provided in Section 13 of Chapter 614 of the Acts of 1968 of The Commonwealth
of Massachusetts, as amended, the Agreement creates a valid lien on the Revenues and on the
rights of the Authority or the Trustee on behalf of the Authority to receive Revenues under the
Agreement (except certain rights to indemnification, reimbursements and fees).

3. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority
and are valid and binding special obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the Revenues.

4. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. In addition, interest on the Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes.
However, such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate
alternative minimum taxable income. In rendering the opinions set forth in this paragraph, we
have assumed compliance by the Authority and the Institution with all requirements of the Code
that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be,
and continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Institution
and, to the extent necessary, the Authority have covenanted in the Agreement to comply with all
such requirements. Failure by the Authority or the Institution to comply with certain of such
requirements may cause interest on the Bonds to become included in gross income for federal
income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. We express no opinion
regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.
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5. Interest on the Bonds and any profit made on the sale thereof are exempt from
Massachusetts personal income taxes and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal
property taxes. We express no opinion regarding any other Massachusetts tax consequences
arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds
under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts.

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any
obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any action taken or
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the interpretation thereof, that may
hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds and the Agreement
may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable,
and their enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate
cases.

Palmer & Dodge LLP
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FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”) is executed and
delivered by Stonehill College, Inc. (the “Institution”) and U.S. Bank National Association (the
“Trustee”) in connection with the issuance of $28,865,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational
Facilities Authority Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series I (2005) (Auction
Rate Securities) (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Fourth Supplemental
Agreement dated as of September 13, 2005 (the “Fourth Supplemental Agreement”) among the
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”), the Trustee and the
Institution, which Fourth Supplemental Agreement amends and supplements the Loan and Trust
Agreement dated as of March 12, 1992 (the “Loan and Trust Agreement,” and as previously
amended and supplemented and as further amended and supplemented by the Fourth Supplemental
Agreement, the “Agreement”) among the Authority, Shawmut Bank, N.A., as predecessor Trustee,
and the Institution, and the proceeds of the Bonds are being loaned by the Authority to the
Institution pursuant to the Agreement. The Institution and the Trustee covenant and agree as
follows:

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement. This Disclosure Agreement is
being executed and delivered by the Institution and the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondowners
and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters (defined below) in complying with the Rule
(defined below). The Institution and the Trustee acknowledge that the Authority has undertaken
no responsibility with respect to any reports, notices or disclosures provided or required under
this Disclosure Agreement, and has no liability to any person, including any Bondowner, with
respect to any such reports, notices or disclosures. The Trustee, except as provided in Section
3(c), has undertaken no responsibility with respect to any reports, notices or disclosures provided
or required under this Disclosure Agreement, and has no liability to any person, including any
Bondowner, with respect to any such reports, notices or disclosures except for its negligent
failure to comply with its obligations under Section 3(c).

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Agreement,
which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined
in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Institution pursuant to, and
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Bondowner” shall mean the registered owner of a Bond and any beneficial owner thereof,
as established to the reasonable satisfaction of the Trustee or Institution.

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean any Dissemination Agent or successor Dissemination
Agent designated in writing by the Institution and which has filed with the Institution, the Trustee
and the Authority a written acceptance of such designation. The same entity may serve as both
Trustee and Dissemination Agent. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Trustee. In the
absence of a third-party Dissemination Agent, the Institution shall serve as the Dissemination
Agent.
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“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Agreement.

“National Repository” shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities
Information Repository for purposes of the Rule. The National Repositories as of the date of
execution of this Disclosure Agreement are listed in Exhibit B.

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

“Repository” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository.

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

“State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by The
Commonwealth of Massachusetts as a state repository for the purpose of the Rule.

“Transmission Agent” shall mean any central filing office, conduit or similar entity
which undertakes responsibility for accepting filings under the Rule for submission to each
Repository. The current Transmission Agent is listed on Exhibit B attached hereto.

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) Commencing in 2003, the Dissemination Agent, not later than October 1 of each
fiscal year (the “Filing Deadline”), shall provide to each Repository an Annual Report which is
consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. Not later than
fifteen (15) Business Days prior to said date, the Institution (if it is not the Dissemination Agent)
shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent. In each case, the Annual Report
may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may
cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement;
provided that the audited financial statements of the Institution may be submitted separately
from, and at a later date than, the balance of the Annual Report if such audited financial
statements are not available as of the date set forth above. If the Dissemination Agent submits
the audited financial statements of the Institution at a later date, it shall provide unaudited
financial statements by the above-specified deadline and shall provide the audited financial
statements as soon as practicable after the audited financial statements become available. The
Institution shall submit the audited financial statements to the Dissemination Agent and the
Trustee as soon as practicable after they become available and the Dissemination Agent shall
submit the audited financial statements to each Repository as soon as practicable thereafter. The
Institution shall provide a copy of the Annual Report to the Authority and the Trustee.

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall:
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(i) determine each year within five (5) Business Days of the date for
providing the Annual Report the name and address of each National Repository and the
State Repository, if any (insofar as determinations regarding National Repositories are
concerned, the Dissemination Agent or the Institution, as applicable, may rely
conclusively on the list of National Repositories maintained by the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission); and

(ii) file a report with the Institution, the Authority and the Trustee certifying
that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating
the date it was provided, and listing all the Repositories to which it was provided (the
“Compliance Certificate”); such report shall include a certification from the Institution
that the Annual Report complies with the requirements of this Disclosure Agreement.

(c) If the Trustee has not received a Compliance Certificate by the Filing Deadline,
the Trustee shall send, and the Institution hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to submit on
its behalf, a notice to each Repository in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A.

(d) If the Dissemination Agent has not provided the Annual Report to the
Repositories by the Filing Deadline, the Institution shall send, or cause the Dissemination Agent
to send, a notice substantially in the form of Exhibit A irrespective of whether the Trustee
submits such notice.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Institution’s Annual Report shall contain
or incorporate by reference the following:

(a) Quantitative information for the preceding fiscal year of the type presented in the
Authority’s Official Statement dated October 13, 2005 relating to the Bonds setting forth
financial information and operating data in Appendix A under the headings “Freshman
Applications, Acceptances and Enrollments,” “Total Student Enrollment,” “Tuition, Fees, Room
and Board” “Endowment” and “Outstanding Indebtedness.”

(b) The most recently available audited financial statements of the Institution
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The financial statements provided pursuant to Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement
shall be prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, as in effect from time
to time. Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other
documents, including official statements of debt issues with respect to which the Institution is an
“obligated person” (as defined by the Rule), which have been filed with each of the Repositories or
the Securities and Exchange Commission. If the document incorporated by reference is a final
official statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The
Institution shall clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the
following events:
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1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

2. Non-payment related defaults.

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties.

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

6. Receipt by the Issuer of an adverse tax opinion or the occurrence of an
event affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.

7. Modifications to rights of the Owners of the Bonds.

8. Bond calls.

9. Defeasance of the Bonds or any portion thereof.

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds.

11. Rating changes.

(b) Whenever the Institution obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event,
if such Listed Event is material, the Institution shall, in a timely manner, direct the Dissemination
Agent to file a notice of such occurrence with the Repositories. The Institution shall provide a
copy of each such notice to the Authority and the Trustee. The Dissemination Agent, if other
than the Institution, shall have no duty to file a notice of an event described hereunder unless it is
directed in writing to do so by the Institution, and shall have no responsibility for verifying any
of the information in any such notice or determining the materiality of the event described in
such notice.

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Institution’s obligations under
this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment in
full of all of the Bonds or upon delivery to the Trustee of an opinion of counsel expert in federal
securities laws selected by the Institution and acceptable to the Trustee to the effect that
compliance with this Disclosure Agreement no longer is required by the Rule. If the Institution’s
obligations under the Agreement are assumed in full by some other entity, such person shall be
responsible for compliance with this Disclosure Agreement in the same manner as if it were the
Institution and the original Institution shall have no further responsibility hereunder.

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The Institution may, from time to time with notice
to the Trustee and the Authority appoint or engage a third-party Dissemination Agent to assist it
in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, and may, with notice to the
Trustee and the Authority, discharge any such third-party Dissemination Agent, with or without
appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent (if other than the
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Institution) may resign upon 30 days’ written notice to the Institution, the Trustee and the
Authority.

SECTION 8. Alternative Methods for Reporting. The Institution may satisfy its
obligation to make a filing with each Repository hereunder by transmitting the same to a
Transmission Agent if and to the extent such Transmission Agent has received an interpretive
advice from the Securities and Exchange Commission, which has not been withdrawn, to the
effect that an undertaking to transmit a filing to such Transmission Agent for submission to each
Repository is an undertaking described in the Rule.

SECTION 9. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Disclosure Agreement, the Institution and the Trustee may amend this Disclosure Agreement
(and the Trustee shall agree to any amendment so requested by the Institution) and any provision
of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is supported by an
opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws acceptable to both the Institution and the
Trustee to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, violate the Rule.
Without limiting the foregoing, the Institution and the Trustee may amend this Disclosure
Agreement if (a) such amendment is made in connection with a change in circumstances that
arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or
status of the Institution or of the type of business conducted by the Institution, (b) this Disclosure
Agreement, as so amended, would have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time
the Bonds were issued, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as
well as any change in circumstances; and (c) (i) the Trustee determines, or the Trustee receives
an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws and acceptable to the Trustee to the effect
that, the amendment does not materially impair the interests of the Bondowners or (ii) the
amendment is consented to by the Bondowners as though it were an amendment to the
Agreement pursuant to Section 1101 of the Agreement. The annual financial information
containing the amended operating data or financial information will explain, in narrative form,
the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change in the type of operating data or
financial information being provided. Neither the Trustee nor the Dissemination Agent shall be
required to accept or acknowledge any amendment of this Disclosure Agreement if the
amendment adversely affects its respective rights or immunities or increases its respective duties
hereunder.

SECTION 10. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be
deemed to prevent the Institution from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event,
in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement. If the Institution chooses to
include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, the Institution shall
have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in
any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 11. Default. In the event of a failure of the Institution or the Dissemination
Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Trustee may (and, at the
request of registered Bondowners representing at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of
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Outstanding Bonds, shall), take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including
seeking specific performance by court order, to cause the Institution or the Dissemination Agent,
as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement. Without
regard to the foregoing, any Bondowner may take such actions as may be necessary and
appropriate, including seeking specific performance by court order, to cause the Institution or the
Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure
Agreement. A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of Default
under the Agreement, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the event of any
failure of the Institution or the Dissemination Agent to comply with this Disclosure Agreement
shall be an action to compel performance.

SECTION 12. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee and Dissemination Agent.
As to the Trustee, Article VII of the Agreement is hereby made applicable to this Disclosure
Agreement as if this Disclosure Agreement were (solely for this purpose) contained in the
Agreement. The Dissemination Agent (if other than the Institution) shall have only such duties
as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement, and the Institution agrees to indemnify
and save the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Institution), its officers, director, employees
and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or
in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and
expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding
liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of
the Institution under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent
and payment of the Bonds. The Institution covenants that whenever it is serving as
Dissemination Agent, it shall take any action required of the Dissemination Agent under this
Disclosure Agreement.

The Trustee shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to report any
information to any Repository or any Bondowner. If an officer of the Trustee obtains actual
knowledge of the occurrence of an event described in Section 5 hereunder, whether or not such
event is material, the Trustee shall timely notify the Institution of such occurrence, provided,
however, that any failure by the Trustee to give such notice to the Institution shall not affect the
Institution’s obligations under this Disclosure Agreement or give rise to any liability by the Trustee
for such failure.

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit
of the Institution, the Trustee, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and the
Bondowners, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.
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SECTION 14. Disclaimer. No Annual Report or notice of a Listed Event filed by or on
behalf of the Institution under this Disclosure Agreement shall obligate the Institution to file any
information regarding matters other than those specifically described in Section 4 and Section 5
hereof, nor shall any such filing constitute a representation by the Institution or raise any
inference that no other material events have occurred with respect to the Institution or the Bonds
or that all material information regarding the Institution or the Bonds has been disclosed. The
Institution shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update information
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement except as specifically stated herein.

Date: October __, 2005

STONEHILL COLLEGE, INC.

By _________________________________
Authorized Officer

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as
Trustee

By _________________________________
Authorized Officer
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EXHIBIT A
NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer: Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority

Name of Bond Issue: Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate
Demand Revenue Bonds, Stonehill College Issue, Series I (2005)

Name of Obligated Person: Stonehill College, Inc.

Date of Issuance: October __, 2005

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Stonehill College, Inc. (the “Institution”) has not provided an
Annual Report with respect to the above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement dated October __, 2005 between the Institution and U.S. Bank National Association.

Dated: ___________________

[TRUSTEE/DISSEMINATION AGENT on
behalf of] STONEHILL COLLEGE, INC.

[cc: Stonehill College, Inc.]
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EXHIBIT B
NATIONAL REPOSITORIES

Bloomberg Municipal Repository
100 Business Park Drive

Skillman, NJ 08558
Phone: (609) 279-3225

Fax: (609) 279-5962
http://www.bloomberg.com/markets/rates/municontacts.html

Email: Munis@Bloomberg.com

DPC Data Inc.
One Executive Drive
Fort Lee, NJ 07024

Phone: (201) 346-0701
Fax: (201) 947-0107

http://www.dpcdata.com
Email: nrmsir@dpcdata.com

FT Interactive Data
Attn: NRMSIR

100 William Street, 15th Floor
New York, NY 10038

Phone: 212-771-6999; 800-689-8466
Fax: 212-771-7390
http://www.ftid.com

Email: NRMSIR@interactivedata.com

Standard & Poor’s Securities Evaluations, Inc.
55 Water Street

45th Floor
New York, NY 10041
Phone: (212) 438-4595

Fax: (212) 438-3975
www.jjkenny.com/jjkenny/pser_descrip_data_rep.html

Email: nrmsir_repository@sandp.com

TRANSMISSION AGENT

www. DisclosureUSA.org
Disclosure USA
P.O. Box 684667

Austin, Texas 78768-4667
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